
 Mayor & City Council City of College Park 
  3667 Main Street 

 Regular Session Meeting College Park, GA  30337 

 

  http://www.collegeparkga.com 

 ~ Agenda ~ 404-669-3756 (Main) 

 

  Experience College Park 
  Georgia’s Global City 

 

Monday, November 16, 2020 7:30 PM Council Chambers 

Mayor & City Council Page 1 Printed 11/12/2020 

1. Opening Ceremonies 

A. Pledge Of Allegiance 

B. Invocation 

2. Additions, Deletions, Amendments, or Changes to the Agenda 

3. Presentation of Minutes of City Council 

A. Approval of Regular Session Minutes dated November 2, 2020 

ACTION: 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

B. Approval of Workshop Session Minutes dated November 2, 2020. 

ACTION: 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

4. Proclamations, Resolutions, Plaques, and Announcements 

5. Remarks of Citizens 

6. Other Business 

A. Discussion and update on recently adopted ordinances and resolutions.  See memorandum 

dated November 11, 2020 from City Clerk Shavala Moore.  Also, see attached supporting 

documentation. 

7. Public Hearings 

A. Public Hearing to consider the rezoning of 2154 Rugby Ave from R1 - Low Density 

Residential to R2 - Medium Density Residential Zoning District.  The Planning 

Commission heard this application at their October 26, 2020 meeting and recommended 

approval with a condition.  See memorandum dated November 6, 2020 from City Planner 

Michelle Alexander.  Also, see attached supporting documentation. Ward 1. 

ACTION: 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 



Regular Session Meeting Agenda November 16, 2020 

Mayor & City Council Page 2 Printed 11/12/2020 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

8. Bids, Change Order Requests and Contracts 

A. Consideration of and action on a request for approval of a contract for services for the 

design of the bridge to cross Camp Creek tributary between Yale and Columbia Avenue 

within the Six West development.  See memorandum dated November 12, 2020 from 

Clearly College Park Executive Director Artie Jones, III recommending approval for an 

amount of approximately $311,000.  Also, see attached supporting documentation. 

ACTION: 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

B. Consideration of and action on a request for approval of a one (1) year extension of the 

current annual contract agreement with Utility Services Incorporated for the City of 

College Park’s two (2) elevated water tanks located at W. Fayetteville Road and 

Charlestown Drive.  See memorandum dated November 5, 2020 from Director of Public 

Works Mike Mason requesting approval in the amount of $23,717.00 annually.  Also, see 

attached background information.  This is a budgeted item.  Wards 2 and 3. 

ACTION: 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

9. Unfinished (Old) Business 

10. New Business 

A. Consideration of and action on revisions to City Ordinance - Post-Development 

Stormwater Management for New Development and Redevelopment to improve the City’s 

ability to control the quality and quantity of stormwater runoff discharged from 

development.  See memorandum dated November 6, 2020 from City Engineer Loretta 

Washington.  Also, see attached proposed revisions to City Code, Chapter 10 - Municipal 

Utilities and Services, Article VII. Divisions 1 & 2 - Sections 10-190 thru 10-206. 

ACTION: 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

B. Consideration of and action on a request to approve City Holidays for Calendar Year 2021.  

See memorandum dated November 9, 2020 from City Manager Terrence R. Moore.  Also, 

see attached proposed holiday schedule for 2021. 

ACTION: 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 



Regular Session Meeting Agenda November 16, 2020 

Mayor & City Council Page 3 Printed 11/12/2020 

C. Consideration of and action on a request for approval of the City of College Park Mayor 

and City Council Meetings schedule for calendar year 2021.  See memorandum dated 

November 12, 2020 from City Manager Terrence R. Moore.  Also, see attached proposed 

City of College Park 2021 Council Meetings schedule. 

ACTION: 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

11. City Attorney's Report 

12. City Manager's Report 

A. Consideration of appointments for the Comprehensive Plan Steering Committee. The 

Atlanta Regional Commission (ARC) was approved to provide services to update the City 

of College Park Comprehensive Plan.  See memorandum dated November 9, 2020 from 

City Planner Michelle Alexander.  Also, see attached supporting documentation. 

ACTION: 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

B. Discussion and update on top ten delinquent property tax payers.  See memorandum dated 

November 12, 2020 from  Director of Finance & Accounting Althea Philord-Bradley.  

Also, see attached background information.  NO ACTION REQUIRED. 

C. Discussion and update on top ten delinquent utility customer accounts.  See memorandum 

dated November 11, 2020 from the Director of Finance & Accounting Althea Philord-

Bradley.  Also, see attached background information.  NO ACTION REQUIRED. 

13. Report of Mayor and Council 

14. Executive Session 

15. Approval of Executive Session Minutes 

16. Adjournment 



   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8408  

Updated: 10/15/2020 11:11 AM by Shavala Moore  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: October 15, 2020 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

THROUGH: Terrence R. Moore, City Manager 

 

FROM: Shavala Moore, City Clerk 

 

RE:  Regular Session Minutes dated November 2, 2020 

 

 

See attached Regular Session Minutes dated November 2, 2020. 

 

 

Thank you. 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 RS110220 (DOCX) 

 

Review: 

 Shavala Moore Completed 11/12/2020 10:20 AM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 11/12/2020 11:33 AM 

 Terrence R. Moore Completed 11/12/2020 11:36 AM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 11/16/2020 7:30 PM 

3.A

Packet Pg. 4



Regular Session 11/02/20 Page 1 of 22 

CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 1 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 2 

REGULAR SESSION 3 

NOVEMBER 2, 2020 4 

 5 

MINUTES 6 

 7 
Present: Mayor Bianca Motley Broom; Councilmen Ambrose Clay, Derrick Taylor, Ken 8 

Allen, and Roderick Gay; City Manager Terrence Moore; City Clerk Shavala 9 

Moore; City Attorney Winston Denmark. 10 

 11 

Absent: None.  12 

 13 
1. Opening Ceremonies. 14 

 15 

A. Pledge of allegiance to the flag. 16 

 17 

 B. Invocation by Pastor Marjorie Dent. 18 

 19 

2. Additions, Deletions, Amendments, Or Changes To The Agenda.  None.   20 

 21 

3. Presentation Of Minutes Of City Council. 22 

 23 

A. Regular Session held October 19, 2020. 24 

 25 

ACTION:  Councilman Clay moved to approve Regular Session Minutes dated October 19, 26 

 2020, as presented, seconded by Councilman Taylor and motion carried. (All Voted 27 

 Yes). 28 

 29 

B. Workshop Session held October 19, 2020. 30 

 31 

ACTION: Councilman Clay moved to approve Workshop Session Minutes dated October 19, 32 

2020, as presented, seconded by Councilman Taylor and motion carried.  (All Voted 33 

Yes). 34 

 35 

4. Proclamations, Resolutions, Plaques, And Announcements. 36 

 37 

A. Presentation of a proclamation to Pastor Marjorie Dent in appreciation of her 30 years of 38 

community service.  See attached proclamation. 39 

 40 

 Mayor Motley Broom presented the proclamation to Pastor Marjorie Dent for her 30 years 41 

 of community service.   42 

 43 

 Mrs. Dent said I am very appreciative of all.  It is a blessing to me but to others who can 44 

 follow an example.  Thank you for everything you have done in my life.    45 

 46 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 5



Regular Session 11/02/20 Page 2 of 22 

 

 Councilman Clay said I just wanted to say you bring credit to the city, credit to your ward, 47 

 and thank you. 48 

 49 

 Councilman Gay said I would like to congratulate Pastor Dent for her service as an 50 

 outstanding public servant as well as a neighbor.  I have enjoyed working with you while on 51 

 Council.  What I admire about you is regardless of the politics, you always put community 52 

 first.  So, congratulations and continue the good work.   53 

 54 

 Councilman Allen said I have known Mrs. Dent for just a few months, but it has been a 55 

 pleasure.  Every time I see a smile on your face, it makes my whole day. 56 

 57 

 Councilman Taylor said congratulations also.  You make young girls look up to you with 58 

 this thing you are doing.  Continue to do what you have been doing.   Thank you.   59 

 60 

 Mayor Motley Broom said we are so grateful for everything that you do for our community. 61 

 62 

 Mrs. Dent thanked everyone for their kind words.    63 

  64 

B. Presentation of a proclamation honoring City of College Park Recreation & Cultural Arts 65 

Program Coordinator, Jerisha Bronson, for her dedicated service and outstanding 66 

accomplishments.  67 

 68 

Mayor Motley Broom presented the proclamation to the City of College Park Recreation & 69 

Cultural Arts Program Coordinator Jerisha Bronson. 70 

 71 

Ms. Bronson said thank you for your support.  I started my first job in College Park as an 72 

intern with Bill Johnston, and a gymnast with Michelle at 6 years old.  I am truly excited, and 73 

I promise you I won’t let you down.   74 

 75 

 Mayor Motley Broom said I think we know that you will not let us down.  We are so 76 

 supportive of all of your efforts. 77 

 78 

 Councilman Allen said it’s been a pleasure knowing you.  You are so full of energy.  You 79 

 are like a little water bug going around and encouraging everybody and your enthusiasm for 80 

 youth.     81 

 82 

 Director of Recreation & Cultural Arts Michelle Johnson said you did grow up with me.  83 

 You are a lovely young lady.  We are super supportive of you and that you are a part of our 84 

 program. 85 

 86 

 Councilman Clay said thank you for bringing credit to our city and to all of us.  You 87 

 represent us well.   88 

   89 

   Ms. Bronson said thank you. 90 

 91 

 Councilman Taylor said congratulations for the things you have done and for your future.   92 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 6



Regular Session 11/02/20 Page 3 of 22 

 

 Mayor Motley Broom said we wish you the best of luck.   93 

 94 

C. Update on Clayton County’s Community Engagement Initiative by Nickel Works 95 

Consulting Project Manager Courtney Whitman.   96 

 97 

Ms. Whitman gave an update on Clayton County’s Community Engagement Initiative.  We 98 

are asking the City to engage with Clayton County with the best way that the community 99 

wants to be engaged, and the best way is to take our survey.  A flyer is one way; text Engage 100 

Clayton to 31996; or visit claytoncountyga.gov.  I can share my contact information in the 101 

chat, and if you have any questions, I welcome them now.   102 

 103 

 Mayor Motley Broom asked, any questions? 104 

 105 

 There were no questions made.   106 

 107 

 Ms. Whitman said thank you.     108 

    109 

5. Remarks Of Citizens. 110 

 111 

 City Clerk Shavala Moore read into the record the rules for making public comments.  112 

 Option 1, submit email to pcomment@collegeparkga.com no later than 7:00 p.m. on the 113 

 day of the council meeting; Option 2, submit your name to pcomment@collegeparkga.com  114 

 no later than 7:00 p.m. to let us know that you want to virtually attend the meeting to 115 

 comment online.  This will be the same way we do public comment.  The ones that did not 116 

 sign up by 7:00 p.m., we are allowing up to 5 individuals to speak for no more than 1 minute 117 

 per  person.  And one topic may not be discussed for more than 15 minutes.                118 

 119 

 a. City Clerk Shavala Moore read into the record comments from Ms. Kamilah Mashack.  120 

  No warehouse next to Phillips Park.    121 

  122 

 b. City Clerk Shavala Moore read into the record comments from Ms. Ayeola Kitwana.  I 123 

  do not want a warehouse built next to the park.      124 

 125 

 c. City Clerk Shavala Moore read into the record comments from Geraldine W. Goodwin.  126 

  No warehouse near park.  127 

 128 

d. City Clerk Shavala Moore read into the record comments from David.  Don’t need 129 

warehouse next to park.  Already too many tractor-trailers in area.  They come up on 130 

Herschel Road, especially at night.  Also, cemetery at J.T. Alexander and Atlanta Avenue 131 

still abandoned.      132 

 133 

e.  City Clerk Shavala Moore read into the record comments from Dorothy Kirk.  I’m134 

 opposed to a warehouse being built by our Phillips Park.     135 

 136 

 137 

 138 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 7



Regular Session 11/02/20 Page 4 of 22 

 

f. City Clerk Shavala Moore read into the record comments from Richard Harvey, 4617 139 

Winbrook Drive, College Park, Georgia.  No warehouse for College Park Ward 4, 140 

particularly not on the 18 acres next to the beautiful Charles Phillips Park.  We speak 141 

against the proposed bidding of a warehouse now or in the future.  No warehouse on the 142 

18 acres.        143 

 144 

g. City Clerk Shavala Moore read into the record comments from Rechelle Mason.  Hello 145 

City Council Members.  I reside at 4038 Jesse A. Dent, Jr. Road, College Park, Georgia.  146 

This is to voice my concern on approving warehouses next to Charles Phillips Park.  Our 147 

community deserves better and more than warehouses to take away from what we really 148 

need in this area; better community resources, food garden, and quality of living.  These 149 

are some of the resources we have been asking for.  I hope with all of the development 150 

going on in the City of College Park, our community is represented in a way we can see 151 

growth.  This is not only for our property values, but better living conditions, amenities, 152 

and constructive ways of beautifying our areas, not just the downtown.  Warehouses are 153 

not what we need surrounding us.  You don’t want them around you.  Thank you for your 154 

time and consideration.                  155 

           156 

h. City Clerk Shavala Moore read into the record comments from Jacqueline Robinson.  157 

Please, please don’t build a warehouse next to our park.  I think it is too dangerous for 158 

our children.  We deserve better.  Give us a grocery store or large community center that 159 

will cater to more than 50 people.         160 

 161 

i. City Clerk Shavala Moore read into the record comments from no name.  To whom it 162 

may concern, we, the concerned community that live by Phillips Park don’t need or want 163 

a warehouse by Phillips Park in our community.  Thanks for your understanding.       164 

 165 

j. City Clerk Shavala Moore read into the record other comments from Geraldine W. 166 

Goodwin.  No warehouse for Ward 4.  To whom this may concern.  We, again, are 167 

appealing to you for a Ward 4 community which is totally populated with senior citizens, 168 

who in most households have several medical issues.  In saying that, we do not need a 169 

warehouse or any provisions for a drive-up or drive-thru concert of any kind.  As we 170 

stated, we are a senior community.  We deserve as much peace and quiet as possible.   171 

Please do not allow this disturbance of our lives to take place.  We do not need this.  172 

Thank you from residents of Ward 4 for over 40 years.                      173 

 174 

k. City Clerk Shavala Moore read into the record comments from The Carmichaels, 2626 175 

Brandon Road, College Park, Georgia, 30337.  Please be advised that we are not okay 176 

with the changes to be considered.  We are a senior community.  No warehouse.  No 177 

drive-up concerts in our 18 acres in Ward 4.  Thanks.           178 

 179 

l. City Clerk Shavala Moore read into the record comments from Derick Williams.  Hello 180 

all.  My name is Derrick Williams.  I’m a resident of Ward 4.  My response to the 181 

warehouse being built and the drive-up concert is no.  What I would like to see is for 182 

Ward 4 to invest in entrepreneur business owners that live, work and play in Ward 4 and 183 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 8



Regular Session 11/02/20 Page 5 of 22 

 

develop a business coalition amongst one another and create a clear path for our young 184 

black kids.                 185 

 186 

m. City Clerk Shavala Moore read into the record comments from Mrs. Selissa Jefferson.  187 

As a community advocate, I oppose the proposal for a warehouse development in the 18 188 

acres located adjacent to the Charles Phillips Park.  Opposition of this type of 189 

development should be apparent to anyone with intelligence.  I’m sure you have 190 

knowledge, read, or heard and denounced many communities against any warehouse 191 

within a tenth of a mile radius to a residential community.  How could anyone with 192 

intelligence allow a development of this nature to be built next to a community park?   193 

We will gather all community stakeholders to fight and protest any development at the 194 

18 acres which devalues our residential property and disrupts our quality of living.  I 195 

would never be a complainer, but I always fight for the rights of our children, families, 196 

and citizens in College Park to live a productive and progressive quality of life and 197 

lifestyle because I have care, concern and consideration for others.  If you are a public 198 

servant, then your priority of service is to serve the needs of the residents.  Our need for 199 

the 18 acres should be for BIDA, Council, Mayor, or Councilman Gay to create a motion 200 

to turn the location into the following:   201 

 202 

   1. A conservatory by expanding the park into the 18 acres just like Piedmont 203 

   Park Conservatory.                     204 

       2. Utilize the location for additional community parking. 205 

    3. Build the Jamestown Community Center.  206 

 207 

 Mrs. Jefferson said the development of a conservatory park with the parking over at 208 

Jamestown Community Center are the highest and best use developments needed for the 209 

vacant, blighted, and deteriorated 18 acres.  Consider this as our notice for immediate 210 

opposition and cancellation of all warehouse development proposals in the 18 acres 211 

located adjacent to Charles Phillips Park.  Thank you for your time, service, and 212 

accountability to College Park citizens.  Our children matter.  Our families matter.  Our 213 

quality of living in the City of College Park matters.      214 

 215 

n. City Clerk Shavala Moore read into the record comments from CoCo Bright, 2623 216 

Brandon Road, College Park, Georgia.  No warehouse.   No drive-up concerts on the 18 217 

acres located in Ward 4.  We are a senior community, and the above proposals would 218 

cause safety hazards to our neighborhoods.  The GICC parking lots are the prescribed 219 

location for drive-up concerts.  Thank you in advance.                   220 

 221 

o. City Clerk Shavala Moore read into the record comments from Kenyon Martin.  As a 222 

resident of Ward 4 for 30 years and a student at Lakeshore High School, I cannot 223 

understand why it is so difficult for our areas to beautify itself.  We do not need any more 224 

warehouses along the Roosevelt Highway Corridor.  If this were Roswell or Alpharetta, 225 

this would not be a problem.  Therefore, I ask for all City members to stand for us for 226 

what is right and just.                227 

 228 

 229 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 9



Regular Session 11/02/20 Page 6 of 22 

 

p. City Clerk Shavala Moore read into the record comments from Lucy Motley, 3227 230 

Glenda Drive, College Park, Georgia.  No warehouses being built in the Jamestown area.  231 

Please Mayor Bianca Motley Broom and Councilman Gay.  I’d like to begin by thanking 232 

both of you, along with all of the staff of the City of College Park, for all of your hard 233 

work and efforts to ensure that the residents here are safe, the City is welcoming, pleasant, 234 

and a place to live and work.  I hear rumors, and I hope that is what they are, as I have 235 

not seen in print anywhere that there is a possibility that the area behind Phillips Park 236 

may be leased or sold to become a location for warehouses.  This is very disturbing if 237 

true, as it is a residential area.  The parks need to be well maintained and beautiful to the 238 

corner of Riverdale Road and Herschel Road, as well as provide a safe place for children 239 

and families of the City of College Park to enjoy themselves.  Placing warehouses in the 240 

area would bring many negatives; decreased property values, tractor-trailer trucks driving 241 

through the neighborhood, vandalisms, eyesore, et cetera.  I hope that this is just a rumor 242 

and I’m overreacting.  As a long-time resident of 29 years, I would be vehemently 243 

opposed to the idea of placing warehouses in my community.  It has always been such a 244 

pleasant place for families to reside.  I would hope we can put our creative juices to work 245 

and think of a better way and a more friendly and productive way to utilize the land.  I 246 

would greatly appreciate someone addressing my concerns.                 247 

 248 

q. City Clerk Shavala Moore read into the record comments from Mrs. Jessie Phillips, 4124 249 

Williamsburg Drive, College Park, Ga., 30337.  Good evening, Mayor & Council.  I am 250 

writing to express my concerns with reference to the proposed concert in Ward 4.  Ward 251 

4 is basically a senior resident community.  We are not considered on any other things 252 

that are brought into our ward that we are certainly against.  We were never considered 253 

on the soccer field, the splash pad, and now a concert.  We do not use any of these things, 254 

and we do not want them in our community.  They only benefit the people of our 255 

community.  They are of no benefit to seniors, and we don’t want the noise to be extra 256 

traffic.  We would like some representation to consider seniors.  We are not against 257 

progress; however, we would like to be included and have a voice.  Please consider us as 258 

seniors and not supposed to have this noise all around us.  We just want a safe, quiet 259 

community.  I appreciate your consideration.  Thank you for allowing me to express my 260 

concerns.                          261 

 262 

r. City Clerk Shavala Moore read into the record comments from Sandra.  No to warehouse.    263 

 264 

 s. City Clerk Shavala Moore read into the record comments from David Cole, 4325 York 265 

 Road, College Park, Georgia.   I am writing as a concerned citizen in the great City of 266 

 College Park.  I moved to the city in 2016 because of community involvement, well 267 

 financed and structured government, with a progressive outlook that included all 268 

 citizens.  These things changed, but not for the good of the entire community.  My 269 

 purpose for this email comment is for things happening in Ward 4 that I wasn’t aware of 270 

 until now.  What concert is planned hosted by Councilman Roderick Gay?  Has the 271 

 entire Council agreed that Ward 4 will inherit a water park near the new soccer field 272 

 that Ward 4 citizens can’t use?  I believe that any taxpayer funds can be better used to 273 

 protect and provide for citizens we currently have, especially the seniors and the youths.  274 

 That is how we promote the great City of College Park, which will increase our 275 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 10



Regular Session 11/02/20 Page 7 of 22 

 

 population by bringing in more middle-class families.  And if I might add, I’m not 276 

 closed-minded to progressive ideas that we as a city can enhance our communities, but 277 

 share the information with the citizens, before the day of your vote.                        278 

 279 

t. City Clerk Shavala Moore read into the record comments from Minnie Jenkins, 4062 280 

Glenda Drive, College Park, Georgia.  Ward 4 is a community with a large number of 281 

seniors that have invested in College Park through the years.  Hosting concerts would not 282 

increase the quality of life for Ward 4 members, but only draw increased potential for the 283 

following activities: 284 

 285 

    1. Additional noise. 286 

    2. Pollution. 287 

    3. Potential safety concerns with an aging community. 288 

 289 

 Ms. Jenkins said as a community, we do not understand how these decisions are made 290 

without having any community input.  Splash pad, it seems we are going to put in a splash 291 

pad in Ward 4, when we have a lovely pool and water center as a part of College Park 292 

Recreation for all wards to enjoy.  Our children have many memories going to that water 293 

park each summer and even taking swimming lessons there from camp offerings.  The 294 

current water area has dedicated staff to ensure the safety of the water, patrons, and 295 

actively protect the safety of children as they are playing.  Placing a splash pad in Ward 4 296 

without additional staffing to make sure rules are being adhered to and sanitation measures 297 

kept has the potential for disaster.  We can actively see with COVID-19 that each 298 

individual’s understanding of safety and sanitation is very different.  The park is currently 299 

used by seniors for daily exercise who enjoy hearing kids play on the playground facilities.  300 

In doing some research, we would like to pass along information to be read at your 301 

convenience from the CDC’s website.     302 

 303 

 Mayor Motley Broom asked, is there anyone who would like to speak for 1 minute or 304 

less?  We have 5 openings.                              305 

   306 

 Mr. Charles Jefferson said he relinquishes his time to his wife, Selissa. 307 

 308 

 Mayor Motley Broom said Mrs. Jefferson spoke earlier.                      309 

 310 

 Mayor Motley Broom asked, is there anyone else? 311 

 312 

 There were no further comments made.      313 

 314 

6. Other Business. 315 

 316 

A. Update on the Advanced Metering Infrastructure (AMI), billing interface, and other related 317 

software.    318 

 319 

City Manager Terrence Moore said I would like to submit some ancillary information, if I 320 

may be permitted.  321 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 11



Regular Session 11/02/20 Page 8 of 22 

 

Mayor Motley Broom said go ahead.   322 

 323 

City Manager Terrence Moore said I asked Hugh to provide a succinct debriefing immediately 324 

after the update regarding the AMI.  I would also like to discuss some other formalized 325 

assignments for an Emergency Management Coordinator.  It is not an additional new position, 326 

but it augments a responsibility for an existing position.  I’d like to make arrangements 327 

administratively to get to that place, as well as to be in position to outline a formal list of 328 

protocols associated with future opportunities to be responsive and offer external 329 

communication with respect to emergency issues and challenges along these lines.  I’ve also 330 

asked Chief Information Officer Michael Hicks to be in position to talk about some 331 

technological capabilities currently available to the City of College Park, in terms of our 332 

emergency management response activities.  That is a bit more information than the agenda 333 

calls for.   334 

 335 

Director of Power Hugh Richardson gave a power point presentation update on the AMI 336 

System, to include meter performance and the broken poles and tree down due to the storm 337 

damage.                    338 

 339 

 Councilman Allen said you had 11 personnel for cleanup. 340 

 341 

 Director of Power Hugh Richardson said yes, sir.  Georgia Power crews were out there 342 

 getting the tree up, but the rest was handled by our own crews.   343 

 344 

 Councilman Clay said you have had a lot of positive comments from citizens, and you had 345 

 a surprise today.  346 

  347 

Director of Power Hugh Richardson said I did.  The Neighborhood Association gave us a gift 348 

and this other picture here (indicating).  This is the structure that was damaged.  It is 115,000 349 

volts.  That is what the tree took out. 350 

 351 

 Councilman Clay said they cut away to protect the power lines.  Why don’t they require the 352 

 trees not be higher than a certain point?  353 

         354 

Director of Power Hugh Richardson said that was one of my questions.  The tree was over 355 

100 feet tall. 356 

 357 

Mayor Motley Broom asked, any other questions? 358 

 359 

 Councilman Clay said I have one with regard to the water meters.  You indicated that we 360 

 had 37 people that you notified about water leaks.  Were all those new water leaks, or is that 361 

 a cumulative total?  I’m trying to get a feel for how many of those you notified last month, 362 

 and  they still have the water leak.  Did you notify them this month? 363 

 364 

 Director of Power Hugh Richardson said these are all new. 365 

  366 

 Councilman Clay said that’s amazing.   367 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 12



Regular Session 11/02/20 Page 9 of 22 

 

 Councilman Allen asked, what about our rereads? 368 

 369 

 Director of Power Hugh Richardson said the 3 there are those that are read because of 370 

 communication issues.  There are probably 50 or more that we are rereading to verify some 371 

 reading.  I didn’t count those.   372 

   373 

 Mayor Motley Broom asked, are there any other questions for Hugh? 374 

 375 

 There were no further questions made.           376 

 377 

 Councilman Clay said I am very pleased. 378 

 379 

 City Manager Terrence Moore said I talked a little bit about an assignment of an emergency 380 

 management  coordinator to help us engage with the departments involved in emergency 381 

 response.  In this week’s report, I will provide a more formal written update in terms of  how 382 

 that will work.  In the meantime, I would like to discuss some of the technological 383 

 capabilities so we can enhance historic communication in that regard, based on some of the 384 

 questions that did come up over the last few days.   385 

 386 

 City Manager Terrence Moore said I did host a comprehensive meeting with a number of 387 

 department directors involved in emergency response related communications protocols 388 

 this morning.  And thus, my interest in sharing the background as I just did.  However, I 389 

 wanted to give Michael Hicks a moment to discuss briefly what our capabilities are, and 390 

 likewise, let us execute moving forward.          391 

 392 

 Chief Information Officer Michael Hicks said one of the things that I investigated this week 393 

 because of constant emails about why we can’t do push notifications out to our citizens.  I 394 

 was going to bring a brand new mass notification system to the Council, until I found out 395 

 that we had the capability in-house through Code Red for push notifications.  I will be 396 

 looking at those functions and features and setting up a test environment.   397 

 398 

 Mayor Motley Broom said I’m still surprised that a push notification is not an option on an 399 

 app.             400 

 401 

 Chief Information Officer Michael Hicks said that system was designed for citizen’s 402 

 response and work order system.  It has a work order system.  Fifteen people put in a 403 

 notification about an electric call issue.  I can send a notification to those 15 people with an 404 

 update, but not a capability of push notification, but we have that through our Code Red 405 

 software that we have in-house, and I will be looking at that.   406 

 407 

 Mayor Motley Broom asked, would citizens opt in for those text messages, or just text the 408 

 numbers we have already in the Code Red system.   409 

 410 

 Chief Information Officer Michael Hicks said it would be the numbers that we currently 411 

 have.  412 

 413 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 13



Regular Session 11/02/20 Page 10 of 22 

 

 Mayor Motley Broom said that would be great.  As it stands now, you can go to 414 

 collegeparkga.com and sign up for Code Red for alerts or email messages and the like.  Do 415 

 we have a word?                         416 

 417 

 Chief Information Officer Michael Hicks said no.   418 

 419 

 Mayor Motley Broom asked, are you anticipating that an emergency coordinator would be 420 

 writing some of this down so everyone has an understanding.  Because I think we have the 421 

 potential to have at least one point person who is responsible for disseminating information, 422 

 so everyone has an understanding of what is going on.   423 

 424 

 City Manager Terrence Moore said yes, ma’am.     425 

 426 

 Councilman Clay said I had several people that said they tried to call the police emergency 427 

 number to report a power issue and so forth.  Why can’t we use i-Notify CP to have a 428 

 category that says, “My Power is Out”.  Along those lines, we have a lot of LED lights that 429 

 are turning blue.  There is a defect in the manufacturing process.  I reported a lot of them.  430 

 Citizens have reported some of them to me, and I have reported those.  I asked that a 431 

 category be added to say, we have a blue LED streetlight in front of my house.  Has that 432 

 category been added?  And can we add a category just to say, my power is out? 433 

 434 

 City Manager Terrence Moore said part of the discussion over the weekend did include a 435 

 brief piece to that effect.                  436 

 437 

 Chief Information Officer Michael Hicks said we can add those tomorrow.   438 

 439 

 Councilman Allen asked, do you need any more information, as far as where the pole is or 440 

 anything?   441 

   442 

       Director of Power Hugh Richardson said it would be in the comment section of the i- 443 

 Notify.    444 

 445 

 Councilman Clay said you can drag the marker on the map two houses down and place it 446 

 there.  It doesn’t have to be where you are standing with the phone.        447 

 448 

 Chief Information Officer Michael Hicks said yes.    449 

 450 

B. Discussion and update on recently adopted ordinances and resolutions.   451 

 452 

 There was no discussion on this item.   453 

 454 

7. Public Hearings. 455 

 456 

A. Consideration of and action on a request to set a Public Hearing to consider the rezoning 457 

of 2154 Rugby Ave from R1 - Low Density Residential to R2 - Medium Density 458 

Residential Zoning District. A Public Hearing date of November 16, 2020 is recommended.   459 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 14



Regular Session 11/02/20 Page 11 of 22 

 

City Planner Michelle Alexander explained the request.  460 

 461 

 Councilman Allen asked, did they want to make it 75 X 150, or one be 100 wide and the other 462 

 be 50 wide?    463 

 464 

 City Planner Michelle Alexander said (2) lots that are 75 foot wide each.    465 

 466 

 Councilman Clay said split it in half.  467 

 468 

ACTION: Councilman Clay moved to approve a request from City Planner Michelle Alexander 469 

to set a Public Hearing to consider the rezoning of 2154 Rugby Ave from R1 - Low 470 

Density Residential to R2 - Medium Density Residential Zoning District, seconded 471 

by Councilman Taylor and motion carried.  (All Voted Yes). 472 

 473 

8. Bids, Change Order Requests And Contracts. 474 

 475 

A. Consideration of and action on a request for approval of the replacement of the lighting 476 

controls system at the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) Regional Headquarters.  477 

 478 

City Manager Terrence Moore said there are a series of a fairly non-capital improvement 479 

programming for the FAA Facility.  The total budget is coming from the FAA funds of 480 

$216,973.00.  Ron Wilkerson represents the project management side and is with us this 481 

evening to address any specific questions or concerns.  Otherwise, the recommendation 482 

stands.   483 

 484 

 Councilman Clay said it’s our building.  And hopefully, the FAA is going to be there for a 485 

 long time.  They have been a good tenant for us.  Since it is our building, I don’t know why 486 

 we shouldn’t have someone attend the commissioning pre meeting.  Is that planned? 487 

 488 

 City Manager Terrence Moore said when capital projects are at the level of this are engaged 489 

 as an interface with the Department of Inspections to discuss permitting issues.  Despite this 490 

 being a federal operation, it is a City of College Park facility owned.  And thus, the 491 

 permitting process must ensue.          492 

 493 

 Councilman Clay said the City will have a representative outside of Mr. Wilkerson at that 494 

 meeting, correct? 495 

 496 

 City Manager Terrence Moore said that’s correct.  497 

  498 

ACTION: Councilman Clay moved to approve a request from City Manager Terrence R. Moore 499 

on the replacement of the lighting controls system at the Federal Aviation 500 

Administration (FAA) Regional Headquarters, seconded by Councilman Allen and 501 

 motion carried.  (All Voted Yes). 502 

 503 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 15



Regular Session 11/02/20 Page 12 of 22 

 

B. Consideration of and action on a request for approval of an agreement between the City of 504 

College Park and the Atlanta Regional Commission (ARC) to proceed with the services of 505 

the ARC to update the City of College Park Comprehensive Plan.   506 

 507 

City Planner Michelle Alexander said ARC will help us update the CP.  It lays out the scope 508 

and the intended responsibilities for the City to thrive for this project.  They are requesting 509 

proof of an MOU.     510 

 511 

City Manager Terrence Moore said they only guarantee one public meeting.   512 

 513 

City Planner Michelle Alexander said we are eager to go out and work with the community 514 

to supplement some of those efforts.   515 

 516 

 Councilman Clay asked, are there any changes to the agreement from what we saw at the 517 

 last presentation?  518 

 519 

 City Planner Michelle Alexander said there are some slight changes. 520 

 521 

 Councilman Clay asked, do you have any problem taking on that responsibility? 522 

 523 

 City Planner Michelle Alexander said no.  The other thing ARC is adding is they are 524 

 providing on-line support.  So, there will be a lot of communication that we can make 525 

 available about the project.           526 

 527 

ACTION: Councilman Clay moved to approve a request from City Planner Michelle 528 

 Alexander on an agreement between the City of College Park and the Atlanta 529 

 Regional Commission (ARC) to proceed with the services of the ARC to update the 530 

 City of College Park Comprehensive Plan, seconded by Councilman Taylor and  531 

 motion carried.  (All Voted Yes). 532 

 533 

C. Consideration of the Southern Fulton County Comprehensive Transportation Plan 534 

(SFCTP).  See memorandum dated October 29, 2020 from Special Projects Administrator 535 

Jackson Myers.  Also, see attached supporting documentation. 536 

 537 

Mayor Motley Broom said I did want to bring to the group that I had some preliminary 538 

conversation with MARTA about one of the things that will be a key, in terms of our 539 

conversation for the next TSPLOST, which is the plan at this point to attempt to get Bus Rapid 540 

Transit on South Fulton Parkway, and that would mean for our city and others in South Fulton.  541 

Certainly, South Fulton Parkway is not an artery that touches much of College Park; we do 542 

have a little bit.  It is something we need to keep our radar on.  The Southern Fulton 543 

Comprehensive Transportation Plan had a conversation about BRT on 29.  That touches 6 or 544 

8 of the cities within the South Fulton Region, and we know that 29 is a heavy used artery to 545 

get people north and south.  It is something that should be on your radar.  Does anyone have 546 

any questions about this plan? 547 

 548 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 16



Regular Session 11/02/20 Page 13 of 22 

 

 Councilman Clay said I forwarded my questions that I brought up at the last meeting.  I’m 549 

 good.  Bus Rapid Transit on 29 requires a separate dedicated lane, does it not? 550 

 551 

 Mayor Motley Broom said yes.   552 

 553 

 Councilman Clay said that would be difficult to do in the City of College Park downtown. 554 

 555 

 Mayor Motley Broom agreed.  It would require an ask of us in regard to the portion of the 556 

 TSPLOST that we would take in.  Is that ask worth it? 557 

 558 

 Councilman Allen asked, did they take these plans into consideration of Six West at all? 559 

 560 

 City Planner Michelle Alexander said yes.   561 

 562 

ACTION: Councilman Clay moved to approve a request from Special Projects Administrator 563 

   Jackson Myers on the Southern Fulton County Comprehensive Transportation Plan 564 

   (SFCTP), seconded by Councilman Allen and motion carried.  (All Voted Yes). 565 

 566 

D. Consideration of and action on a request for approval to renew end user licenses for 567 

Microsoft 365.  568 

 569 

Chief Information Officer Michael Hicks said this is just a renewal for Microsoft licenses.  570 

We have 350 E3’s and 150 E1’s.  The price is spread along all the departments.   571 

 572 

ACTION: Councilman Clay moved to approve a request from Chief Information Officer 573 

Michael Hicks to renew end-user licenses for Microsoft 365, seconded by 574 

Councilman Taylor and motion carried.  (All Voted Yes). 575 

 576 

9. Unfinished (Old) Business.  None.   577 

 578 

10. New Business. 579 

 580 

A. Policy guidance regarding contracts for special events.   581 

 582 

City Attorney Winston Denmark said the issue is the contracting of certain city officials.  As 583 

a practical matter, the Mayor & Council has all contracting authority in this city.  However, a 584 

purchasing policy creates certain exceptions.  City Manager has the ability to enter into a 585 

contract at a threshold of $10,000.00.  Department heads have a similar amount under 586 

$1,000.00.  It came to the attention of Mayor & Council that the GICC Director has also 587 

entered into contracts that have not necessarily been approved by Mayor & Council.   588 

 589 

We wanted to create a policy to allow that to continue because the GICC is a fast pace 590 

environment, and the director has had to contract in a hurry.  It is a process that does not lend 591 

itself to every contract coming back to Mayor & Council that only meets twice a month.            592 

 593 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 17



Regular Session 11/02/20 Page 14 of 22 

 

So, we tried to create a policy that created a certain levity of accountability and awareness of 594 

control by the Mayor & Council, but at the same time allow the GICC Director to function 595 

and operate in the fast pace market that it operates in.  So, we prepared a proposed amendment 596 

and ordinance.  All contract authority within the city resides with the governing body, subject 597 

to certain exceptions that are enshrined or memorialized in our policy.  I  presented one 598 

version and a different version.  Ultimately, Mayor & Council will decide what, if anything, 599 

is to be done to have 2 versions.  I leave it there. 600 

 601 

Mayor Motley Broom said in regard to the contracts that are signed with the GICC, are they 602 

standard contracts?  603 

 604 

Director of the GICC Mercedes Miller said yes, ma’am, they are.  We do have an addendum 605 

that goes with some of the contracts. 606 

 607 

Mayor Motley Broom said if the same contract is going to be used at the GICC, and that 608 

contract has been approved by Mayor & Council, then is this policy necessary? 609 

 610 

Director of the GICC Mercedes Miller said yes, it is necessary.  There are times that we have 611 

to rent tables or extra chairs, but the client pays the cost for it.     612 

 613 

Mayor Motley Broom said all right.   614 

 615 

 Councilman Gay asked, are you saying that prior to this proposal to amend the ordinance, 616 

 that there has not been a formal procedure in this ordinance that allows Mercedes to enter 617 

 into a contract?     618 

 619 

  City Attorney Winston Denmark said there is nothing there that would have allowed that. 620 

 621 

 Councilman Gay said so prior to us amending this ordinance, for the record, then Mercedes 622 

 had been able to bind the City in our contracts, prior to this amended ordinance? 623 

 624 

City Attorney Winston Denmark said she certainly has entered into contracts in that regard.  625 

Those contracts are now fully consummated, and I don’t think they can be undone.  However, 626 

there could be a very good argument that the contracts were not binding and enforceable, in 627 

as much as they were not approved by the Mayor & Council who ultimately has the authority 628 

to do so, subject to certain exceptions which were not applicable. 629 

 630 

 Councilman Gay said I’m glad this came to light, though that bears to say that when we 631 

 were talking about an event at the BIDA property, the conversation was that nobody could 632 

 bind the City but Mayor & Council.  I am glad that happened so we can now modify our 633 

 ordinance.    634 

 635 

 Mayor Motley Broom said Section 12-3, No. 4 was not an area that was changed.  But since 636 

 we are here, back on packet page 153, an employee that makes unauthorized purchases will 637 

 be held personally liable for the purchases.  Does that include us as elected officials? 638 

 639 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 18



Regular Session 11/02/20 Page 15 of 22 

 

City Attorney Winston Denmark said I would not say so.  I would point out the fact that that 640 

practice persisted for a period of time doesn’t give it legitimacy.  There is case law in Georgia 641 

going back 100 years that says the City could.  This policy is necessary, so we don’t open the 642 

door to that argument in the future.           643 

 644 

 Councilman Clay said when I read the changes that Winston had made, one thing that struck 645 

 me was that this says that contracts that didn’t have to come to Council are now going to 646 

 come to Council.  I want this to be clear.  It means that we are going to be seeing contracts 647 

 come up for approval, and we should talk about that.  We don’t need a lot of extra work put 648 

 on our plate.  Do you agree with that Winston? 649 

 650 

 City Attorney Winston Denmark said yes.  Both would have to come back to Council.  The 651 

second version I drafted; I don’t believe it is the ones above the City Manager’s threshold.  So 652 

maybe Mercedes could say above $10,000.00, or all of them.    653 

 654 

 Councilman Clay said the “whereas” is what was not clear to me.   655 

 656 

 Mayor Motley Broom said unless there is an objection by the Body, if these are contracts in 657 

 the ordinary scope of what the GICC does, then we have the opportunity to put them on a 658 

 consent agenda for ratification at a meeting.        659 

 660 

 Councilman Clay said we have the nature of the contract and an indication of whether it is a 661 

 standard contract, or if there were some adjustments that had to be made with it.  It could be 662 

 3 or 4 bullets under a listing.  Does that make sense?      663 

 664 

 Mayor Motley Broom said so, essentially the agenda transmittal indicates what they are, the 665 

 nature of them, and gives us quick and dirty details.   666 

 667 

 Councilman Gay asked, does that also apply to other departments?  For example, recreation.  668 

 There are multiple agreements that we enter into.  It’s not just the GICC.     669 

 670 

 Mayor Motley Broom said but the ones above $10,000.00, does that come to us already?  671 

 Are you suggesting that we put all the contracts into a consent agenda? 672 

 673 

 Councilman Gay said prior to it becoming an issue, it was customary that other departments 674 

 have been behind the city.  The programs don’t come to us.  We enter into agreements with 675 

 people all the time.     676 

 677 

Director of the GICC Mercedes Miller said it will be hard to bring the contracts with all we 678 

do.  Do you want 50 different copies of a contract for each event that we do?  We have some 679 

groups that have one name but different contracts under that name.   680 

 681 

 Councilman Gay asked, are we saying that a director can bind the city in an agreement; is 682 

 that what we are saying?     683 

  684 

Director of the GICC Mercedes Miller said no.  The City Manager can  under $10,000.00.      685 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 19



Regular Session 11/02/20 Page 16 of 22 

 

  Councilman Gay asked, are we saying an employee can bind the City, regardless of the 686 

 money amount?  687 

 688 

City Attorney Winston Denmark said yes.  Department directors have authority under 689 

$1,000.00, and City Manager has authority from $1,000.00 to $10,000.00.  But anything 690 

above $10,000.00 comes to the Council.  That has always been the case.  But we are saying 691 

now that the GICC Director has that similar authority up to $10,000.00.  And anything related 692 

to the GICC above $10,000.00, City Manager could do those contracts.  It could be half a 693 

million dollars but ratified by the City Council at the next regular meeting.           694 

 695 

Director of the GICC Mercedes Miller said when we do a contract, we are binding clients to 696 

pay the City.   697 

 698 

City Attorney Winston Denmark said it’s a contract we are binding the City to perform under 699 

the terms of a contract.  It doesn’t necessarily relate to money.    700 

 701 

Director of the GICC Mercedes Miller said it is going to be hard.   702 

 703 

Mayor Motley Broom asked, how about a spreadsheet? 704 

 705 

Councilman Clay said sounds good.  706 

 707 

Mayor Motley Broom said we get the first of the spreadsheet, the terms, and the spreadsheet 708 

is what you submit; is that doable? 709 

 710 

Director of the GICC Mercedes Miller said okay.   711 

   712 

Councilman Clay asked, do you have a report that your system puts out that you can just give 713 

us a copy of that? 714 

 715 

Director of the GICC Mercedes Miller said yes.  How often do you want it? 716 

 717 

 Councilman Clay said what I would like to know is the name of the group, the amount of the 718 

 contract, the date, and is there any variation from the standard?  Can you have columns with 719 

 boxes with special conditions?  Is there a report like that that your system puts out?  We 720 

 are trying to minimize the work all around.   721 

 722 

Director of the GICC Mercedes Miller said the month end gives you the name of the group, 723 

food and beverage, and the totals.        724 

       725 

 Councilman Clay said ratification takes place after we are bound anyhow.  726 

 727 

Director of the GICC Mercedes Miller said exactly.   728 

 729 

City Attorney Winston Denmark said until the Mayor & Council says we agree to be bound 730 

here, you could walk away from it, after we have signed all the paperwork and money has 731 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 20



Regular Session 11/02/20 Page 17 of 22 

 

exchanged.  That is why I think it is important that we actually ratify these.  The vendor is not 732 

bound because they can say we have seen this contract, but I change my mind, and they could 733 

walk away from this.  We don’t have a legally binding contract, until the Council agrees, and 734 

you can agree after the fact by ratifying it.   735 

 736 

Director of the GICC Mercedes Miller said we have been doing these contracts for 30 years.  737 

The legal department approved the standard. 738 

 739 

 Councilman Clay said get the list of all the ones that were standard and their consents, and 740 

 then we have us a second consent agenda that had any variations.      741 

 742 

 Councilman Allen said every single contract has a little variation to it. 743 

 744 

 Councilman Clay asked, how can we make this as simple as possible Mercedes? 745 

 746 

Director of the GICC Mercedes Miller asked, can I look at the reports that we can pull out of 747 

our system first, and then I can come back and tell you what we can pull out of the system?    748 

   749 

 Mayor Motley Broom said sounds good.   750 

 751 

ACTION: Councilman Clay moved to approve to table the policy regarding contracts for special 752 

events, until the next Regular Session of Mayor & Council to be held November 16, 753 

2020, seconded by Councilman Allen and motion carried.  (All Voted Yes). 754 

 755 

B. Considerations regarding term limits.  See memorandum dated October 28, 2020 from City 756 

Manager Terrence R. Moore.  Also, see attached supporting documentation. 757 

 758 

 Councilman Allen said when 3 of us were running for election, everybody was asking us to 759 

 consider term limits of what Mayor & Council could serve, and I thought it was a good time 760 

 to bring it up and have a discussion.     761 

 762 

 Mayor Motley Broom said we need help from the General Assembly.   763 

 764 

 City Attorney Winston Denmark said it changes the form of our government. So, you have to 765 

get that changed and approved by the General Assembly.  If it were the will of Mayor & 766 

Council to pursue that Charter change, while you are under the hood, you may want to adjust 767 

some other things as well.  But, yes, we would have to do a term limit change by the General 768 

Assembly.   769 

 770 

 Councilman Allen asked, Home Rule doesn’t cover that? 771 

 772 

City Attorney Winston Denmark said no, sir.   773 

 774 

 Councilman Gay said there were only 2 candidates running on term limits, for the record, 775 

 Pamela Gay and John Duke.    776 

 777 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 21



Regular Session 11/02/20 Page 18 of 22 

 

 Councilman Allen said okay.   778 

 779 

 Mayor Motley Broom said if there is a desire amongst the Body, I am supportive of it.    780 

  781 

  Councilman Clay said let me give you my opinion on it.  You should be willing to sign up 782 

 for 2 terms, minimum.  There is no way to force you to do that.  And the voters may change 783 

 that on you, but you should be willing for 2 terms.  Secondly, after 3 terms, it’s time for a 784 

 change.  I’m in my fourth term right now.  I wasn’t planning to run again, but I ran because 785 

 of the transition with Six West.  I’m not running again.  But I think 3 terms is probably a 786 

 good limit.  I wouldn’t go more than 4 terms.  After you are on too long, you get too 787 

 entrenched, maybe stale.              788 

 789 

Councilman Taylor said if somebody beats you, you are gone.  That is my take on it.    790 

 791 

 Councilman Allen said I am thinking 2 terms.  When Council gave Terrence the right to hire 792 

 and fire, did we go through the State to do that, since that was a change of government? 793 

 794 

 City Manager Terrence Moore said it was a clarification to the Charter, essentially.  It did 795 

 not require the process as noted.     796 

 797 

 Councilman Clay said my position is the term limits should be 3 years.  When I said 2 years, 798 

 I meant that it would be good if someone is going to run; that they be willing to run for 2 799 

 terms.  I’m thinking 3 terms max. 800 

 801 

 Councilman Gay said my feeling is that when you don’t have term limits, the Incumbent has 802 

 certain advantages over other people.  They can use a lot of things that the candidate can’t 803 

 use.  I mean, respectfully speaking, I think that it should be 3 terms.  You should have 804 

 contributed what you could contribute.  I think change is very necessary.  I would like to 805 

 have provided some fundamental changes that stays with the community and move on.  I say 806 

 3 terms max.         807 

  808 

     Mayor Motley Broom asked, could we take the opportunity to continue to discuss this 809 

 because we would need to answer some questions.  And I think that that would mean that 810 

 you could have 3 terms, but then you would have to leave, but not prohibit you from running 811 

 4 years after that.      812 

 813 

 Councilman Gay said we need to talk about increasing salaries.  Some elected officials add a 814 

 lot of time and knowledge, and the salary is not commensurate with what they provide.      815 

  816 

 Mayor Motley Broom said given our current financial situation, I don’t think we are in a 817 

 position to do that.  Our salaries are actually high compared to a lot of other communities.  818 

 Mr. Denmark, could you be prepared at the next meeting with other things that we need to 819 

 take to the General Assembly with the term limits?   820 

 821 

City Attorney Winston Denmark said I can present something at the very next meeting.   822 

 823 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 22



Regular Session 11/02/20 Page 19 of 22 

 

11. City Attorney’s Report.  None. 824 

 825 

12. City Manager’s Report. 826 

 827 

A. Discussion and update on top ten delinquent property taxpayers.   828 

 829 

There was no discussion on this item.   830 

 831 

B. Discussion and update on top ten delinquent utility customer accounts.   832 

 833 

 Councilman Clay said I got my answers to my questions from Althea earlier today.  I don’t 834 

 want to pursue them any further tonight.   835 

 836 

13. Report Of Mayor And Council. 837 

 838 

 Councilman Clay – said I do want to say I was amazingly surprised and felt very good about 839 

 the performance due to Zeta’s aftermath.  I saw Public Works and Power out there.   As an 840 

 electrical engineer, I appreciated the complexity of some of the things that Power was 841 

 dealing  with.  I was watching the guys in Public Works move over these incredible huge 842 

 tree trunks that must have weighed 1,000 pounds.  And to my knowledge, we did it without 843 

 anybody having an accident which is another good thing.  I just want to thank staff and say 844 

 you are the best.  Fantastic job. 845 

 846 

 Councilman Clay said I have gotten more compliments on the stop signs that we put in.  I 847 

 hope that we will continue to look at other intersections as we discussed when we approved 848 

 the last bunch.  And see if there are any other intersections that are 2-way that we need to 849 

 make 4-way.    850 

 851 

 Councilman Clay said tomorrow is election day.  And for the lord’s sake, if you haven’t 852 

 voted, please go out and vote.  Don’t vote for Mickey Mouse, whatever you do.  I’d rather 853 

 have you vote than not vote, regardless of who you are going to vote for.     854 

 855 

 Councilman Taylor – said I want to thank the employees for going out and doing the things 856 

 you did over the weekend.   857 

 858 

 Councilman Taylor said I don’t know why we have an executive session, if the topic is 859 

 leaked out before you have an opportunity to talk about what’s going on.  I don’t want to be 860 

 a part of it, if we are going to continue to allow somebody to run their mouth about  what’s 861 

 going on before we get to talk about it.  I don’t think I want to be a part of it, if we can’t 862 

 keep our mouth shut, before we talk about things.  You see what happened with the citizens’ 863 

 comments.  It doesn’t make sense.      864 

  865 

 Councilman Clay said especially when it is misinformation.   866 

 867 

 Councilman Taylor said I think something has to be done about it.     868 

     869 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 23



Regular Session 11/02/20 Page 20 of 22 

 

 Councilman Allen – said get out and vote.   870 

 871 

 Councilman Allen said City Workers, Power, Police and Fire, everybody did a fantastic job.  872 

 We don’t need to forget that they do this every day.  They were out today replacing water 873 

 main breaks.  So, I want the citizens to remember them.  I am very, very proud to be a part 874 

 of the city and what they did.    875 

  876 

 Councilman Allen said the Speech Contest on the 24th went well.  The first grader did a 877 

 fantastic job.  Everybody participated.  It was fantastic.  I hope this is an event we can 878 

 continue over the years.  The kids really enjoyed it.   879 

 880 

 Councilman Allen said Woodward has come to me asking for some speed bumps.   881 

 882 

 Councilman Allen said Michael Hicks talked about i-Notify College Park coming on-line.  I 883 

 think you know better than everybody.   Could you talk a few seconds to tell everybody 884 

 about it?    885 

 886 

 Chief Information Officer Michael Hicks said I am happy to report that we are going to 887 

 launch it this week.  A thank you to Gerald Walker for the media behind it.  Gerald has 888 

 already sent that out.  Staff has been using it.  They are no longer turning in Word Docs or 889 

 Excel Spreadsheets.  Now we have to teach them to pull the reports.  We can pull the reports 890 

 on Wards 1-4.        891 

 892 

 Councilman Clay said I have been testing it.  Two of my submittals have been resolved.  893 

 894 

 Councilman Allen said I know the budget is way down, but I think I would be remiss if we 895 

 didn’t start looking at training and some of the long-term goals as far as personnel and the 896 

 numbers that we need.  Because Six West will be here, and a lot of things will be breaking 897 

 about the same time, and we need to be ready for it.  Time, staff, and training.   898 

 899 

 Councilman Gay – asked Chief Williford, when will we be expecting speed brakes on 900 

 Herschel and Lakeshore?                901 

  902 

    Police Chief Ferman Williford said 4 to 5 weeks at least. 903 

 904 

 Councilman Gay said City Manager, can we get street paving added to the agenda?  Mr. 905 

 Hicks put together a chart that he shared with me.   906 

 907 

 City Manager Terrence Moore said that is forthcoming at the December 7, 2020 workshop 908 

 meeting.       909 

 910 

 Councilman Gay said to start cronyism history of family workers with the city.  But when 911 

 elected officials, in my opinion, have family members and all who work for the City, I think 912 

 it compromises the directors.  And I think that is a conversation that we need to talk about.  I 913 

 do know that there have been several family members who have had contracts.        914 

 915 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 24



Regular Session 11/02/20 Page 21 of 22 

 

 Councilman Gay said if I were to say every week that I don’t like tractor-trailers, or 916 

 warehouses, or trash, if it happens to be on the agenda in active session or workshop, it is 917 

 ambiguous.  It needs clarification when you talk and you make ambiguous statements.         918 

 919 

 Councilman Gay said I just don’t get why there is so much attention to the 18 acres when 920 

 College Park is 15 miles.  There is no conversation about Buffington Road or Old National, 921 

 or so many other great development opportunities.  But the 18 acres has always been  922 

 because Councilman Gay always brings development to it.  I get that some wards don’t 923 

 have homes.  I get it.  But putting things in certain communities is not always the answer.           924 

  925 

 Councilman Gay said we are a City of Ethics.  And I can assure all of you that I am 62 years 926 

 old and a law-abiding  citizen.  But what I don’t like is people who say things, but then they 927 

 act a different way.  It’s fake.  We need to be careful on how we try to present ourselves 928 

 because we open up Pandora’s Box.  What you do to one affects the other council members.  929 

 You have to think it through, before you bring it out.  Once you bring it out there, people are 930 

 going to come back at you.   931 

 932 

 Councilman Gay said in closing, there is nothing wrong with making those 18 acres a 933 

 livable center.  There is nothing wrong with green space or additional parking.  Eighteen 934 

 acres is not a big deal.  We need to open our minds a little bit.  935 

 936 

 Councilman Gay said the Camp Creek Marketplace is very similar to the Six West, which 937 

 was Airport City that goes all the way back to Lottie Miller.  East Point had to make a 938 

 decision, and the leadership said we are not going to develop this in-house.  We are going 939 

 to give this out and let the people with the resources, money, and contacts, and look what it 940 

 gave them.  We have been fooling around with Six West for 18, 19 years we have been milking 941 

 that cow.  So, I want to say I know it feels good to say I’m developing Airport City.  My point 942 

 is:  Jeff Pape and Mark Toro who works for North American Properties, they got with East 943 

 Point, and they said we are going to give you all the tax breaks, and we are going to leave you 944 

 alone.  Be a part-time  councilman.  Stop micromanaging our city.  Stop attacking people 945 

 because you all of a sudden got a little bit of power.  Work as a team, love each other, and 946 

 let’s move on.  That’s all I have to say tonight.   947 

 948 

 Mayor Motley Broom – said I want to thank all the department heads for their hard work to 949 

 make us be where we are right now.                 950 

  951 

      Mayor Motley Broom said we have been in tough times during this pandemic.  It has forced 952 

 us to make very, very hard decisions.  But I appreciate what you all have done thus far in 953 

 this fiscal year, and we have your back.   954 

 955 

 Mayor Motley Broom said I want to echo Councilman Allen’s comment about the speech 956 

 contest.  It was phenomenal.  I am so pleased with the level of enthusiasm and the depth of 957 

 what our speakers went into to discuss all sorts of things they would do if they were in an 958 

 elected office.        959 

  960 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 25



Regular Session 11/02/20 Page 22 of 22 

 

       Mayor Motley Broom said our new app is available in the Android store and Apple.  Go to 961 

 collegeparkga.com and sign up for Code Red.      962 

  963 

 Mayor Motley Broom said I will be wearing my special voter earrings tomorrow.  Please get 964 

 out there and vote.  Make sure that you know where you vote before you go.  Go to 965 

 mvp.sos.ga.gov.  It will tell you where you need to go, if your precinct has changed.       966 

 967 

 Mayor Motley Broom said that is all I have.   968 

 969 

14. Executive Session. 970 

 971 

15. Approval of Executive Session Minutes. 972 

 973 

ACTION: Councilman Clay moved to approve Executive Session Minutes dated November 2, 974 

 2020, as presented, seconded by Councilman Taylor and motion carried.  (All voted 975 

Yes). 976 

 977 

16. Adjournment. 978 

 979 

 Mayor Motley Broom declared the Regular Session adjourned at 9:34 p.m. 980 

 981 

 982 

 983 

 984 

 985 

 986 

 987 

 988 

 989 

CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 990 

                     991 

              992 

_________________________ 993 

             Bianca Motley Broom, Mayor 994 

 995 

 996 

 997 

 998 

 999 

 1000 

ATTEST:   1001 

 1002 

 1003 

________________________ 1004 

Shavala Moore, City Clerk 1005 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 26



   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8407  

Updated: 10/15/2020 11:10 AM by Shavala Moore  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: October 15, 2020 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

THROUGH: Terrence R. Moore, City Manager 

 

FROM: Shavala Moore, City Clerk 

 

RE:  Workshop Session Minutes dated November 2, 2020 

 

 

See attached Workshop Session Minutes dated November 2, 2020. 

 

Thank you. 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 WSS110220 (DOC) 

 

Review: 

 Shavala Moore Completed 11/11/2020 11:47 AM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 11/11/2020 12:54 PM 

 Terrence R. Moore Completed 11/11/2020 1:10 PM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 11/16/2020 7:30 PM 

3.B

Packet Pg. 27



Workshop Session 11/02/20 Page 1 of 9 

CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 1 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 2 

WORKSHOP SESSION 3 

NOVEMBER 2, 2020 4 

 5 

MINUTES 6 

  7 
Present: Mayor Bianca Motley Broom; Councilmen Ambrose Clay, Derrick 8 

Taylor, Ken Allen, and Roderick Gay; City Manager Terrence Moore; 9 

City Clerk Shavala Moore; City Attorney Winston Denmark. 10 

 11 

Absent: None.  12 

 13 

Mayor Motley Broom called the workshop session to order at 5:00 p.m. 14 

 15 

ACTION: Councilman Clay moved to take up Executive Session to discuss 16 

personnel, pending litigation, and the potential purchase of real estate, 17 

seconded by Councilman Allen and motion carried.  Councilman Clay 18 

voted yes.  Councilman Allen voted yes.  Councilman Gay voted yes.  19 

Councilman Taylor not present for the vote.     20 

 21 

Mayor & Council entered into executive session at 5:02 p.m. 22 

 23 

The workshop session reconvened at 6:04 p.m.  24 

 25 

   1.  First quarter of Fiscal Year 2020-2021 budget and financial review and related  26 

considerations. 27 

 28 

Mr. Ed Wall gave a power point presentation on the first quarter of Fiscal Year 2020-29 

2021, to include major funds.  The first column is the 2021 budget.  The next column is 30 

25 percent of that amount for the first quarter.  The third column is the actual results for  31 

the first 3 months.  The fourth column is the difference.        32 

 33 
Mr. Wall said in the General Fund, revenues expected for the first quarter are 34 

$6,291,782.00.  It brought in $2,533,322.00.  The biggest chunk is $19 million in 35 

property taxes, which are paid in November and December each year and not the first 36 

quarter.  This isn’t a straight-line number like salaries.  Eighty-five percent of it will 37 

come in November and December.  We will present second quarter results to you the 38 

second day in February.  I believe the General Fund is good to go.  The total expenditures 39 

of 25 percent are $7,462,629.00.  The department heads worked hard to bring that on 40 

budget.  The things your people could control, they did.  Any questions? 41 

 42 

Councilman Clay asked, how difficult would it be to actually, instead of linearizing, for 43 

example, the General Fund budget, actually put in what we would expect the taxes to be 44 

so that it wouldn’t be just a straight 25 percent, it would be more or less what we thought 45 

we could expect.  That could be a lot of work, I don’t know.   46 

3.B.a

Packet Pg. 28



Workshop Session 11/02/20 Page 2 of 9 

Mr. Wall said we could add a column here for actuals in 2020 (indicating) and compare it 47 

to the last year’s actuals to give you a comparison, or you can just take my word for it 48 

that this fund is good to go.    49 

 50 

Councilman Clay said I believe it.  What goes through my mind is for expenses, for 51 

example, over the year, I know from past budget reviews that they aren’t always 52 

linearized.  There are certain expenses that we tend to pay at the beginning or the end.  53 

And I don’t know whether that degree of precision is warranted at this point.  In your 54 

opinion, would we be better able to track if we tried to get a refinement of what the 55 

spending would be in revenue rather than just linearizing it?                        56 

 57 

Mr. Wall said you’re the boss.  We will do what you tell us.  Number 2, if I give you too 58 

many columns and too many working pieces, I will paralyze the analysis and you won’t 59 

get as much from it.       60 

 61 

Councilman Clay said that’s why I asked the question.   62 

 63 

Mr. Wall said what I normally do is I will add the last column so we can drill drown into 64 

it, but I don’t see a problem here.  65 

 66 

Councilman Allen asked, are people just not getting permits or licenses?  Is this a slow 67 

quarter for that as well? 68 

   69 

Mr. Wall said I would think this number right here is due to Covid, the second and forth 70 

column on the end.  But now the courts will open, and it will increase.   71 

 72 

Director of Finance & Accounting Althea Philord-Bradley said normally a business 73 

license is due around April; is that right Shavala? 74 

 75 

City Clerk Shavala Moore said yes, April.   76 

 77 

Mr. Wall said the only way to do that is to take what it was for last year and drop another 78 

column in. 79 

 80 

Councilman Clay said instead of adding a column, if you just took last year and took the 81 

percentage of budget that was spent in each quarter, and then just multiply that by the 82 

budget, you could just use the previous year to give you a percentage distribution that 83 

would avoid me asking my question and Ken asking his question. 84 

 85 

Councilman Allen asked, was the previous years a good indicator to match it up against? 86 

 87 

Mayor Motley Broom said you can put an asterisk and a note at the bottom that indicates 88 

taxes are due in the second quarter and permits happen in the third quarter.   89 

 90 

Councilman Clay said it all depends how off you want to be at the end of the year.   91 

 92 

3.B.a

Packet Pg. 29



Workshop Session 11/02/20 Page 3 of 9 

Mayor Motley Broom said understood.   93 

 94 

Mr. Wall said the Electric Fund is $8,993,250.00.  The third column is $9,273,222.00 for 95 

the budget.  This fund is doing great.  It had a net change in assets of $159,848.00.  It 96 

used to be a negative $1 million.        97 

               98 

Mr. Wall said the next fund is the Water & Sewer Fund.  There is a 5 percent increase in 99 

rates for the Water & Sewer Fund designed to make it not lose money.  The 25 percent 100 

revenue number is $2,256,063.00.  We had a wet summer, and people didn’t use as much 101 

water in the yards.  This fund is good to go.   102 

 103 

Mr. Wall said there is a 10 percent rate increase in the Sanitation Fund.  The fund brought 104 

in $804,974.00, and you spent $608,449.00.  And there is hazardous pay for the 105 

employees.  None of these numbers reflect a reimbursement for the CARES Act money.  106 

This fund is good to go.   It did what it was supposed to do with the plan.    107 

 108 

Mr. Wall said the GICC had a revenue budget of $8,028,000.00.  The first quarter was 109 

$255,222.00 in revenues.  The budget for expenses is $8,166,718.00.  They did a great 110 

job managing the costs to sales.  Personnel services were less.  It was under budget by 111 

$530,205.00.  The net loss is $1,221,573.00.  This fund will need some work.  Any 112 

specific questions?                        113 

 114 

Councilman Clay said kudos to Mercedes and the group over there because they came up 115 

with creative ways to bring in some of that revenue.   116 

 117 

Mr. Wall said yes, sir.  118 

 119 

Councilman Allen said it would have been a lot worse. 120 

 121 

Mr. Wall said we paid the debt service.  The hotel/motel tax brought in a whole lot less in 122 

the first quarter.  The Convention Center is going to need some work.    123 

 124 

Mr. Wall said the Redevelopment Authority Fund (BIDA) is $782,856.00.  It brought in 125 

$1,836,920.00.  This other year is the PILOT payments, the land payments, and the APM 126 

costs.   This is the General Fund in reverse.  The non-operating revenues for the BIDA 127 

Fund are good to go, but we have to get that property sold.        128 

 129 

Mr. Wall said the Car Rental Tax Fund has no revenues and no expenses for the first 130 

quarter.  We do believe this will be a problem fund.  We hope to get $3,600,000.00 for 131 

the year, $400,000.00 plus the $3.2 million.  The Car Rental Tax has to do $8,800,000.00  132 

and then $3.2 million for us.  So, it has to collect $12 million a year for us to get that.  133 

From December through February they were averaging $1 million a month.  Starting in 134 

March on it was averaging $60,000.00 plus a month.  Atlanta is not even going to get the 135 

$8,800,000.00, and they have to use the reserves to make the Phillips Arena debt 136 

payment.  I expect to get some in December of 2021.  It has to be 2 year’s running to get 137 

the guaranteed $3.2 million per year.        138 

3.B.a

Packet Pg. 30



Workshop Session 11/02/20 Page 4 of 9 

Councilman Allen asked, and that comes in December? 139 

 140 

Mr. Wall said yes, sir.   141 

 142 

Mr. Wall said the total revenue in the Hotel/Motel Tax Fund is $10,922,607.00, 25 143 

percent of a reduced budget.  So, we are $1,778,544.00 in the hole for the first quarter.  144 

Expenses for the DMO Hotel/Motel Tax Fund is reduced by $765,678.00.      145 

 146 

Mr. Wall said the budget for the Arena is $3,194,808.00.  Twenty-five percent of that is 147 

$798,702,000.00 in the hole for revenues.  Mercedes and her team cut the expenses and 148 

did not spend as much.  Net loss is $385,868.00.  We are going to have to do something 149 

about it as well.   150 

 151 

Mr. Wall said I’m being facetious in giving you this big number.  We have to come up 152 

with a solution to make these numbers smaller.   153 

 154 

Mr. Wall gave a recap of the major funds discussed in the financial review.  155 

 156 

Councilman Allen said those numbers are based on the first 3 months of this year, 157 

correct? 158 

 159 

Mr. Wall said yes, sir.  160 

 161 

Councilman Allen said if it does improve, it won’t be quite as bad, but that is a big “if” .    162 

   163 

Mr. Wall said you can’t do a thing about the hotel/motel tax.  But the BIDA Fund, we can 164 

work hard to do the things we need to do in order to make that land close.  The biggest 165 

part is building that Rhodes Avenue and get it up and going. 166 

 167 

Mr. Wall said the only thing you can control on the GICC is expenses.  Mercedes is 168 

doing all she can do about revenues.  All you can do for the Arena is raise revenue.  I am 169 

encouraging you to stop expenses.   170 

 171 

Councilman Gay asked, the expenses for the Arena and the GICC, is all personnel 172 

included in that expense line? 173 

 174 

Mr. Wall said it is included, but not all the expenses are personnel.   175 

 176 

Councilman Gay said we are paying all the personnel expenses.  We haven’t fired or cut 177 

people.   178 

 179 

Executive Director of the GICC Mercedes Miller said we furloughed our part-time 180 

employees in May, and that was about 13 people.  But that isn’t all we have done thus 181 

far.  182 

   183 

Councilman Gay asked, are you still carrying the payroll for both of these facilities? 184 

3.B.a

Packet Pg. 31



Workshop Session 11/02/20 Page 5 of 9 

Executive Director of the GICC Mercedes Miller said yes, for the full-time employees. 185 

  186 

Councilman Allen asked, is there any hope of the WNBA and the NBA G League coming 187 

back this next spring? 188 

 189 

Executive Director of the GICC Mercedes Miller said the G League is trying to come 190 

back after the NBA, which is the week after MLK’s birthday.  And for the WNBA, they 191 

have given us their dates.  We think they are going to be able to come back, but we don’t 192 

know if they will have people in the stands.   193 

 194 

Councilman Clay said we make a lot of money from selling refreshments to the people in 195 

the stands.    196 

      197 

Executive Director of the GICC Mercedes Miller said correct. 198 

 199 

Councilman Gay asked, how long can we carry payroll, if we are not getting expenses 200 

and taking money from the General Fund?  What is it based on?  What is the decision to 201 

carry 100 percent payroll for full-time employees?   202 

 203 

Executive Director of the GICC Mercedes Miller said we have to.  204 

 205 

Councilman Gay said if there was an opportunity for Six West to be developed by a third-206 

party interest and they cashed us out for all the land, wouldn’t that make up our windfall 207 

for cash that we need, if we just stop developing it in-house and let it be developed, and 208 

they brought the cash we need from all the land? 209 

 210 

Mr. Wall said that would help.   211 

 212 

Councilman Gay said I’m hearing rumors that there are developers that can take over 213 

Airport City, but we continue to do it in-house.  That would bring a tremendous amount 214 

of cash flow to the city. 215 

 216 

Mr. Wall said you have $30 million in taxpayer money in that property.  You wouldn’t 217 

want to do a fire sale, but if you got a good deal that would help you.    218 

   219 

Councilman Clay said we would also need to look at the ultimate potential of that 220 

property, not just what we had in it, but what we will get out of it if we do the 221 

development that we are planning to do. 222 

 223 

Mr. Wall said that’s what I meant.   224 

 225 

Mayor Motley Broom said thank you very much Mr. Wall. 226 

 227 

  2. Discussion of current City of College Park Ordinance 2019-07 governing usage 228 

of parks and pavilions to include consideration of usage by non-residents. 229 

 230 

3.B.a

Packet Pg. 32



Workshop Session 11/02/20 Page 6 of 9 

Director of Recreation & Cultural Arts Michelle Johnson explained the item.  I just 231 

wanted to have an open discussion about residents versus non-residents.  I’m not sure we 232 

are enforcing that.  We want to be a little more welcoming.   233 

 234 

Councilman Allen said Councilmen Clay and Gay I don’t know who else was there when 235 

they talked about excluding other people.  I was wondering the reasoning behind that.  In 236 

my opinion, College Park parks should be for College Park citizens.   237 

 238 

Councilman Clay said there were a lot of factors that were discussed.  Partly, it depends 239 

on the park.  I seem to recall at Phillips Park where there was an issue with people 240 

coming in from elsewhere and taking over some of the pavilions.  We have had 241 

significant damage to the restrooms in Phillips Park and some very distasteful things 242 

going on there.  We have had some issues in Zupp Park more recently.  We have great 243 

parks, and I am concerned about people converging on the parks to have regularly 244 

scheduled games.  I’m of the same position.  I don’t think we should be hiring the park 245 

out for political rallies, for example.  And we have that in the ordinance.  We had shots 246 

fired at Barrett Park.  The more you introduce people from the outside, the more issues 247 

you have.  And again, with COVID 19 you have more opportunity to bring in viruses 248 

from other places.  City Attorney Winston Denmark said we are totally within our rights 249 

to limit the park to our own citizens, if we want.                250 

 251 

Councilman Allen said at Zupp Park, if 2 or 3 of those pavilions are rented out to 252 

someone, let’s just say from Fairburn, and they come over there and start having games 253 

and so forth, and then our people want to use it on the weekend just for a picnic or to 254 

walk down to the park and have snacks with their kids or whatever, is there enough space 255 

for our citizens?  That’s my concern. 256 

 257 

Director of Recreation & Cultural Arts Michelle Johnson said they are set ups for specific 258 

activities at Zupp Park.  They have to come through us.  It is not organized activity.  It 259 

seems a little harsh to say that it is unlawful for anybody to be in the park that is not a 260 

resident.  We have Woodward students going down there currently with families to enjoy 261 

the park.  It is not currently a rental scenario.  It is a first come, first serve. It is not 262 

necessarily to do an unorganized event.  When we do a rental, anybody that is a resident 263 

can rent out a month prior.  And then after it is not rented, it can go to a nonresident.   264 

 265 

Councilman Allen said I don’t know how you regulate that.  That is going to be tough.  If 266 

you walk the track over at Badgett Field and you check every single person that was 267 

there, I bet the numbers would be 50 percent or more that were not from College Park. 268 

 269 

Mayor Motley Broom said that is my issue with it as well.  We have this ordinance on the 270 

books.  How do we enforce it, if someone is not checking ID?      271 

        272 

Director of Recreation & Cultural Arts Michelle Johnson said that was my issue.  We 273 

don’t have park rangers for the fall and winter.  I have to tell people no that call me all 274 

the time that wants to use the facilities.  And I think there are surrounding communities 275 

that we should welcome.   276 

3.B.a

Packet Pg. 33



Workshop Session 11/02/20 Page 7 of 9 

Councilman Clay gave a scenario of people playing soccer at Barrett Park from East 277 

Point for Thanksgiving, and another group comes to the park and wants to play a game.  278 

Without the sign there, how do you regulate that? 279 

 280 

Director of Recreation & Cultural Arts Michelle Johnson said we don’t have a park 281 

ranger at this time.  We have caught people and gathered them up.  Barrett does not have 282 

an organized sport.  We allow 2 to 3 people, but if it gets to 9, you are in violation of our 283 

ordinance.   284 

 285 

Councilman Taylor said we need to look at that ordinance.  That doesn’t make a lot of 286 

sense to me.   287 

 288 

Councilman Clay said where I was coming from is the park is being used by people from 289 

several other cities at the same time without any reservations, mind you.   290 

 291 

Mayor Motley Broom said on Thanksgiving, you could have 3 groups within the city, but 292 

it is already full because someone else is there.   293 

 294 

Councilman Clay asked, what does East Point say? 295 

 296 

Director of Recreation & Cultural Arts Michelle Johnson said East Point is similar to 297 

ours.  They have to be a resident.   298 

 299 

Councilman Clay said I’d like to know whether East Point has found a way to deal with 300 

it. 301 

 302 

Director of Recreation & Cultural Arts Michelle Johnson said that is a valid point.  It is 303 

just that it is unlawful for anybody to be there. 304 

 305 

Councilman Clay said we don’t have all the facts yet. 306 

 307 

Director of Recreation & Cultural Arts Michelle Johnson said they give a non-resident 308 

pass. 309 

 310 

Councilman Clay said it sounds like the other cities have the same similar concerns. 311 

 312 

Mayor Motley Broom said it sounds like we should revisit this.   313 

 314 

   3. Update on the status of lighting conditions for park and athletic facilities and 315 

recommendations for improvements.            316 

 317 

Director of Recreation & Cultural Arts Michelle Johnson gave an update on lighting 318 

conditions for park and athletic facilities with recommendations for improvements.  The 319 

lights will be $32,000.00 total for both tennis courts.  To upgrade to LED there is some 320 

additional work we would need to do.   321 

 322 

3.B.a

Packet Pg. 34



Workshop Session 11/02/20 Page 8 of 9 

Mayor Motley Broom asked, is there an opportunity to find a grant or something? 323 

 324 

Councilman Clay said I totally agree.  I love that we are going to LED.  The 325 

improvement at Badgett Field with the LED is fantastic.  We can’t afford it, but we want 326 

to do it.  If you can get a grant, that’s great.  I appreciate the effort. .     327 

 328 

Councilman Allen said you don’t play tennis outside during the wintertime.  How long 329 

does it take to have them installed?   330 

 331 

Director of Power Hugh Richardson said within a couple of weeks after we get the lights 332 

in.   333 

 334 

Councilman Clay said it would be nice to use the tennis facilities at night.  Back in the 335 

recession, we were talking about upgrading the playground.  I just couldn’t justify putting 336 

in a new playground at Barrett Park, so we painted the playground.     337 

 338 

Councilman Taylor asked, is it $32,000.00 for the lights or labor and everything?  339 

Couldn’t our guys do it?   340 

 341 

Director of Power Hugh Richardson said it is just for material.  We will do the labor.  We 342 

will have to rent a scissor platform for the installation of the lights.   343 

 344 

Mayor Motley Broom asked, any other questions?   345 

 346 

There were no further questions made.  347 

 348 

Mayor Motley Broom declared the Workshop Session adjourned at 6:57 p.m.    349 

 350 

 351 

 352 

 353 

 354 

 355 

 356 

 357 

 358 

 359 

       CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 360 

 361 

 362 

       _________________________ 363 

       Bianca Motley Broom, Mayor 364 

 365 

 366 

 367 

 368 

3.B.a

Packet Pg. 35



Workshop Session 11/02/20 Page 9 of 9 

ATTEST:   369 

 370 

 371 

________________________ 372 

Shavala Moore, City Clerk 373 

3.B.a

Packet Pg. 36



   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8409  

Updated: 11/11/2020 2:52 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: November 11, 2020 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

THROUGH: Terrence R. Moore, City Manager 

 

FROM: Shavala Moore, City Clerk 

 

RE:  Ordinances and Resolutions Update 

 

 

PURPOSE:  To provide Mayor and Council with updates on recently adopted ordinances and 

resolutions. 

 

REASON:  To provide Mayor and Council names of the adopted ordinances & resolutions on a 

monthly basis. 

 

CITY COUNCIL HEARING DATE:  November 16, 2020 

 

CONSIDERATION BY OTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITIES:  None 

 

AFFECTED AGENCIES:  None 

 

STAFF:  Office of the City Clerk 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 2020 ORDINANCES (DOC) 

 2020 Resolutions (DOCX) 

 

Review: 

 Shavala Moore Completed 11/11/2020 2:51 PM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 11/11/2020 2:51 PM 

 Terrence R. Moore Completed 11/12/2020 11:36 AM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 11/16/2020 7:30 PM 

6.A

Packet Pg. 37



  2020 ORDINANCES  

 

 

Ord. No. Ordinance       Adopted  

2020-01 120-Day Moratorium on Tire Shops    2-17-2020 

2020-02 State of Emergency Ordinance    3-19-2020 

2020-03 Emergency Coronavirus Ordinance – Shelter in Place 3-25-2020 

2020-04 Modify State of Emerg. Ord. add Virtual Meetings  4-06-2020 

2020-05 Ethics Ordinance      4-20-2020 

2020-06 Annexation of 5391 W. Fayetteville Road   4-20-2020 

2020-07 Rezoning of 5391 W. Fayetteville Road   4-20-2020 

2020-08 Multi-Family Maintenance Ordinance   5-18-2020 

2020-09 Fire Inspection Ordinance     6-01-2020 

2020-10 Facial Mask Mandate      7-10-2020 

2020-11 Fireworks Ordinance      7-10-2020 

2020-12 Amended Multi-Family Ordinance    8-03-2020 

2020-13 Conditional Use Permit – 1597 Virginia Ave   8-03-2020 

2020-14 Amended Ordinance to include Parklets   10-05-2020 

2020-15 3907 Main Street Rezoning     10-05-2020 

2020-16 Conditional Use Permit – 3907 Main Street   10-05-2020 

2020-17 Stormwater Ordinance Amendment   PENDING 

2020-18 2154 Rugby Avenue Rezoning    PENDING 

 

  

 

6.A.a

Packet Pg. 38



2020 Resolutions 
 

  Number Name         Adopted 
 

2020-01 Mayor Longino – Years of Service Resolution   1/6/2020 

2020-02 NLC Service Line Warranty Agreement Resolution   1/6/2020 

2020-03 Execution of the MEAG Power Municipal Competitive Trust Fund 2/3/2020 

2020-04 MEAG Voting Delegate      2/3/2020 

2020-05 HB 309 - GA Local Gov’t Infrastructure Finance Authority Act PENDING 

2020-06 Roosevelt Hwy Renaming      2/17/2020 

2020-07 City of Ethics Resolution      4/20/2020 

2020-08 Aerotropolis CID REBC Resolution     4/20/2020 

2020-09 Fulton County CDBG Cooperation Agreement   5/18/2020 

2020-10 Budget Adoption Resolution      6/01/2020 

2020-11 Utility Credit Resolution      6/01/2020 

2020-12 Water, Sewer & Sanitation New Rates    7/20/2020 

2020-13 Georgia Greenspace Program      10/05/2020 

 

 

6.A.b

Packet Pg. 39



   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8381  

Updated: 11/10/2020 1:19 PM by Michelle Alexander  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: November 10, 2020 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

THROUGH: Terrence R. Moore, City Manager 

 

FROM: Michelle Alexander, City Planner 

 

RE:  Public Hearing for Consideration of a Rezoning at 2154 Rugby Ave 

 

 

PURPOSE: Public Hearing for consideration of a rezoning of 2154 Rugby Ave from R1 - Low 

Density Residential to R2 - Medium Density Residential Zoning District. 

 

REASON: Public Hearing for consideration of a rezoning of 2154 Rugby Ave from R1 - Low 

Density Residential to R2 - Medium Density Residential Zoning District. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Planning Commission recommends approval with the condition that 

the City Engineer review the possibly driveway options for the potential new lots prior to the 

City Council Public Hearing. 

 

Staff recommends approval with the following conditions.   

1. The City Engineer shall review and approve driveway options for the proposed two 

single-family lots; 

2. Applicants shall comply with the procedures in Chapter 17 (Subdivisions) of the Code of 

Ordinances, City of College Park, Georgia, to subdivide the Property into two separate 

lots or parcels.  

 

 

BACKGROUND:   The applicant is requesting a rezoning of their property in order to 

subdivide the lot into two single family home lots. The lot was originally platted as three 50-foot 

wide lots similar to the lots to the rear of the property. If approved, the current home will be 

demolished and the lot will be subdivided into two new single family home lots. Two new single 

family homes will be built to the R2 district standards on the two new lots.   

 

COST TO CITY:  N/A 

 

BUDGETED ITEM:  N/A 

 

7.A

Packet Pg. 40



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8381)  Meeting of November 16, 2020 

Updated: 11/10/2020 1:19 PM by Michelle Alexander  Page 2 

REVENUE TO CITY: Application Fee 

 

CITY COUNCIL HEARING DATE:  November 16, 2020 

 

CONSIDERATION BY OTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITIES:  N/A 

 

AFFECTED AGENCIES:  N/A 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO EXISTING ORDINANCE OR RESOLUTION:  Approval of this 

request would result in a rezoning from R1 to R2 and potentially two new single family homes.  

 

REQUIRED CHANGES TO WORK PROGRAMS:  N/A 

 

STAFF: Michelle Alexander 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 2154RugbyAve_Application (PDF) 

 SF RESIDENTIAL ZONES (PDF) 

 2154RugbyAve_StaffReport11.16.20 (PDF) 

 2154 Rugby Rezoning Ordinance 11.16.20 (DOCX) 

 

Review: 

 Michelle Alexander Completed 11/06/2020 12:01 PM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 11/06/2020 3:07 PM 

 Engineering Completed 11/09/2020 12:12 PM 

 Inspections Pending  

 City Attorney's Office Pending  

 Terrence R. Moore Completed 11/12/2020 3:14 PM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 11/16/2020 7:30 PM 

7.A

Packet Pg. 41





























Article Three – Zoning District Intent, Uses & Standards 

3.3 R-1 Low Density Residential District 

3.3 R-1 District Intent, Permitted Uses and Conditional Uses 

District Intent 

 

The “R-1” District provide for the 

development of single-family 

detached homes on individual lots in 

a suburban character. The provisions 

that regulate this land use district 

provides for the development of low 

to medium density residential 

neighborhoods. 

The City of College Park should 

strive to promote an average net 

density of 2.0 to 2.5 dwelling units 

per acre community-wide in the “R-

1” district.  

 

 

Permitted Uses  

Residential Uses  

•  Dwelling, single-family  

•  Home occupation (type I)  

Institutional/Public Uses  

• Nature preserve/ passive recreation trail 

• Parks and playgrounds 

•  Police, fire, rescue 

• Public/ government buildings and offices  

• Public structures and uses in accord with 

the intent of this district 

Communication/Utilities  

•  Public wellfield/pump house  

•  Water tower  

•  Utility substation  

 

 

Accessory Uses  

•  Carports and garages 

 Parking of one unoccupied travel trailer, 

motor coach, or pleasure boat owned or 

used by the property owner on which it is 

located. Recreational vehicle or boat 

shall be screened from street frontage, 

and shall be parked on approved 

impervious surface. 

•  Private recreation areas owned, operated, 

and maintained exclusively for residents 

of subdivisions, multiple family, or 

manufactured housing developments 

•  Storage and utility buildings 

 

Conditional Uses 

Agricultural Uses  

•  Sale of produce 

•  Farm stands 

•  Community gardens 

•  Kennels, on parcels of land greater than 3 

acres; provided, that any structure shall 

be at least 100 feet from any property 

line 

•  Riding academies and stables on parcels 

of land greater than 3 acres; provided, 

that any structure shall be at least 100 

feet from any property line 

 

Residential Uses  

•  Bed and Breakfast 

•  Personal care home (Family Personal 

Care)                  

•  Group home and halfway home 

•  Home occupation (type II)  
 

Institutional/Public Uses  

• Educational institutions/ schools (P-12) 

• Places of Worship, Theaters, and 

Amphitheaters 

• Publicly owned parks and recreation 

areas 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7.A.b

Packet Pg. 55





Article Three – Zoning District Intent, Uses & Standards 

3.5 R-2 Medium Density Residential District 

3.5 R-2 District Intent, Permitted Uses and Conditional Uses 

District Intent 

 

The “R-2” District is intended to 

provide for the development of 

single-family detached homes on 

moderate-sized lots which are served 

by public water and sewer systems. 

The provisions that regulate this land 

use district provides for the 

development of residential 

neighborhoods in a medium-density 

urban development environment. 

This district should be protected 

from conflicting land uses. The City 

of College Park should strive to 

promote an average net density of 

2.5 to 3.5 dwelling units per acre 

community-wide in the “R-2” 

district. 

 

 

 

 

 

Permitted Uses  

Residential Uses  

•  Dwelling, single-family 

•  Home occupation (type I)  

 

Institutional/Public Uses  

• Nature preserve/ passive recreation trail 

• Parks and playgrounds 

•  Police, fire, rescue 

• Public/ government buildings and offices  

• Public structures and uses in accord with 

the intent of this district 

 

Communication/Utilities  

•  Public wellfield/pump house  

•  Water tower  

•  Utility substation  

 

Accessory Uses  

•  Carports and garages 

•  Parking of one unoccupied travel trailer, 

motor coach, or pleasure boat owned or 

used by the property owner on which it is 

located. Recreational vehicle or boat 

shall be screened from street frontage, 

and shall be parked on approved 

impervious surface. 

•  Private recreation areas owned, operated, 

and maintained exclusively for residents 

of subdivisions, multiple family, or 

manufactured housing developments 

•  Storage and utility buildings 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Conditional Uses 

Residential Uses  

•  Home occupation (type II)  

 

Institutional/Public Uses  

• Educational institutions/ schools (P-12) 

• Publicly owned parks and recreation 

areas 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7.A.b

Packet Pg. 57





Article Three – Zoning District Intent, Uses & Standards 

3.7 R-3 High Density Residential District 

3.7 R-3 District Intent, Permitted Uses and Conditional Uses 

District Intent 

 

The “R-3 District is intended to 

provide the development of single-

family dwellings served by public 

water and sewer systems. The 

provisions that regulate this land use 

district provides for the development 

of residential neighborhoods in a 

medium-density urban environment.  

This district should be protected 

from conflicting land uses. The City 

of College Park. should strive to 

promote an average net density of 

4.0 to 5.5 dwelling units per acre 

community-wide in the “R-3” 

district. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Permitted Uses  

Residential Uses  

•  Dwelling, single-family  

•  Home occupation (type I)  

Institutional/Public Uses  

• Nature preserve/ passive recreation trail 

• Parks and playgrounds 

•  Police, fire, rescue 

• Public/ government buildings and offices  

• Public structures and uses in accord with 

the intent of this district 

Communication/Utilities  

•  Public wellfield/pump house  

•  Water tower  

•  Utility substation  

 

Accessory Uses  

•  Carports and garages 

•  Parking of one unoccupied travel trailer, 

motor coach, or pleasure boat owned or 

used by the property owner on which it is 

located. Recreational vehicle or boat 

shall be screened from street frontage, 

and shall be parked on approved 

impervious surface. 

•  Private recreation areas owned, operated, 

and maintained exclusively for residents 

of subdivisions, multiple family, or 

manufactured housing developments 

•  Storage and utility buildings 

 

 

 

 

 

Conditional Uses 

Residential Uses  

•  Home occupation (type II)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7.A.b

Packet Pg. 59





 

7.A.b

Packet Pg. 61





                   City of College Park  
                                                                                                                                        City Council Meeting  

 

2 
 

would better conform to the R2 District than the current single lot conforms to the R1 District. The current lot 
does not meet the minimum lot depth for the R1 District. See the comparison charts below. In addition, the district 
standards for both the R1 District and R2 District are attached for reference. According to these standards, the 
two proposed lots would also be able to meet all setback and lot coverage requirements for the R2 District.  
 

Current Lot Compared to R1 District  
 

 R1 District Current Lot 

Min Lot Size 20,000 sq ft ~22,500 sq ft 

Min Lot Width 90 feet 150 feet 

Min Lot Depth 180 feet ~ 152 feet 

Proposed Lots Compared to R2 District 
 

 R2 District Proposed Lots 

Min Lot Size 10,000 sq ft ~11,250 sq ft 

Min Lot Width 75 feet 75 feet 

Min Lot Depth 125 feet ~152 feet 

The directly adjcent lots to the subject property would not be negatively impacted by the rezoning. The lots to the 
rear of the subject property are zoned R2 and built out with single family homes. The lot immediately adjacent to 
the subject property is a vacant lot zoned R1, but does not meet the standards for the R1 district and would likely 
also have to be rezoned to be built out. This lot is only 50 feet wide and the required 15 foot side setbacks in R1 
would likely render it unbuildable. The proposed rezoning would support a rezoning for this adjacent parcel, 
thereby providing the adjacent property owners more options. Lastly, there is a multi-family apartment complex 
across the street from the subject property. It is zoned RM, which is the highest density residential district in the 
City and would not be negatively impacted by the increase in density from one single-family home to two single-
family homes.  
 
The overall zoning for the area shows that this property is located in a tranistional area between smaller more 
urban lots (R2) and larger more suburban lots (R1). This can be seen on the attached zoning maps. Due to the 
location of this particular property, a rezoning to R2 along with two new lots would not negatively impact the 
character of the neighborhood. In addition, the Comprehensive Plan indicates there is a demand for single-family 
homes and that the community encourages the development of additional single-family homes where possible. 
 
Approval of this application by Mayor and Council would result in the rezoning of this one parcel to R2 – Medium 
Density Residential. The applicant would then have to apply for a subdivsion of the property into two lots. This 
plat would have to be approved by the City Engineer and the final plat would then have to be approved by the 
Planning Commission.    
 
Conclusion: The two proposed lots meet all regulations of the R2 District and are in line with the Comprehensive 
Plan. In addition, because of the current property location and the size of adjacent lots, a rezoning of this property 
would not adversely impact the character of the area or any of the surrounding property values.   
 

7.A.c

Packet Pg. 63



                   City of College Park  
                                                                                                                                        City Council Meeting  

 

3 
 

Planning Commission Meeting: The Planning Commission meeting was held on October 26th, 2020 at 5:30pm via 
the zoom platform.  

• There were several concerns from neighbors about the increasing density of the housing in the area 
considering there are already two apartment complexes nearby.  

• Concerns about the location of the driveways for the new lots were expressed. This concern was 
highlighted in the Commission’s recommendation.  

• The trees in the area were discussed and if it was possible to preserve them. The City Planner stated that 
removal of any trees on the property will have to be permitted.  

• The process of rezoning was explained at the meeting and the attendees were encouraged to also attend 
the Public Hearing with the City Council.  
 

Planning Commission Recommendation: The Planning Commission recommended approval of the application 
with one condition.  

1. The City Engineer review driveway options for the potential two single family lots.  
 
City Engineer Comments:  

• I do not recommend a drive on Almand located between the driveways across the street. It would have 
to be closer to the intersection of Almand and Rugby.  

• In addition to rear yard and side yard setbacks the following will have to be considered: 
o Ordinance Sec. 19-93 (2) 

 No driveway shall be established within ten (10) feet of the points of tangency of the 
curve connecting such driveway to a public street and any property line of adjacent 
private property. Measurements shall be made along the edge of pavement from the 
nearest point of tangency.  

 For corner lots, no driveway shall be established within ten (10) feet of the points of 
tangency of the curve connecting such driveway to a public street and any street which 
intersects the street which is being accessed. Measurements shall be made along the 
edge of pavement from the nearest point of tangency. 

 
Staff Recommendation: The City Planner recommends approval of the rezoning application with the following 
conditions.  

1. The City Engineer shall review and approve driveway options for the proposed two single-
family lots. 

2. Applicants shall comply with the procedures in Chapter 17 (Subdivisions) of the Code of 
Ordinances, City of College Park, Georgia, to subdivide the Property into two separate lots 
or parcels.  

 
  

7.A.c

Packet Pg. 64



                   City of College Park  
                                                                                                                                        City Council Meeting  

 

4 
 

R1 – Low Density Residential District Standards 

 
 

R2 – Medium Density Residential District Standards 

 
 

7.A.c

Packet Pg. 65







                   City of College Park  
                                                                                                                                        City Council Meeting  

 

7 
 

Fulton County GIS  

NOTE: This map shows the referred to comparison of the size of the subject property and the size of adjacent 
properties.  

 

 

  

7.A.c

Packet Pg. 68



                   City of College Park  
                                                                                                                                        City Council Meeting  

 

8 
 

Photos of the Property  

 

Ariel of the Subject Property   

 

  

7.A.c

Packet Pg. 69



                   City of College Park  
                                                                                                                                        City Council Meeting  

 

9 
 

Front of the Subject Property 

 

7.A.c

Packet Pg. 70



STATE OF GEORGIA 1 

CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 2 

ORDINANCE 2020-____ 3 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP, CITY OF COLLEGE PARK, 4 

GEORGIA BY REZONING THAT CERTAIN PARCEL OF REAL PROPERTY LOCATED AT 5 

2154 RUGBY AVENUE; TO PROVIDE SEVERABILITY; TO PROVIDE A PENALTY; TO 6 

PROVIDE FOR REPEAL OF CONFLICTING ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS; TO 7 

PROVIDE AN ADOPTION AND EFFECTIVE DATE; AND TO PROVIDE FOR OTHER 8 

LAWFUL PURPOSES. 9 

WHEREAS, the governing body of the City of College Park, Georgia (the “City”) is the 10 

Mayor and Council thereof; 11 

WHEREAS, the governing body is authorized by its Charter to regulate zoning within the 12 

limits of the City; and 13 

WHEREAS, the subject parcel of real property consists of approximately 0.5096 acres 14 

located at 2154 Rugby Avenue, according to the present system of numbering property in College 15 

Park, Fulton County, Georgia (Fulton County Tax Parcel Identification Number: 14 16 

019100020016) (the “Property”); and  17 

WHEREAS, the Property is currently zoned as R1- Low Density Residential District; and 18 

WHEREAS, the owners (“Applicant”) of the Property filed an application requesting the 19 

governing body to rezone the Property to R2- Medium Density Residential District and subdivide 20 

the Property into two lots to build two new single-family homes; and 21 

7.A.d

Packet Pg. 71



WHEREAS, the City Planner and Planning Commission recommend approval of the 22 

application subject to certain conditions included in the City Staff Report and said report is hereby 23 

incorporated by reference herein; and 24 

WHEREAS, the governing body of the City has considered the criteria of a rezoning 25 

request, provided in Section 14.11 (Zoning Amendment Process (ZA)) of Article 14 (Processes, 26 

Permits, and Fees) in Appendix A (Zoning) of the Code of Ordinances, City of College Park, 27 

Georgia; and 28 

WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City desires to rezone the Property to R2- 29 

Medium Density Residential District, subject to certain conditions to ensure consistence with the 30 

City’s comprehensive plan and future land use plan; and  31 

WHEREAS, the City has complied with the notice and hearing requirements pursuant to 32 

O.C.G.A. § 36-66-1 et seq.; and 33 

WHEREAS, the health, safety and welfare of the citizens of the City will be positively 34 

impacted by the adoption of this Ordinance. 35 

 BE IT AND IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 36 

THE CITY OF COLLEGE PARK, GEORGIA, and by the authority thereof:  37 

 Section 1.  That certain parcel of real property consisting of approximately 0.5096 acres 38 

located at 2154 Rugby Avenue, according to the present system of numbering property in College 39 

Park, Fulton County, Georgia (Fulton County Tax Parcel Identification Number: 14 40 

019100020016) is hereby rezoned to R2- Medium Density Residential District. Such rezoning is 41 

to be noted on the official City of College Park Zoning Map approved by Mayor and Council as 42 

soon as reasonably possible following adoption of this Ordinance along with an editorial note on 43 

the official City of College Park Zoning Map specifying the parcel affected by this Ordinance and 44 

7.A.d

Packet Pg. 72



the date of adoption of this Ordinance.  Until this rezoning is indicated on the official City of 45 

College Park Zoning Map approved by Mayor and Council, this Ordinance and Exhibit “A” shall 46 

govern over the official City of College Park Zoning Map to the extent of any discrepancy between 47 

this Ordinance and the official City of College Park Official Zoning Map.  This rezoning is subject 48 

to the following conditions:  49 

1. The City Engineer shall review and approve driveway options for the proposed 50 

two single-family lots; 51 

2. Applicants shall comply with the procedures in Chapter 17 (Subdivisions) of the 52 

Code of Ordinances, City of College Park, Georgia, to subdivide the Property into 53 

two separate lots or parcels.  54 

Section 2.   The preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is hereby 55 

incorporated by reference as if fully set out herein. 56 

 Section 3. (a) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council that all 57 

sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are or were, upon their 58 

enactment, believed by the Mayor and Council to be fully valid, enforceable and constitutional. 59 

 (b) It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council that, to the greatest 60 

extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 61 

Ordinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 62 

Ordinance.  It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council that, to the 63 

greatest extent allowed by law, no section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance 64 

is mutually dependent upon any other section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 65 

Ordinance. 66 

7.A.d

Packet Pg. 73



 (c) In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance 67 

shall, for any reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable 68 

by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, it is the express intent of 69 

the Mayor and Council that such invalidity, unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the 70 

greatest extent allowed by law, not render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any 71 

of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of the Ordinance and that, to 72 

the greatest extent allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and 73 

sections of the Ordinance shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable and of full force and 74 

effect. 75 

 Section 4.  All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby expressly 76 

repealed. 77 

 Section 5.  Penalties in effect for violations of the Zoning Ordinance of the City of College 78 

Park, Georgia at the time of the effective date of this Ordinance shall be and are hereby made 79 

applicable to this Ordinance and shall remain in full force and effect.  80 

 Section 6.  The effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless 81 

otherwise specified herein. 82 

 

(SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE) 

  

7.A.d

Packet Pg. 74



ORDAINED, this ____ day of _____________, 2020. 

 

      

 CITY OF COLLEGE PARK, GEORGIA 
 

 

      ________________________________                                                             

BIANCA MOTLEY BROOM, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 
 

 

________________________________                                                                   

SHAVALA MOORE, City Clerk 

 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

________________________________ 

City Attorney 

7.A.d

Packet Pg. 75



EXHIBIT “A” 
 

 

 

 

7.A.d

Packet Pg. 76



   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8443  

Updated: 11/12/2020 3:46 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: November 12, 2020 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

THROUGH: Terrence R. Moore, City Manager 

 

FROM: Artie Jones, Director of Economic Development 

 

RE:  Six West Bridge Design Services 

 

 

PURPOSE:  Design services are needed for a bridge to be constructed within the Six West 

development  

 

REASON:  A bridge needs to be designed for Rhodes Street that will connect Camp Creek 

Parkway to Redwine Street within the Six West Development 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  It is recommended that the City Council authorize the Mayor to 

execute a contract for design services for the Six West bridge on Rhodes Street. 

 

BACKGROUND:  There is a tributary by the name of Camp Creek within the Six West 

Development area.  Rhodes Street currently crosses the Camp Creek tributary.  In an effort to 

promote safety for pedestrians that utilize the 5k trail it has been proposed that a bridge be 

constructed over the Camp Creek Tributary so that pedestrians can walk underneath the Rhodes 

Street instead of having cross walks across Rhodes Street that will be heavily traveled by 

vehicles. 

 

Working with Jackson Myers, Special Projects Administrator for the City of College Park a RFQ 

was released in Winter 2019 for On-Call Engineering Services.  Thirteen firms submitted RFQ’s 

and the top four (4) firms were chosen for On-Call Engineering services for the City of College 

Park.  When staff found out that design services for a bridge was needed Jackson Myers and 

Artie Jones met with the on-call engineering firms and shared with them the subject project 

(design services for the Six West Bridge) crossing the Camp Creek Tributary.  Of the four (4) 

firms that were contacted, three (3) firms responding to the on-call RFP and provided bids.   

 

The firms that provided the lowest two bids were then contacted and staff and additional 

information was requested of the two firms.  Staff negotiated with the firm that we felt best 

would fulfill College Park’s needs to design services for the bridge.  Staff recommends that we 

move forward with executing an agreement with Kimley Horn for design services at an amount 

8.A

Packet Pg. 77



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8443)  Meeting of November 16, 2020 

Updated: 11/12/2020 3:46 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 2 

of up to $311k.  Attached to this agenda transmittal is Kimley Horns proposal.   

 

COST TO CITY:  Up to $311k 

 

BUDGETED ITEM:   This item will be paid from the Tax Allocation District Fund Balance 

Account 

 

REVENUE TO CITY:  There is no direct revenue to the City but the design of the bridge will 

bring the BIDA closer to being able to close on several real estate transactions previously 

discussed with the City Council and the Clearly College Park Development Authority. 

 

CITY COUNCIL HEARING DATE:  November 16, 2020 

 

CONSIDERATION BY OTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITIES:  None 

 

AFFECTED AGENCIES:  N/A 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO EXISTING ORDINANCE OR RESOLUTION:  None 

 

REQUIRED CHANGES TO WORK PROGRAMS:  None 

 

 

STAFF:   Jackson Myers, Special Projects Administrator 

  Artie Jones, III, Executive Director of the Clearly College Park Development 

Authority 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 Criteria for selecting an Engineering Firm (PDF) 

 Kimley-Horn Proposal fo Rhodes Street over Camp Creek Tributary Bridge Design_ (PDF) 

 Jackson Myers final-selection-ranking-form (002)jm (PDF) 

 Artie JOnes final-selection-ranking-form (002)jm (PDF) 

 Bid Matrix (PDF) 

 

Review: 

 Artie Jones Completed 11/06/2020 12:51 PM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 11/06/2020 1:36 PM 

 Jackson Myers Completed 11/06/2020 1:44 PM 

 Loretta Washington Pending  

8.A

Packet Pg. 78



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8443)  Meeting of November 16, 2020 

Updated: 11/12/2020 3:46 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 3 

 Althea Philord-Bradley Pending  

 City Attorney's Office Pending  

 Terrence R. Moore Completed 11/12/2020 3:14 PM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 11/16/2020 7:30 PM 

8.A

Packet Pg. 79



































 

Rev 01/18 

14 

KIMLEY-HORN AND ASSOCIATES, INC. 

STANDARD PROVISIONS 
 
(1)  Consultant's Scope of Services and Additional Services.  The Consultant will perform 
only the services specifically described in this Agreement.  If requested by the Client and agreed 
to by the Consultant, the Consultant will perform Additional Services, which shall be governed by 
these provisions.  Unless otherwise agreed to in writing, the Client shall pay the Consultant for 
any Additional Services an amount based upon the Consultant’s then-current hourly rates plus an 
amount to cover certain direct expenses including telecommunications, in -house reproduction, 
postage, supplies, project related computer time, and local mileage.  Other direct expenses will 
be billed at 1.00 times cost.     
 
(2)  Client's Responsibilities.  In addition to other responsibilities herein or imposed by law, the 
Client shall: 
(a)  Designate in writing a person to act as its representative, such person having complete 
authority to transmit instructions, receive information, and make or interpret the Client's decisions. 
(b)  Provide all information and criteria as to the Client's requirements, objectives, and 
expectations for the project and all standards of development, design, or construction. 
(c)  Provide the Consultant all available studies, plans, or other documents pertaining to the 
project, such as surveys, engineering data, environmental information, etc., all of which the 
Consultant may rely upon. 
(d)  Arrange for access to the site and other property as required for the Consultant to provide its 
services. 
(e)  Review all documents or reports presented by the Consultant and communicate decisions 
pertaining thereto within a reasonable time so as not to delay the Consultant. 
(f)  Furnish approvals and permits from governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the 
project and approvals and consents from other parties as may be necessary.  
(g)  Obtain any independent accounting, legal, insurance, cost estimating and feasibility services 
required by Client. 
(h)  Give prompt written notice to the Consultant whenever the Client becomes aware of any 
development that affects the Consultant's services or any defect or noncompliance in any aspect 
of the project. 
 
(3)  Period of Services.  Unless otherwise stated herein, the Consultant will begin work after 
receipt of a properly executed copy of this Agreement.  This Agreement assumes conditions 
permitting continuous and orderly progress through completion of the services.  Times for 
performance shall be extended as necessary for delays or suspensions due to circumstances that 
the Consultant does not control. If such delay or suspension extends for more than six months, 
Consultant’s compensation shall be renegotiated. 
 
(4)  Method of Payment.  Client shall pay Consultant as follows:  
(a) Invoices will be submitted periodically for services performed and expenses incurred.  
Payment of each invoice will be due within 25 days of receipt.   The Client shall also pay any 
applicable sales tax.  All retainers will be held by the Consultant and applied against the final 
invoice.  Interest will be added to accounts not paid within 25 days at the maximum rate allowed 
by law.  If the Client fails to make any payment due under this or any other agreement within 30 
days after the Consultant's transmittal of its invoice, the Consultant may, after giving notice to the 
Client, suspend services and withhold deliverables until all amounts due are paid.  
(b) If the Client relies on payment or proceeds from a third party to pay Consultant and Client 
does not pay Consultant’s invoice within 60 days of receipt, Consultant may communicate directly 
with such third party to secure payment. 
(c)  If the Client objects to an invoice, it must advise the Consultant in writing giving its reasons 

8.A.b

Packet Pg. 96



 

Rev 01/18 

15 

within 14 days of receipt of the invoice or the Client’s objections will be waived, and the invoice 
shall conclusively be deemed due and owing.  If the Client objects to only a portion of the invoice, 
payment for all other portions remains due within 25 days of receipt.  
(d)  If the Consultant initiates legal proceedings to collect payment, it may recover, in addition to 
all amounts due, its reasonable attorneys' fees, reasonable experts' fees, and other expenses 
related to the proceedings.  Such expenses shall include the cost, at the Consultant's normal 
hourly billing rates, of the time devoted to such proceedings by its employees.  
(e)  The Client agrees that the payment to the Consultant is not subject to any contingency or 
condition.  The Consultant may negotiate payment of any check tendered by the Client, even if 
the words “in full satisfaction” or words intended to have similar effect appear on the check without 
such negotiation being an accord and satisfaction of any disputed debt and without prejudicing 
any right of the Consultant to collect additional amounts from the Client.  
 
(5)  Use of Documents.  All documents and data prepared by the Consultant are related 
exclusively to the services described in this Agreement, and may be used only if the Client has 
satisfied all of its obligations under this Agreement.  They are not intended or represented to be 
suitable for use or reuse by the Client or others on extensions of this p roject or on any other 
project.  Any modifications by the Client to any of the Consultant’s documents, or any reuse of 
the documents without written authorization by the Consultant will be at the Client's sole risk and 
without liability to the Consultant, and the Client shall indemnify, defend and hold the Consultant 
harmless from all claims, damages, losses and expenses, including but not limited to attorneys' 
fees, resulting therefrom.  The Consultant’s electronic files and source code remain the property  
of the Consultant and shall be provided to the Client only if expressly provided for in this 
Agreement.  Any electronic files not containing an electronic seal are provided only for the 
convenience of the Client, and use of them is at the Client’s sole risk.  In the case of any defects 
in the electronic files or any discrepancies between them and the hardcopy of the documents 
prepared by the Consultant, the hardcopy shall govern.   
 
(6)  Opinions of Cost.  Because the Consultant does not control the cost of labor, materials, 
equipment or services furnished by others, methods of determining prices, or competitive bidding 
or market conditions, any opinions rendered as to costs, including but not limited to the costs of 
construction and materials, are made solely based on its judgment as a professional familiar with 
the industry.  The Consultant cannot and does not guarantee that proposals, bids or actual costs 
will not vary from its opinions of cost.  If the Client wishes greater assurance as to the amount of 
any cost, it shall employ an independent cost estimator. Consultant's services required to bring 
costs within any limitation established by the Client will be paid for as Additional Services.  
 
(7)  Termination.  The obligation to provide further services under this Agreement may be 
terminated by either party upon seven days' written notice in the event of substantial failure by 
the other party to perform in accordance with the terms hereof, or upon thirty days’ written notice 
for the convenience of the terminating party.  The Consultant shall be paid for all services 
rendered and expenses incurred to the effective date of termination, and other reasonable 
expenses incurred by the Consultant as a result of such termination.  
 
(8)  Standard of Care.  The standard of care applicable to Consultant’s services will be the degree 
of care and skill ordinarily exercised by consultants performing the same or similar services in the 
same locality at the time the services are provided.  No warranty, express or implied, is made or 
intended by the Consultant's performance of services, and it is agreed that the Consultant is not 
a fiduciary with respect to the Client.   
 
(9) LIMITATION OF LIABILITY.  In recognition of the relative risks and benefits of the Project to 
the Client and the Consultant, the risks are allocated such that, to the fullest extent allowed by 

8.A.b

Packet Pg. 97



 

Rev 01/18 

16 

law, and notwithstanding any other provisions of this Agreement or the existence of applicable 
insurance coverage, that the total liability, in the aggregate, of the Consultant and the Consultant's 
officers, directors, employees, agents, and subconsultants to the Client or to anyone claiming by, 
through or under the Client, for any and all claims, losses, costs or damages whatsoever arising 
out of or in any way related to the services under this Agreement from any causes, including but 
not limited to, the negligence, professional errors or omissions, strict liability or breach of contract 
or any warranty, express or implied, of the Consultant or the Consultant's officers, directors, 
employees, agents, and subconsultants, shall not exceed twice the total compensation received 
by the Consultant under this Agreement or $50,000, whichever is greater.  Higher limits of liability 
may be negotiated for additional fee.  This Section 9 is intended solely to limit the remedies 
available to the Client or those claiming by or through the Client, and nothing in this Section 9 
shall require the Client to indemnify the Consultant. 
 
(10) Mutual Waiver of Consequential Damages.  In no event shall either party be liable to the 
other for any consequential, incidental, punitive, or indirect damages including but not limited to 
loss of income or loss of profits. 
 
(11)  Construction Costs.  Under no circumstances shall the Consultant be liable for extra costs 
or other consequences due to unknown conditions or related to the failure of contractors to 
perform work in accordance with the plans and specifications.  Consultant shall have no liability 
whatsoever for any costs arising out of the Client’s decision to obtain bids or proceed with 
construction before the Consultant has issued final, fully-approved plans and specifications.  The 
Client acknowledges that all preliminary plans are subject to substantial revision until plans are 
fully approved and all permits obtained.      
 
(12)  Certifications.  The Consultant shall not be required to execute certifications or third-party 
reliance letters that are inaccurate, that relate to facts of which the Consultant does not have 
actual knowledge, or that would cause the Consultant to violate applicable rules of professional 
responsibility. 
 
(13)  Dispute Resolution.  All claims by the Client arising out of this Agreement or its breach 
shall be submitted first to mediation in accordance with the American Arbitration Association as a 
condition precedent to litigation.  Any mediation or civil action by Client must be commenced 
within one year of the accrual of the cause of action asserted but in no event later than allowed 
by applicable statutes. 
 
(14)  Hazardous Substances and Conditions.    Consultant shall not be a custodian, transporter, 
handler, arranger, contractor, or remediator with respect to hazardous substances and conditions.  
Consultant's services will be limited to analysis, recommendations, and reporting, including, when 
agreed to, plans and specifications for isolation, removal, or remediation.  The Consultant will 
notify the Client of unanticipated hazardous substances or conditions of which the Consultant 
actually becomes aware.  The Consultant may stop affected portions of its services until the 
hazardous substance or condition is eliminated.   
 
(15)  Construction Phase Services.   
(a)  If the Consultant prepares construction documents and the Consultant is not retained to make 
periodic site visits, the Client assumes all responsibility for interpretation of the documents and 
for construction observation, and the Client waives any claims against the Consultant in any way 
connected thereto.   
(b)  The Consultant shall have no responsibility for any contractor's means, methods, techniques, 
equipment choice and usage, sequence, schedule, safety programs, or safety practices, nor shall 
Consultant have any authority or responsibility to stop or direct the work of any contractor. The 

8.A.b

Packet Pg. 98



 

Rev 01/18 

17 

Consultant's visits will be for the purpose of endeavoring to provide the Client a greater degree of 
confidence that the completed work of its contractors will generally conform to the construction  
documents prepared by the Consultant.  Consultant neither guarantees the performance of 
contractors, nor assumes responsibility for any contractor’s failure to perform its work in 
accordance with the contract documents. 
(c)  The Consultant is not responsible for any duties assigned to it in the construction contract that 
are not expressly provided for in this Agreement.  The Client agrees that each contract with any 
contractor shall state that the contractor shall be solely responsible for job site safety and its 
means and methods; that the contractor shall indemnify the Client and the Consultant for all claims 
and liability arising out of job site accidents; and that the Client and the Consultant shall be made 
additional insureds under the contractor’s general liability insurance policy. 
 
(16)  No Third-Party Beneficiaries; Assignment and Subcontracting.  This Agreement gives 
no rights or benefits to anyone other than the Client and the Consultant, and all duties and 
responsibilities undertaken pursuant to this Agreement will be for the sole benefit of the Client 
and the Consultant.  The Client shall not assign or transfer any rights under or interest in this 
Agreement, or any claim arising out of the performance of services by Consultant, without the 
written consent of the Consultant.  The Consultant reserves the right to augment its staff with 
subconsultants as it deems appropriate due to project logistics, schedules, or market conditions.  
If the Consultant exercises this right, the Consultant will maintain the agreed-upon billing rates for 
services identif ied in the contract, regardless of whether the services are provided by in-house 
employees, contract employees, or independent subconsultants. 
 
(17)  Confidentiality.  The Client consents to the use and dissemination by the Consultant of 
photographs of the project and to the use by the Consultant of facts, data and information obtained 
by the Consultant in the performance of its services.  If, however, any facts, data or information 
are specifically identif ied in writing by the Client as confidential, the Consultant shall use 
reasonable care to maintain the confidentiality of that material. 
 
(18)  Miscellaneous Provisions.  This Agreement is to be governed by the law of the State of 
Georgia. This Agreement contains the entire and fully integrated agreement between the parties 
and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous negotiations, representations, agreements or 
understandings, whether written or oral.  Except as provided in Section 1, this Agreement can be 
supplemented or amended only by a written document executed by both parties.  Any conflicting 
or additional terms on any purchase order issued by the Client shall be void and are hereby 
expressly rejected by the Consultant.  Any provision in this Agreement that is unenforceable shall 
be ineffective to the extent of such unenforceability without invalidat ing the remaining provisions. 
The non-enforcement of any provision by either party shall not constitute a waiver of that provision 
nor shall it affect the enforceability of that provision or of the remainder of this Agreement.  

 

8.A.b

Packet Pg. 99



Other:Local Projects:final-selection-ranking-form

cal Public Agency's Name
Final Selection Ranking Form

Project No.:

Project Name: Six West 

Committee Member’s Name: Jackson Myers

Date: 11/5/2020

Scoring
0 Points = Poor

10 Points = Excellent

Final Selection
Consulting Firm’s Name

SELECTION CRITERIA Pond & Company Prime Engineering Kimley-Horn

Knowledge 10.00 10.00 10.00

Experience 10.00 10.00 10.00

Ability to Serve 10.00 10.00 10.00

Communication 9.00 9.00 9.00

Approach to Project 8.00 8.00 9.00

Total Points for Final Selection 47.00 47.00 48

Notes:

The primary considerations are relevant experience in the types of services needed and demonstrated ability 
to serve in a timely and effective manner. The basic criteria listed above evaluating during the evaluation 
process include: Knowledge – The engineer should have specialized education or training in the aspect of 
public planning or engineering that the bridge system needs. Experience – The engineer should have 
professional engineering experience with similar bridge design projects for a similar size system.

Instructions:  

• Fill in appropriate project Information & committee member’s name.
• Fill in all consultant firms’ names that were short listed. This will vary by project.  
• Fill in all selection criteria that relate to this specific project. The number of selection criteria used may vary 

by project. These criteria will also vary from the original short listed selection criteria.
• Score each interview based on the selection criteria & add up the total points for each firm.
• Document any notes in the space provided as justification for your scoring.  

8.A.c

Packet Pg. 100



Other:Local Projects:final-selection-ranking-form

cal Public Agency's Name
Final Selection Ranking Form

Project No.:

Project Name: Six West 

Committee Member’s Name: Artie Jones

Date: 11/5/2020

Scoring
0 Points = Poor

10 Points = Excellent

Final Selection
Consulting Firm’s Name

SELECTION CRITERIA Pond & Company Prime Engineering Kimley-Horn

Knowledge 10.00 10.00 10.00

Experience 10.00 10.00 10.00

Ability to Serve 10.00 10.00 10.00

Communication 9.00 9.00 9.00

Approach to Project 9.00 9.00 9.00

Total Points for Final Selection 48.00 48.00 48.00

Notes:

Given that all the above groups have been vetted and have previous experience with the City of College 
Park on design projects, they all are well qualified for the proposed design work.  

Instructions:  

• Fill in appropriate project Information & committee member’s name.
• Fill in all consultant firms’ names that were short listed. This will vary by project.  
• Fill in all selection criteria that relate to this specific project. The number of selection criteria used may vary 

by project. These criteria will also vary from the original short listed selection criteria.
• Score each interview based on the selection criteria & add up the total points for each firm.
• Document any notes in the space provided as justification for your scoring.  

8.A.d

Packet Pg. 101



Bid Tabulation Sheet 
 
 
Project/Equipment Name: Rhodes Street Bridge over Camp Creek Contributary   
 

Vendor Bid Amount Minority 
Status* 

Is the 
vendor 

located in 
College 
Park? 

Has the vendor 
previously 
conducted 

business with 
College Park? 

 
Pond & Company  
 

$200,000 Design 
$72,300 Inspector 
$272,300 Total 

None  No Yes 

 
Prime Engineering  
 

$455,000 4-Lane 
$428,000 2-Lane 

None No Yes 

Kimley-Horn 
 
 

$261,000 Design 
$50,000 Inspector 
$311,000 Total 

Employee 
Owned 

No Yes 

 
HBE –Hispanic Business Enterprise 
DBE – Disadvantaged Business Enterprise 
FBE – Female Business Enterprise 
 
*Please identify all abbreviations indicated on the bid matrix in a footnote. 
 
 
The “Brooks Act”, named for its sponsor, then-Representative Jack Brooks (D-TX), provided for an innovative and creative way to 

select firms to perform architecture, engineering and related services by contract to federal agencies. Years before “best value’, “past 

performance” and other modern procurement processes were even dreamed of, Messrs, Nixon and Brooks, political rivals, and other 

Republicans and Democrats had the vision to recognize the “lowest bid” did not always mean the best deal for the taxpayer. 

8.A.e

Packet Pg. 102



   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8446  

Updated: 11/6/2020 1:15 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: November 6, 2020 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

THROUGH: Terrence R. Moore, City Manager 

 

FROM: Mike Mason, Public Works Director 

 

RE:  Contract Extension of the Annual Elevated Water Tank Maintenance 

 

 

PURPOSE: To renew the current annual tank maintenance contract for one year with Utility 

Service Incorporated for the required maintenance to be performed on the City’s two (2) 

Elevated Water Storage Tanks located at West Fayetteville Road and Charlestown Drive.  

 

REASON:  Performance of this annual maintenance is critical to the life and sustainability of 

each water tanks.  This is done to ensure potable water quality and structural integrity.   

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Mayor and City Council approve the renewal of the current annual 

water tank maintenance contract with Utility Service Incorporated for the City’s (2) two elevated 

water tanks in the amount of $23,717.00.    

 

BACKGROUND:  The City of College Park currently owns and operates two (2) elevated  

water storage tanks that holds a combined 1,250,000 (gallons). This year’s maintenance on the 

West Fayetteville and Charlestown tanks consist of a visual inspection of the exterior to assess 

the structural condition, safety features, and coatings conditions.  A comprehensive written 

report with color digital photographs will be submitted detailing the condition of both tanks.  

 

COST TO CITY: $23,717.00 

BUDGETED ITEM: Yes, Water/Sewer Fund Account - R&M Distribution 505-4400-52-5790. 

 REVENUE TO CITY:  N/A 

CITY COUNCIL HEARING DATE:  November 16, 2020 

CONSIDERATION BY OTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITIES:  N/A 

AFFECTED AGENCIES:  N/A 

8.B

Packet Pg. 103



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8446)  Meeting of November 16, 2020 

Updated: 11/6/2020 1:15 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 2 

RELATIONSHIP TO EXISTING ORDINANCE OR RESOLUTION:  N/A 

REQUIRED CHANGES TO WORK PROGRAMS:  N/A 

STAFF:  Water and Sewer 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 College Park (PDF) 

 Water Tank Agreement - Charleston Drive & West Fayetteville Road (DOC) 

 Addendum (PDF) 

 

Review: 

 Mike Mason Completed 11/06/2020 10:04 AM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 11/06/2020 1:21 PM 

 Purchasing Completed 11/06/2020 1:34 PM 

 City Attorney's Office Completed 11/06/2020 2:38 PM 

 Terrence R. Moore Completed 11/09/2020 2:54 PM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 11/16/2020 7:30 PM 

8.B

Packet Pg. 104





STATE OF GEORGIA 

COUNTY OF FULTON 

 

WATER TANK MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT WITH UTILITY SERVICE 

COMPANY FOR CHARLESTOWN DRIVE AND WEST FAYETTEVILE ROAD 

WATER TANKS 
 

This Agreement made and entered into this         day of , 20  , between 

the City of College Park, Georgia (hereinafter "the City") and Utility Service Co., Inc., (hereinafter 

“the Contractor”), witnesseth: 

WHEREAS, the City has previously contracted with Contractor for yearly maintenance of 

the City’s water tanks; and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to continue retaining Contractor for provision of said services 

and Contractor desires to continue providing said services. 

NOW THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

1. DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES: Contractor shall provide professional services 

needed to service the 500,000 gallon Water Tank owned by the City at 2770 

Charlestown Drive and the 750,000 gallon Water Tank owned by the City at 5237 W. 

Fayetteville Road. The full Scope of Services for all said locations is detailed in 

Exhibit A, which is attached hereto and incorporated herein. 

2. TERM OF AGREEMENT: The term of this agreement is for one (1) year from the 

date of execution of this Agreement. 

3. COSTS AND RETAINAGE: 

$23,717.00 

4. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTING: The Contractor shall not assign this 

Agreement or any portion of this Agreement, nor shall the Contractor subcontract for 

completed or substantially completed services purchased hereunder without the prior 

express written consent of the City. No assignment or subcontract by the Contractor, 

including any assignment or subcontract to which the City consents, shall in any way 

relieve the Contractor from complete and punctual performance of this Agreement, 

including without limitation all of the Contractor’s obligations under the Warranty 

provisions of the this Agreement. 

 

 

 

1 of 12 

8.B.b

Packet Pg. 106



5. WORK ON THE CITY’S  DESIGNATED  PREMISES :  When  the 

Contractor, the Contractor's employees or agents or the Contractor's subcontractors 

enter the City's designated premises for any reason in connection with this Agreement, 

the Contractor and such other parties shall observe all security requirements and all 

plant safety, plant protection, and traffic regulations. The Contractor shall defend, 

indemnify, and hold the City harmless from all claims, actions, demands, loss, and 

causes of action, arising from injury, including death, to any person, or damage to any 

property, when such injury or damage results in whole or in part from the acts or 

omissions of the Contractor, the Contractor's employees or agents or the Contractor’s 

subcontractors, save and except damage caused by the sole negligence of the City. The 

Contractor, and any subcontractor used by the Contractor in connection with this 

Agreement, shall carry Workers’ Compensation and Employees' Liability Insurance to 

cover the Contractor's and any subcontractor's legal liability on account of accidents to 

their employees. The Contractor and any subcontractor shall carry adequate 

Comprehensive General Liability and adequate Comprehensive Automobile Liability 

Insurance covering accidents to their employees. The Contractor and any subcontractor 

shall carry adequate Comprehensive General Liability and adequate Comprehensive 

Automobile Liability Insurance covering legal liability of the Contractor and any 

subcontractor on account of accidents arising out of the operations of the Contractor or 

any subcontractor and resulting in bodily injury, including death, being sustained by 

any person or persons, or in any damage to property. At the City's request, the 

Contractor shall furnish to the City certificates from the Contractor's insurers showing 

such coverage in effect and agreeing to give the City ten (10) days' prior written notice 

of cancellation of the coverage. 

6. WARRANTY. 

Contractor hereby guarantees that the work shall be free from defects in labor for one (1) 

year from the date of completion of the work. Contractor further warrants that after 

completion of all inspections on the Water Tanks, the tanks will meet the requirements 

American Water Wastewater Association (AWWA) C652 Guidelines. 

7. RISK MANAGEMENT REQUIREMENTS: The Contractor shall abide by the City’s 

applicable Risk Management Requirements attached to this Agreement as Exhibit B and 

hereby incorporated into this Agreement. 

8. TERMINATION FOR DEFAULT: 

(a) The City may, subject to the provisions of subparagraph (c) below, by written 

notice of default to the Contractor, terminate the whole or any part of this 

Agreement in any one of the following circumstances: (i) if the Contractor fails to 

perform this Agreement within the time specified herein or any extension thereof; 

or (ii) if the Contractor fails to perform any of the other provisions of this 

8.B.b

Packet Pg. 107



Agreement, or so fails to make progress as to endanger performance of this 

Agreement in accordance with its terms, and does not cure such failure within a 

period of ten (10) days after receipt of notice from the City specifying such 

failure. 

(b) In the event the City terminates this Agreement in whole or in part as provided in 

subparagraph (a) above, the City may procure, upon such terms and in such 

manner as the City may deem appropriate, services similar to those so terminated, 

and the Contractor shall be liable to the City for any excess costs for the same; 

provided, that the Contractor shall continue the performance of this Agreement to 

the extent not terminated hereunder. 

(c) Except with respect to defaults of subcontractors, the Contractor shall not be 

liable for any excess costs if the failure to perform this Agreement arises out of 

causes beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of the Contractor 

Such causes may include, but are not limited to, acts of God, or of the public 

enemy, acts of the Government in either its sovereign or contractual capacity, 

fires, flood, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, strikes, freight embargoes, and 

unusually severe weather, but in every case the failure to perform must be beyond 

the control and without the fault or negligence of the Contractor. 

If the failure to perform is caused by the default of a subcontractor, and if such 

default arises out of causes beyond the control of both the Contractor and the 

subcontractor, and without the fault or negligence of either of them, the 

Contractor shall not be liable for any excess costs for failure to perform, unless 

the services to be furnished by the subcontractor were obtainable from other 

sources in sufficient time to permit the Contractor to meet the required delivery 

schedule.  The term "subcontractor" shall mean a subcontractor at any tier. 

(d) If, after notice of termination of this Agreement under the provisions of this 

paragraph, it is determined for any reason that the Contractor was not in default 

under the provisions above, or that the default was excusable under the 

provisions of this paragraph, the rights and obligations of the parties shall be the 

same as if the notice of termination had been issued pursuant to the "Termination 

for Convenience" paragraph of this Agreement. 

(e) The rights and remedies of the City provided in this paragraph shall not be 

exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or 

under this Agreement. 

8. TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE: The City may at any time by written notice 

terminate all or any part of this Agreement for the City's convenience. If this Agreement 

is terminated, in whole or in part, for the City's convenience, the Contractor shall be paid 

a prorated amount equal to the time period in which the services were provided. 

8.B.b

Packet Pg. 108



9. DISPUTES: Pending resolution of any dispute hereunder, the Contractor shall proceed 

diligently with the performance of work in accordance with the City's direction. 

10. NOTICES: All notices required or permitted to be given hereunder shall be deemed to 

be properly given if delivered in writing personally or sent by United States certified or 

registered mail addressed to the Contractor or the City, as the case may be, with postage 

thereon fully prepaid. The effective time of notice shall be at the time of mailing. 

If to the City: 

 

College Park City Hall 

Attn: Purchasing Manager 

3667 Main Street 

College Park, Georgia 30338 

 

With copies to: 

 

Fincher Denmark LLC 

Attn: Steven M. Fincher, Esq. 

8024 Fair Oaks Court 

Jonesboro, Georgia 30326 

 
If to the Contractor: 

 

Utility Service Company, Inc. 

Attn:    

11th  Floor Promenade II Building 

1230 Peachtree Street, N.E. 

Suite 1100 

Atlanta, Georgia 30309 

 
 

15.  ATTORNEY’S FEES: The Contractor shall pay reasonable attorney's fees to the City 

should the City be required to incur attorney's fees in enforcing the provisions of this 

Agreement. 

16. RELATIONSHIP OF PARTIES 

(a) Independent Contractors. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to create any 

relationship other than that of independent contractor between the City and 

Contractor. This Agreement shall not constitute, create, or otherwise imply an 

employment, joint venture, partnership, agency or similar arrangement between the 

City and Contractor. It is expressly agreed that Contractor is acting as an 

independent contractor and not as an employee in providing the Services under this 

Agreement. 

 

(b) Employee Benefits. Contractor shall not be eligible for any benefit available to 

8.B.b

Packet Pg. 109



employees of the City including, but not limited to, workers’ compensation 

insurance, state disability insurance, unemployment insurance, group health and life 

insurance, vacation pay, sick pay, severance pay, bonus plans, pension plans, or 

savings plans. 

 

(c) Payroll Taxes. No income, social security, state disability or other federal or state 

payroll tax will be deducted from payments made to Company under this 

Agreement. Contractor shall be responsible for all FICA, federal and state 

withholding taxes and workers’ compensation coverage for any individuals 

assigned to perform the Services for the City. 

 

17. STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE AND COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE - 

LAWS 

 

Contractor warrants and represents that it possesses the special skill and professional 

competence, expertise and experience to undertake the obligations imposed by this 

Agreement. Contractor agrees to perform in a diligent, efficient, competent and skillful 

manner commensurate with the highest standards of the profession, and to otherwise 

perform as is necessary to undertake the Services required by this Agreement. 

 
Contractor warrants and represents that it will, at all times, observe and comply with all 

federal, state, local and municipal ordinances, building codes, rules, regulations, relating 

to the provision of the Services to be provided by Contractor hereunder or which in any 

manner affect this Agreement, including, without limitation, the provisions of 29 CFR 

1910.147 (OSHA Lockout/Tagout Standard). 

 
18. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 

 

Contractor warrants and represents that: 

 
(a) the Services to be performed hereunder will not create an actual or apparent 

conflict   of interest with any other work it is currently performing; and 

 

(b) Contractor is not presently subject to any agreement with a competitor or with any 

other party that will prevent Contractor from performing in full accord with this 

Agreement; and 

 

(c) Contractor is not subject to any statute, regulation, ordinance or rule that will limit 

its ability to perform its obligations under this Agreement. The parties agree that 

Contractor shall be free to accept other work during the term hereof; provided, 

however, that such other work shall not interfere with the provision of Services 

hereunder. 

8.B.b

Packet Pg. 110



19. GOVERNING LAW AND CONSENT TO JURISDICTION 
 

This Agreement is made and entered into in the State of Georgia and this Agreement 

and the rights and obligations of the parties hereto shall be governed by and construed 

according to the laws of the State of Georgia without giving effect to the principles of 

conflicts of laws. The jurisdiction for resolution of any disputes arising from this 

Agreement shall be in the State Courts of Fulton County, Georgia. 

20. WAIVER OF BREACH 
 

The waiver by either party of a breach or violation of any provision of this 

Agreement shall not operate or be construed to constitute a waiver of any subsequent 

breach or violation of the same or other provision thereof. 

21. SEVERABILITY 
 

If any provision of this Agreement is held to be unenforceable for any reason, the 

unenforceability thereof shall not affect the remainder of the Agreement, which shall 

remain in full force and effect, and enforceable in accordance with its terms. 

22. COUNTERPARTS 
 

This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall 

constitute the original, but all of which taken together shall constitute one and the 

same Agreement. PDF signatures shall constitute original signatures. 

22. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 
 

This Agreement which includes the exhibits hereto contains the entire agreement and 

understanding of the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes 

and replaces any and all prior discussions, representations and understandings, 

whether oral or written. 

 

[SIGNATURES APPEAR ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 

8.B.b

Packet Pg. 111



 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF this day of , 20    , said parties have hereunto set 

their seals the day and year above first written. 

 

Executed on behalf of: 

 

CITY OF COLLEGE PARK, GEORGIA 

 

 
By:     

Bianca Motley Broom, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 
By:     

Municipal Clerk 

(SEAL) 

 
DATE:    

 

 

 

UTILITY SERVICE COMPANY, INC. 

 

By:    

Name:     

Title:     

 

 

 

ATTEST:  
 

 

Corporate Secretary 
 

[Corporate Seal] 

 

 

DATE: 
 

 

8.B.b

Packet Pg. 112



EXHIBIT A 

 

SCOPE OF WORK 
 

Contractor shall be responsible for rehabilitation and inspection of the Charlestown and W. 

Fayetteville Water Tanks, including as follows: 

 

 Contractor will inspect and service each tank as outlined below. The tank and tower will be 

thoroughly inspected to ensure that the structure is in a sound, watertight condition. 

 

 During the washout/inspections, the tanks will be completely drained and cleaned to remove all 

mud, silt, and other accumulations that might be harmful to that tank or its contents. After cleaning 

is completed, the interior will be thoroughly inspected and disinfected prior to returning the tank to 

service; however, the City is responsible for draining and filling the tank and conducting any 

required testing of the water.  A written report will be mailed to the City after each inspection. 

 

 A lock will be installed on the roof hatch of each tank. 

 

 Contractor will furnish pressure relief valves, if requested by the City, so that the City can installed 

the valves in its water system while the tanks are being serviced. 

 

 Contractor will furnish current certificates of insurance coverage to the City as required in Exhibit 

B. 

 

 

 

Any modification to the tanks, including antenna installations, shall be approved by Contractor prior 

to installation and may warrant an increase in the annual fee. 

 

The City hereby agrees that future mandated environmental, health, safety, or labor requirements as 

well as changes in site conditions at the tank site which cause an increase in the cost of tank 

maintenance will be just cause for modification of this Agreement. Said modification of this 

Agreement will reasonable reflect the increased cost of service with a newly negotiated annual fee. 

 

The City agrees to notify Contractor immediately if the Contractor’s work is (or will become) subject 

to prevailing wage requirements, so that the Contractor may submit a revised amount for annual fees. 

 
EXCLUDED: 

 

 Cost for and/or liability on the part of the Contractor for 

o (1) containment of the tank at anytime during the terms of the Agreement; 

8.B.b

Packet Pg. 113



o Disposal of any hazardous waste materials; 
 

o Resolution of operational problems or structural damage due to cold weather; 
 

o Repair of structural damage due to antenna installations or other attachments for which 

the tank was not originally designed; 

 

o Resolution of operational problems or repair of structural damage or site damage 

caused by physical conditions below the surface of the ground; 

 

o Negligent acts of the City’s employees, agents or contractors; 

 

o Damages, whether foreseen or unforeseen, caused by the City’s use of pressure relief 

valves; 

 

o Repairs to the foundation of the tank; 
 

o Structural repairs or interior renovations as set forth herein; 

 

o Other conditions which are beyond the City’s and Contractor’s control, including, but 

not limited to: acts of God and acts of terrorism. Acts of terrorism include, but are 

not limited to, any damage to the tank or tank site which results from unauthorized 

entry of any kind to the tank site or tank; and 

 
o Any future exterior painting, interior painting, or repairs. 

8.B.b

Packet Pg. 114



EXHIBIT B 

RISK MANAGEMENT REQUIREMENTS 

 

The Contractor will provide minimum insurance coverage and limits as per the following: The Contractor 

will file with the City Certificates of Insurance, certifying the required insurance coverage and stating that 

each policy has been endorsed to provide thirty (30) day notice to the City in the event that coverage is 

cancelled, non-renewed, or the types of coverage or limits of liability are reduced below those required. 

All bonds and insurance coverage must be placed with an insurance company approved by the City’s 

Management, admitted to do business in the State of Georgia, and rated Secure (“B+” or better) by A.M. 

Best Company in the latest edition of Property and Casualty Ratings, or rated by Standard & Poors 

Insurance Ratings, latest edition as Secure (“BBB” or better). Worker’s Compensation self-insurance for 

individual Contractors must be approved by the Worker’s Compensation Board, State of Georgia and/or 

Self-Insurance pools approved by the Insurance Commissioner, State of Georgia. 
 

   
 

Worker’s Compensation – Worker’s 

Compensation coverage on a statutory basis for 

the State of Georgia with an Employer’s Liability 

limit   of   $100,000   each   Accident,   Disease 

$100,000 each employee, $500,000 Disease 

policy limit. 

Automobile Liability – Automobile liability 

coverage for owned, hired and non-owned 

vehicles in the amount of $500,000 combined 

single limit. 

Commercial General Liability – Coverage to 

be provided on “occurrence” not “claims made” 

basis. The coverage is to include Contractual 

liability, Per Project Limit of Liability, losses 

caused by Explosion, Collapse and Underground 

(“xcu”) perils, the “City of College Park, 

Georgia” is to be added as an Additional Insured 

and Products and Completed Operations 

coverage is to be maintained for three (3) years 

following completion of work. 

Worker’s Compensation – Worker’s 

Compensation coverage on a statutory basis for 

the State of Georgia with an Employer’s Liability 

limit of $1,000,000. The increased Employer’s 

Liability limit may be provided by an Umbrella or 

Excess Liability policy. 

Automobile Liability - Automobile liability 

coverage for owned, hired and non-owned 

vehicles in the amount of $1,000,000 combined 

single limit. 

Commercial General Liability – Coverage to be 

provided on “occurrence” not “claims made” 

basis. The coverage is to include Contractual 

liability, Per Project Limit of Liability, losses 

caused by Explosion, Collapse and Underground 

(“xcu”) perils, the “City of College Park, 

Georgia” is to be added as an Additional Insured 

and Products and Completed Operations coverage 

is to be maintained for three (3) years following 

completion of work. 

CONTRACTS FOR UP TO $50,000 CONTRACTS FOR MORE THAN $50,000 

8.B.b

Packet Pg. 115



 RISK MANAGEMENT REQUIREMENTS (Cont’d)  
 
 

   
 

LIMITS OF LIABILITY: 

 

$1,000,000 Per Occurrence 

 
$1,000,000 Personal and Advertising 

 
$50,000 Fire Damage* 

 
$5,000 Medical Payments* 

 
$1,000,000 General Aggregate 

 
$1,000,000 Products/Completed Operations per 

Occurrence and Aggregate 

 
*These are automatic minimums 

 

Owner’s Protective Liability – The City’s 

Management may, in its discretion, require 

Owner’s Protective Liability in some situations. 

Umbrella and/or Excess Liability – The 

umbrella or Excess Liability Policy may be used 

to combine with underlying policies to obtain the 

limits required. The Management of the City 

may elect to require higher limits. 

 
Owner’s Protective Liability – The City’s 

Management may, in its discretion, require 

Owner’s Protective Liability in some situations. 

 

 

 
 

END OF SECTION 

CONTRACTS FOR UP TO $50,000 CONTRACTS FOR MORE THAN $50,000 

8.B.b

Packet Pg. 116



Affidavit Verifying Status 

For City Public Benefit Application 

By executing this affidavit under oath, as an applicant for a(n) [type of 

public benefit], as referenced in O.C.G.A. § 50-36-1, from [name 

of government entity], the undersigned applicant verifies one of the following with respect to 

my application for a public benefit: 

 

1)   I am a United States citizen. 

 
2)   I am a legal permanent resident of the United States. 

 
3)    I am a qualified alien or non-immigrant under the Federal Immigration and 

Nationality Act with an alien number issued by the Department of Homeland 

Security or other federal immigration agency. 

My alien number issued by the Department of Homeland Security or other federal immigration 

agency is: . 

 

The undersigned applicant also hereby verifies that he or she is 18 years of age or older and has 

provided   at   least   one   secure   and   verifiable   document,   as   required   by   O.C.G.A. 

§ 50-36-1(e)(1), with this affidavit. 

 
The  secure  and  verifiable  document  provided  with  this  affidavit  can  best  be  classified  as: 

  . 

 
In making the above representation under oath, I understand that any person who knowingly and 

willfully makes a false, fictitious, or fraudulent statement or representation in an affidavit shall be 

guilty of a violation of O.C.G.A. § 16-10-20, and face criminal penalties as allowed by such criminal 

statute. 

 

Executed in (city), (state). 
 

 
 

Signature of Applicant 
 

 
 

 

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN 

BEFORE ME ON THIS THE 

  DAY OF , 20   

Printed Name of Applicant 

 

 
 

NOTARY PUBLIC 

My Commission Expires: 

8.B.b

Packet Pg. 117





   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8441  

Updated: 11/6/2020 3:14 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: November 6, 2020 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

THROUGH: Terrence R. Moore, City Manager 

 

FROM: Loretta Washington, City Engineer 

 

RE:  Proposed Revisions to City Ordinance - Post-Development Stormwater 

Management 

 

 

PURPOSE:  Regulatory update required by the Metropolitan North Georgia Water Planning 

District (Metro District) Model Ordinance. This update will improve the City’s ability to control 

the quality and quantity of stormwater runoff discharged from development, while also reducing 

flooding and facilitating resilient, sustainable development. 

 

REASON:  In December 2019, the Metro District released a new Post-Construction Stormwater 

Management Model Ordinance. Municipalities subject to the Metro District’s authority must 

adopt an ordinance that is substantially similar to the Model Ordinance. College Park’s current 

Post-Development Stormwater Management Ordinance already meets most of the standards in 

the Model Ordinance. 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  Revise City Code, Chapter 10 - Municipal Utilities and Services, 

Article VII - Post-Development Stormwater Management for New Development and 

Redevelopment, Divisions 1 & 2 - Sections 10-190 thru 10-206.  See attached “Redlined” and 

“Clean” Proposed Ordinance Revisions. 
 

BACKGROUND:  The purpose of this ordinance is to protect, maintain and enhance the public 

health, safety, environment and general welfare by establishing minimum requirements and 

procedures to control the adverse effects of increased post-development stormwater runoff and 

non-point source pollution associated with new development and redevelopment. Proper 

management of post- construction stormwater runoff will minimize damage to public and private 

property and infrastructure, safeguard the public health, safety, environment and general welfare 

of the public, and protect water and aquatic resources. Additionally, the City is required to 

comply with several State and Federal laws, regulations and permits and the requirements of the 

Metropolitan North Georgia Water Planning District’s regional water plan related to managing 

the water quantity, velocity, and quality of post- construction stormwater runoff.  
 

10.A

Packet Pg. 119



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8441)  Meeting of November 16, 2020 

Updated: 11/6/2020 3:14 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 2 

Updates include: 

• Minor typographical changes to improve consistency 

• Adopt and define new terms 

• Adopt a Runoff Reduction Feasibility Policy 

• New “Alternative Compliance Process” to ensure stormwater discharges achieve water quantity 

and quality controls to the maximum extent feasible. 

 o This process integrates with the Runoff Reduction and Linear Transportation Project     

Feasibility Policies.  
 

 

COST TO CITY:  Consultant preparation, staff review and city attorney's office ordinance 

review. 

 

BUDGETED ITEM:   Not applicable. 

 

REVENUE TO CITY:  Future costs for development. 

 

CITY COUNCIL HEARING DATE:  November 16, 2020. 

 

CONSIDERATION BY OTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITIES:  None. 

 

AFFECTED AGENCIES:  :  Public Works' Storm Water Utility Division. 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO EXISTING ORDINANCE OR RESOLUTION:  Ordinance 2006-29. 

 

REQUIRED CHANGES TO WORK PROGRAMS:  None known. 

 

STAFF:  Mike Mason, Public Works Director. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 Redline - Post-Development Stormwater Ordinance Article VII Update (DOCX) 

 Clean - Post-Development Stormwater Ordinance Article VII Update (DOCX) 

 

Review: 

 Loretta Washington Completed 11/04/2020 8:12 AM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 11/06/2020 3:14 PM 

 Mike Mason Completed 11/10/2020 12:55 PM 

 City Attorney's Office Pending  

 Terrence R. Moore Completed 11/12/2020 3:14 PM 

10.A

Packet Pg. 120



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8441)  Meeting of November 16, 2020 

Updated: 11/6/2020 3:14 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 3 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 11/16/2020 7:30 PM 

10.A

Packet Pg. 121



























































STATE OF GEORGIA 1 

CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 2 

ORDINANCE NO. ___ 3 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, CITY OF COLLEGE 4 

PARK, GEORGIA, BY AMENDING CHAPTER 10 (MUNICIPAL UTILITIES AND 5 

SERVICES), ARTICLE VII (POST-DEVELOPMENT STORMWATER MANAGEMENT 6 

FOR NEW DEVELOPMENT AND REDEVELOPMENT), TO PROVIDE FOR 7 

SEVERABILITY; TO PROVIDE FOR CODIFICATION; TO PROVIDE AN ADOPTION 8 

AND EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER LAWFUL PURPOSES. 9 

  WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority of the City of College Park, 10 

Georgia (the “City”) is the Mayor and Council thereof; and 11 

WHEREAS, the City of College Park is authorized by O.C.G.A. §36-35-3 to adopt 12 

ordinances relating to its property, affairs and local government; and 13 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council have determined that it is appropriate to 14 

amend said sections of the Code of Ordinances of the City of College Park to be 15 

consistent with state law and to further protect the public health, safety, and welfare of 16 

the citizens of the City. 17 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT AND IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR 18 

AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE PARK, and by the authority thereof: 19 

Section 1.  Chapter 10 (Municipal Utilities and Services), Article VII (Post-20 

development stormwater management for new development and redevelopment) of the 21 

Code of Ordinances of the City of College Park, Georgia, is hereby amended and is to 22 

read as follows: 23 

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 150



ARTICLE VII. - POST-DEVELOPMENT STORMWATER MANAGEMENT FOR NEW 24 

DEVELOPMENT AND REDEVELOPMENT 25 

Editor's note— Ord. No. 2006-29, § 1, adopted Sept. 18, 2006, amended this chapter by 26 

adding Art. VII, §§ 10-160—10-193. In order to avoid conflicts in section numbering the 27 

editor has renumbered the provisions added by Ord. No. 2006-29 as herein set out.  28 

DIVISION 1. - GENERALLY 29 

Sec. 10-190. - Authority. 30 

This article is enacted pursuant to Official Code of Georgia Section 12-5-582(e)(1).  31 

(Ord. No. 2006-29, § 1, 9-18-06)  32 

Sec. 10-191. - Findings of fact. 33 

The mayor and council make the following findings of fact:  34 

(a) Post-development stormwater management requirements for new development and 35 

redevelopment in a community must be addressed.  36 

(b) Requirements for a post-development stormwater management plan are required in 37 

order to undertake land development activities.  38 

(c) Details of how the development will address post-development stormwater runoff 39 

quality and quantity impacts resulting from the permanent alteration of the character and 40 

hydrology of the land surface as well as the nonpoint source pollution from land use 41 

activities are necessary.  42 

(d) Water quantity and quality performance criteria for managing runoff must be 43 

outlined.  44 

(e) Requirements for the use of structural stormwater controls and nonstructural 45 

practices must be specified in order to protect public health and safety, protection of 46 

public and private property and infrastructure; and  47 

(f) Long term inspection and maintenance provisions must be provided.  48 

(Ord. No. 2006-29, § 1, 9-18-06)  49 

Sec. 10-192. - Statement of purpose. 50 

The purpose of this article is to protect, maintain and enhance the public health, safety, 51 

environment and general welfare by establishing minimum requirements and 52 

procedures to control the adverse effects of increased post-development stormwater 53 

runoff and nonpoint source pollution associated with new development and 54 

redevelopment. Proper management of post- construction stormwater runoff will 55 

minimize damage to public and private property and infrastructure, safeguard the public 56 

health, safety, environment and general welfare of the public, and protect water and 57 

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 151



aquatic resources. Additionally, the City is required to comply with several State and 58 

Federal laws, regulations and permits and the requirements of the Metropolitan North 59 

Georgia Water Planning District’s regional water plan related to managing the water 60 

quantity, velocity, and quality of post- construction stormwater runoff.  61 

(Ord. No. 2006-29, § 1, 9-18-06)  62 

Sec. 10-193. - Objectives. 63 

It has been determined that proper management of post-development stormwater runoff 64 

will minimize damage to public and private property and infrastructure, safeguard the 65 

public health, safety, environment and general welfare of the public through the 66 

following objectives:  67 

(a) Establish decision-making processes surrounding land development activities that 68 

protect the integrity of the watershed and preserve the health of water resources;  69 

(b) Require that the new development and redevelopment maintain the predevelopment 70 

hydrologic response in their post-development state as nearly as practicable in order to 71 

reduce flooding, stream bank erosion, nonpoint source pollution and increase in stream 72 

temperature, and maintain the integrity of stream channels and aquatic habitats;  73 

(c) Establish minimum post-development stormwater management standards and 74 

design criteria for the regulation and control of stormwater runoff quantity and quality;  75 

(d) Establish design and application criteria for the construction and use of structural 76 

stormwater control facilities that can be used to meet the minimum post-development 77 

stormwater management standards;  78 

(e) Encourage the use of nonstructural stormwater management and better site design 79 

practices, such as the preservation of greenspace and other conservation areas, to the 80 

maximum extent practicable. Coordinate site design plans, which include greenspace, 81 

with the county's greenspace protection plan;  82 

(f) Establish provisions for the long-term responsibility for and maintenance of structural 83 

stormwater control facilities and nonstructural stormwater management practices to 84 

ensure that they continue to function as designed, are maintained, and pose no threat to 85 

public safety; and  86 

(g) Establish administrative procedures for the submission, review, approval and 87 

disapproval of stormwater management plans, and for the inspection of approved active 88 

projects, and long-term follow up.  89 

(Ord. No. 2006-29, § 1, 9-18-06)  90 

Sec. 10-194. - Applicability. 91 

(a) This article shall be applicable to all land development, including, but not limited to, 92 

site plan applications, subdivision applications, and grading applications, unless exempt 93 

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 152



pursuant to Subsection 2 below. These standards apply to any new development or 94 

redevelopment site that meets one or more of the following criteria:  95 

(1) New development that involves the creation of five (5,000) square feet or 96 

more of impervious cover, or that involves other land development activities of 97 

one (1) acre or more;  98 

(2) Redevelopment (excluding routine maintenance and exterior remodeling) that 99 

includes the creation, addition or replacement of five thousand (5,000) square 100 

feet or more of impervious cover, or that involves other land development activity 101 

of one (1) acre or more;  102 

(3) New development or redevelopment if 103 

(i) such new development or redevelopment is part of a subdivision or 104 

other common plan of development, and  105 

(ii) the sum of all associated impervious surface area or land disturbing 106 

activities that are being developed as part of such subdivision or other 107 

common plan of development meets or exceeds the threshold in (1) and 108 

(2) above;  109 

(4) Land development activities that are smaller than the minimum applicability 110 

criteria set forth in items (1) and (2) above if such activities are part of a larger 111 

common plan of development, even though multiple, separate and distinct land 112 

development activities may take place at different times on different schedules. 113 

(5) Any commercial or industrial new development or redevelopment, regardless 114 

of size, that is a hotspot land use as defined in this Article; and 115 

(6) Linear transportation projects that exceed the threshold in (1) or (2) above.   116 

(b) The following activities are exempt from this article:  117 

(1) Individual single-family or duplex residential lots that are not part of a 118 

subdivision or phased development project;  119 

(2) Additions or modifications to existing single-family or duplex residential 120 

structures;  121 

(3) Land disturbing activity conducted by local, state, authority, or federal 122 

agencies, solely to respond to an emergency need to protect life, limb, or 123 

property or conduct emergency repairs;  124 

(4) Land disturbing activity that consists solely of cutting a trench for utility work 125 

and related pavement replacement;  126 

 127 

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 153



(5) Land disturbing activity conducted by local, state, authority, or federal 128 

agencies, whose sole purpose is to implement stormwater management or 129 

environmental restoration;   130 

(6) Agricultural practices as described O.C.G.A. 12-7-17(5) within areas zoned 131 

for these activities with the exception of buildings or permanent structures that 132 

exceed the threshold in Section 10.194 (a), (1) or (2);  133 

(7) Silvicultural land management activities as described O.C.G.A. 12-7-17(6) 134 

within areas zoned for these activities with the exception of buildings or 135 

permanent structures that exceed the threshold in Section 10.194 (a), (1) or (2));  136 

(8) Installations or modifications to existing structures solely to implement 137 

Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) requirements, including but not limited to 138 

elevator shafts, handicapped access ramps and parking, and enlarged entrances 139 

or exits; and 140 

(9) Linear transportation projects being constructed by City of College Park to the 141 

extent the administrator determines that the stormwater management standards 142 

may be infeasible to apply, all or in part, for any portion of the linear 143 

transportation project. For this exemption to apply, an infeasibility report that is 144 

compliant with the City of College Park linear feasibility program shall first be 145 

submitted to the administrator that contains adequate documentation to support 146 

the evaluation for the applicable portion(s) and any resulting infeasibility 147 

determination, if any, by the administrator.   148 

 149 

(Ord. No. 2006-29, § 1, 9-18-06)  150 

Sec. 10-195. - Definitions. 151 

Administrator means the person appointed to administer and implement this Article on 152 

Post-Construction Stormwater Management for New Development and Redevelopment 153 

in accordance with Section 10-196.  154 

Applicant. A person submitting a post-development stormwater management application 155 

and plan for approval.  156 

“BMP” or “best management practice” means both structural devices to store or treat 157 

stormwater runoff and non-structural programs or practices which are designed to 158 

prevent or reduce the pollution of the waters of the State of Georgia.   159 

“BMP landscaping plan” means a design for vegetation and landscaping that is critical 160 

to the performance and function of the BMP including how the BMP will be stabilized 161 

and established with vegetation. It shall include a layout of plants and plant names 162 

(local and scientific).  163 

 164 

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 154



Channel. A natural or artificial watercourse with a definite bed and banks that conducts 165 

continuously or periodically flowing water.  166 

Conservation easement. An agreement between a land owner and the city or other 167 

government agency or land trust that permanently protects open space or greenspace 168 

on the owner's land by limiting the amount and type of development that can take place, 169 

but continues to leave the remainder of the fee interest in private ownership.  170 

Detention. The temporary storage of stormwater runoff in a stormwater management 171 

facility for the purpose of controlling the peak discharge. 172 

Detention facility. A detention basin or structure designed for the detention of 173 

stormwater runoff and gradual release of stored water at controlled rates.  174 

Developer. A person who undertakes land development activities.  175 

Development. A land development or land development project.  176 

Drainage easement. An easement appurtenant or attached to a tract or parcel of land 177 

allowing the owner of adjacent tracts or other persons to discharge stormwater runoff 178 

onto the tract or parcel of land subject to the drainage easement.   179 

Erosion and sedimentation control plan. A plan that is designed to minimize the 180 

accelerated erosion and sediment runoff at a site during land disturbance activities.  181 

Extended detention. The detention of a stormwater runoff for an extended period, 182 

typically twenty-four (24) hours or greater. 183 

Extreme flood protection. Measures taken to prevent adverse impacts from large low-184 

frequency storm events with a return frequency of one hundred (100) years or more.  185 

Flooding. A volume of surface water that is too great to be confined within the banks or 186 

walls of a conveyance or stream channel and that overflows onto adjacent lands.  187 

Greenspace or open space. Permanently protected areas of the site that are preserved 188 

in a natural state. 189 

GSMM means the latest edition of the Georgia Stormwater Management Manual, 190 

Volume 2: Technical Handbook, and its Appendices.   191 

Hotspot. An area where the use of the land has the potential to generate highly 192 

contaminated runoff, with concentration of pollutants in excess of those typically found 193 

in stormwater. As defined by the administrator, hotspot land use may include gasoline 194 

stations, vehicle service and maintenance areas, industrial facilities (both permitted 195 

under the Industrial Stormwater General Permit and others), material storage sites, 196 

garbage transfer facilities, and commercial parking lots with high-intensity use. 197 

Hydrologic soil group (HSG). A Natural Resource Conservation Service classification 198 

system in which soils are categorized into four runoff potential groups. The groups 199 

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 155



range from group A soils, with high permeability and little runoff produced, to group D 200 

soils, which have low permeability rates and produce much more runoff.  201 

Impervious cover. A surface composed of any material that significantly impedes or 202 

prevents the natural infiltration of water into soil. Impervious surfaces include, but are 203 

not limited to, rooftops, buildings, streets and roads, and any concrete or asphalt 204 

surface.  205 

Industrial stormwater permit. A National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 206 

("NPDES") permit issued to an industry or group of industries which regulates the 207 

pollutant levels associated with industrial stormwater discharges or specifies on-site 208 

pollution control strategies based on Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) Code.  209 

Infiltration. The process of percolating stormwater runoff into the subsoil.  210 

Inspection and maintenance agreement. A written agreement providing for the long-211 

term inspection and maintenance of stormwater management facilities and practices on 212 

a site or with respect to a land development project, which, when properly recorded in 213 

the deed records, constitutes a restriction on the title to a site or other land involved in a 214 

land development project.  215 

Jurisdictional wetland. An area that is inundated or saturated by surface water or 216 

groundwater at a frequency and duration sufficient to support a prevalence of vegetation 217 

typically adopted for life in saturated soil conditions, commonly known as hydrophytic 218 

vegetation.  219 

Land development. Any land change, including, but not limited to, clearing, digging, 220 

grubbing, stripping, removal of vegetation, dredging, grading, excavating, transporting 221 

and filling of land, construction, paving, and any other installation of impervious cover.  222 

Land development application means the application for a land development permit on 223 

a form provided by City along with the supporting documentation required in Section 10-224 

204.   225 

Land development permit means the authorization necessary to begin construction 226 

related, land-disturbing activity. 227 

Land development project. A discrete land development undertaking.  228 

Land disturbing activity means any activity which may result in soil erosion from water or 229 

wind and the movement of sediments into state water or onto lands within the state, 230 

including but not limited to clearing, dredging, grading, excavating, and filling of land. 231 

Land disturbing activity does not include agricultural practices as described O.C.G.A. 232 

12-7-17(5) or silvicultural land management activities as described O.C.G.A. 12-7-17(6) 233 

within areas zoned for these activities.   234 

 235 

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 156



Linear feasibility program means a feasibility program developed by City and submitted 236 

to the Georgia Environmental Protection Division, which sets reasonable criteria for 237 

determining when implementation of stormwater management standards for linear 238 

transportation projects being constructed by City is infeasible.   239 

Linear transportation projects means construction projects on traveled ways including 240 

but not limited to roads, sidewalks, multi-use paths and trails, and airport runways and 241 

taxiways.  242 

“MS4 Permit” means the NPDES permit issued by Georgia Environmental Protection 243 

Division for discharges from the City’s municipal separate storm sewer system.  244 

New development. land disturbing activities, structural development 245 

(construction, installation or expansion of a building or other structure), and/or 246 

creation of impervious surfaces on a previously undeveloped site.  247 

Nonpoint source pollution. A form of water pollution that does not originate from a 248 

discrete point such as a sewage treatment plant or industrial discharge, but involves the 249 

transport of pollutants such as sediment, fertilizers, pesticides, heavy metals, oil, 250 

grease, bacteria, organic materials and other contaminants from land to surface water 251 

and groundwater via mechanisms such as precipitation,  stormwater runoff, and 252 

leaching. Nonpoint source pollution is a by-product of land use practices such as 253 

agricultural, silvicultural, mining, construction, subsurface disposal and urban runoff 254 

sources.  255 

Nonstructural stormwater management practice or nonstructural practice. Any natural or 256 

planted vegetation or other nonstructural component of the stormwater management 257 

plan that provides for or enhances stormwater quantity and/or quality control or other 258 

stormwater management benefits, and includes, but is not limited to, riparian buffers, 259 

open and greenspace areas, overland flow filtration areas, natural depressions, and 260 

vegetated channels.  261 

Off-site facility. Stormwater management facility located outside the boundaries of the 262 

site.  263 

On-site facility. A stormwater management facility located within the boundaries of the 264 

site.  265 

Overbank flood protection. Measures taken to prevent an increase in the frequency and 266 

magnitude of out-of-bank flooding (i.e. flow events that exceed the capacity of the 267 

channel and enter the floodplain), and that are intended to protect downstream 268 

properties from flooding for the two-year through twenty-five-year frequency storm 269 

events.  270 

Owner. The legal or beneficial owner of a site, including but not limited to, a mortgagee 271 

or vendee in possession, receiver, executor, trustee, lessee or other person, firm or 272 

corporation in control of the site.  273 

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 157



Permit. The permit issued by the building official to the applicant, which is required for 274 

undertaking any land development activity.  275 

Person. Except to the extent exempted from this ordinance, any individual, partnership, 276 

firm, association, joint venture, public or private corporation, trust, estate, commission, 277 

board, public or private institution, utility cooperative, city, county or other political 278 

subdivision of the state, any interstate body or any other legal entity.  279 

Post-construction stormwater management. Stormwater best management practices 280 

that are used on a permanent basis to control and treat runoff once construction has 281 

been completed in accordance with a stormwater management plan. 282 

Post-development. The time period, or the conditions that may reasonably be expected 283 

or anticipated to exist, after completion of the land development activity on a site as the 284 

context may require.  285 

Pre-development. The time period, or the conditions that exist, on a site prior to the 286 

commencement of a land development project and at the time that plans for the land 287 

development of a site are approved by the plan approving authority. Where phased 288 

development or plan approval occurs (preliminary grading, roads and utilities, etc.), the 289 

existing conditions at the time prior to the first item being approved or permitted shall 290 

establish pre-development conditions. 291 

Previously developed site. A site that has been altered by paving, construction, and/or 292 

land disturbing activity.  293 

Project. A land development project.  294 

Redevelopment. A land development project on a previously developed site, but 295 

excludes ordinary maintenance activities, remodeling of existing buildings, resurfacing 296 

of paved areas, and exterior changes or improvements which do not materially increase 297 

or concentrate stormwater runoff, or cause additional nonpoint source pollution.  298 

Regional stormwater management facility or regional facility. Stormwater management 299 

facilities designed to control stormwater runoff from multiple properties, where the 300 

owners or developers of the individual properties may assist in the financing of the 301 

facility, and the requirement for on-site controls is either eliminated or reduced.  302 

Routine maintenance. Activities to keep an impervious surface as near as possible to its 303 

constructed condition. This includes ordinary maintenance activities, resurfacing paved 304 

areas, and exterior building changes or improvements which do not materially increase 305 

or concentrate stormwater runoff, or cause additional nonpoint source pollution. 306 

Runoff. Stormwater runoff.  307 

Site. An area of land where development is planned, which may include all or portions 308 

of one or more parcels of land. For subdivisions and other common plans of 309 

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 158



development, the site includes all areas of land covered under an applicable land 310 

development permit. 311 

Stormwater better site design. Nonstructural site design approaches and techniques 312 

that can reduce a site's impact on the watershed and can provide for nonstructural 313 

stormwater management. Stormwater better site design includes conserving and 314 

protecting natural areas and greenspace, reducing impervious cover and using natural 315 

features for stormwater management.  316 

Stormwater concept plan. An initial plan for post-construction stormwater management 317 

at the site that provides the groundwork for the stormwater management plan including 318 

the natural resources inventory, site layout concept, initial runoff characterization, and 319 

first round stormwater management system design. 320 

Stormwater management. The collection, conveyance, storage, treatment and disposal 321 

of stormwater runoff in a manner intended to prevent increased flood damage, stream 322 

bank channel erosion, habitat degradation and water quality degradation, and to 323 

enhance and promote the public health, safety and general welfare.  324 

Stormwater management facility. Any infrastructure that controls or conveys stormwater 325 

runoff.  326 

Stormwater management measure. Any stormwater management facility or 327 

nonstructural stormwater practice.  328 

Stormwater management plan. A document describing how existing runoff 329 

characteristics will be affected by a land development project and containing measures 330 

for complying with the provisions of this article.  331 

Stormwater management system. The entire set of structural and nonstructural 332 

stormwater management facilities and practices that are used to capture, convey and 333 

control the quantity and quality of the stormwater runoff from a site.  334 

Stormwater management standards. Those standards set forth in Section 10-207.  335 

Stormwater retrofit. A stormwater management practice designed for a currently 336 

developed site that previously had either no stormwater management practice in place 337 

or a practice inadequate to meet the stormwater management requirements of the site.  338 

Stormwater runoff. The flow of surface water resulting from precipitation. 339 

Structural stormwater control. A structural stormwater management facility or device 340 

that controls stormwater runoff and changes the characteristics of that runoff including, 341 

but not limited to, the quantity and quality, the period of release or the velocity of flow of 342 

such runoff.  343 

Subdivision. The division of a tract or parcel of land resulting in one or more new lots or 344 

building sites for the purpose, whether immediately or in the future, of sale, other 345 

transfer of ownership or land development, and includes divisions of land resulting from 346 

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 159



or made in connection with the layout or development of a new street or roadway or a 347 

change in an existing street or roadway.  348 

Other terms used but not defined in this Article shall be interpreted based on how such 349 

terms are defined and used in the GSMM and the City’s MS4 permit.   350 

(Ord. No. 2006-29, § 1, 9-18-06)  351 

Sec. 10-196. - Administrative responsibility. 352 

The building official or a designee shall have the power to administer and enforce all 353 

regulations and procedures adopted to implement this article including the right to 354 

maintain an action or procedure in any court of competent jurisdiction to compel 355 

compliance with or restrain any violation of this article.  356 

(Ord. No. 2006-29, § 1, 9-18-06)  357 

Sec. 10-197. - Compatibility. 358 

This article is not intended to modify or repeal any other article, rule, regulation or other 359 

provision of law. The requirements of this article are in addition to the requirements of 360 

any other article, rule, regulation or other provision of law, and where any provision of 361 

this article imposes restrictions different from those imposed by any other article, rule, 362 

regulation or other provision of law, whichever provision is more restrictive or imposes 363 

higher protective standards for human health or the environment shall control.  364 

(Ord. No. 2006-29, § 1, 9-18-06)  365 

Sec. 10-198. - Stormwater design manual. 366 

The city will utilize the policy, criteria and information, including technical specifications 367 

and standards, in the 2016 edition of the Georgia Stormwater Management Manual for 368 

the proper implementation of the requirements of this article. The manual may be 369 

updated and expanded periodically.  370 

(a) In implementing this Article, the City of College Park shall use and require 371 

compliance with all relevant design standards, calculations, formulas, methods, 372 

and other guidance from the GSMM as well as all related appendices.   373 

(b) This Article is not intended to modify or repeal any other Article, ordinance, rule, 374 

regulation or other provision of law, including but not limited to any applicable 375 

stream buffers under state and local laws, and the Georgia Safe Dams Act and 376 

Rules for Dam Safety. In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between any 377 

provision in the City of College Park’s MS4 permit and this Article, the provision 378 

from the MS4 permit shall control. In the event of any conflict or inconsistency 379 

between any provision of this Article and the GSMM, the provision from this 380 

Article shall control. In the event of any other conflict or inconsistency between 381 

any provision of this Article and any other ordinance, rule, regulation or other 382 

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 160



provision of law, the provision that is more restrictive or imposes higher 383 

protective standards for human health or the environment shall control.  384 

(c) If any provision of this Article is invalidated by a court of competent jurisdiction, 385 

such judgment shall not affect or invalidate the remainder of this Article. 386 

(Ord. No. 2006-29, § 1, 9-18-06; Ord. No. 2016-33, § 1, 12-5-16)  387 

DIVISION 2. - PERMIT PROCEDURES AND REQUIREMENTS 388 

Sec. 10-199. - Permit application requirements. 389 

(1) No owner or developer shall perform any land development activities without first 390 

meeting the requirements of this article prior to commencing the proposed activity.  391 

(2) Unless specifically exempted by this article, any owner or developer proposing a 392 

land development activity shall submit to the building official a permit application on a 393 

form provided by the city for that purpose.  394 

(3) Unless otherwise exempted by this article, a permit application shall be 395 

accompanied by the following items in order to be considered:  396 

(a) Stormwater concept plan and consultation meeting certification in accordance 397 

with section 10-200 of this article;  398 

(b) Stormwater management plan in accordance with section 10-201 of this 399 

article;  400 

(c) Inspection and maintenance agreement in accordance with section 10-202 of 401 

this article, if applicable;  402 

(d) Performance bond in accordance with section 10-203 of this article, if 403 

applicable; and,  404 

(e) Applicable permit application and plan review fees.  405 

(Ord. No. 2006-29, § 1, 9-18-06)  406 

Sec. 10-200. - Stormwater concept plan and consultation meeting. 407 

(1) Before a land development permit application is submitted, an applicant is required 408 

to request a pre-submittal meeting with the City of College Park The pre-submittal 409 

meeting should take place based on an early step in the development process such as 410 

before site analysis and inventory (GSMM Section 2.4.2.4) or the stormwater concept 411 

plan (GSMM Section 2.4.2.5). The purpose of the pre-submittal meeting is to discuss 412 

opportunities, constraints, and ideas for the stormwater management system before 413 

formal site design engineering. To the extent applicable, local and regional watershed 414 

plans, greenspace plans, trails and greenway plans, and other resource protection 415 

plans should be consulted in the pre-submittal meeting. Applicants must request a pre-416 

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 161



submittal meeting with the City of College Park when applying for a Determination of 417 

Infeasibility through the Practicability Policy.  418 

(2) The stormwater concept plan shall be prepared using the minimum following steps: 419 

 420 

(a) Develop the site layout using better site design techniques, as applicable (GSMM 421 

Section 2.3). 422 

(b) Calculate preliminary estimates of the unified stormwater sizing criteria 423 

requirements for stormwater runoff quality/reduction, channel protection, 424 

overbank flooding protection and extreme flood protection (GSMM Section 2.2). 425 

(c)  Perform screening and preliminary selection of appropriate best management 426 

practices and identification of potential siting locations (GSMM Section 4.1). 427 

(3) The stormwater concept plan shall contain: 428 

(a)  Common address and legal description of the site, 429 

(b)  Vicinity map, and 430 

(c)  Existing conditions and proposed site layout mapping and plans 431 

(recommended scale of 1” = 50’), which illustrate at a minimum: 432 

(i) Existing and proposed topography (minimum of 2-foot contours), 433 

(ii) Perennial and intermittent streams, 434 

(iii) Mapping of predominant soils from USDA soil surveys, 435 

(iv) Boundaries of existing predominant vegetation and proposed limits of 436 

clearing and grading, 437 

(v) Location and boundaries of other natural feature protection and 438 

conservation areas such as wetlands, lakes, ponds, floodplains, stream 439 

buffers and other setbacks (e.g., drinking water well setbacks, septic 440 

setbacks, etc.), 441 

(vi) Location of existing and proposed roads, buildings, parking areas and 442 

other impervious surfaces, 443 

(vi) Existing and proposed utilities (e.g., water, sewer, gas, electric) and 444 

easements, 445 

(vii) Preliminary estimates of unified stormwater sizing criteria 446 

requirements, 447 

 448 

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 162



(viii) Preliminary selection and location, size, and limits of disturbance of 449 

proposed BMPs, 450 

(ix) Location of existing and proposed conveyance systems such as grass 451 

channels, swales, and storm drains,  452 

(x) Flow paths,  453 

(xi) Location of the boundaries of the base flood floodplain, future-454 

conditions floodplain, and the floodway (as applicable) and relationship of 455 

site to upstream and downstream properties and drainage, and 456 

(xii) Preliminary location and dimensions of proposed channel 457 

modifications, such as bridge or culvert crossings. 458 

 459 

(4) Local watershed plans, the Clayton or Fulton County greenspace projection plan (if 460 

applicable), and any relevant resource protection plans will be consulted in the 461 

discussion of the concept plan.  462 

(Ord. No. 2006-29, § 1, 9-18-06)  463 

Sec. 10-201. -  Stormwater management plan requirements. 464 

(1) The stormwater management plan shall detail how post-development stormwater 465 

runoff will be controlled or managed and how the proposed project will meet the 466 

requirements of this article, including the performance criteria set forth in Division 3.  467 

(2) The stormwater management plan shall contain the items listed in this part and be 468 

prepared under the direct supervisory control of either a registered Professional 469 

Engineer or a registered Landscape Architect licensed in the state of Georgia. Items (e), 470 

(f), (g), and (h) shall be sealed and signed by a registered Professional Engineer 471 

licensed in the state of Georgia. The overall site plan must be stamped by a design 472 

professional licensed in the State of Georgia for such purpose. (GSMM Section 2.4.2.7) 473 

 474 

(a) Common address and legal description of site.  475 

(b) Vicinity map.  476 

(c) Natural resources inventory: A written or graphic inventory of the natural 477 

resources at the site and surrounding area as it exists prior to the 478 

commencement of the project. This description should include a discussion of 479 

soil conditions, forest cover, topography, wetlands, and other native vegetative 480 

areas on the site, as well as the location and boundaries of other natural feature 481 

protection and conservation areas such as wetlands, lakes, ponds, floodplains, 482 

stream buffers and other setbacks (e.g. drinking water well setbacks, septic 483 

setbacks, etc.). Particular attention should be paid to environmentally sensitive 484 

features that provide particular opportunities or constraints for development.  485 

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 163



 486 

(d) Stormwater Concept Plan 487 

(e) Existing conditions hydrologic analysis: The existing condition hydrologic analysis 488 

for stormwater runoff rates, volumes, and velocities, which shall include: a 489 

topographic map of existing site conditions with the drainage basin boundaries 490 

indicated; acreage, soil types and land coverage of areas for each sub-basin 491 

affected by the project; all perennial and intermittent streams and other surface 492 

water features; all existing stormwater conveyances and structural control 493 

facilities; direction of flow and exits from the site; analysis of runoff provided by 494 

off-site areas upstream of the project site; and methodologies, assumptions, site 495 

parameters and supporting design calculations used in analyzing the existing 496 

conditions site hydrology. For redevelopment sites, predevelopment conditions 497 

shall be modeled using the established guidelines for the portion of the site 498 

undergoing land development activities.  499 

 500 

(f) Post-development hydrologic analysis: The post-development hydrologic 501 

analysis for stormwater runoff rates, volumes, and velocities, which shall include: 502 

a topographic map of developed site conditions with the post-development 503 

drainage basin boundaries indicated; total area of post-development impervious 504 

surfaces and other land cover areas for each sub-basin affected by the project; 505 

calculations for determining the runoff volumes that need to be addressed for 506 

each sub-basin for the development project to meet the post-development 507 

stormwater management performance criteria in Division 3; location and 508 

boundaries of proposed natural feature protection and conservation areas; 509 

documentation and calculations for any applicable site design credits that are 510 

being utilized; methodologies, assumptions, site parameters and supporting 511 

design calculations used in analyzing the existing conditions' site hydrology.  512 

 513 

(g) Stormwater management system: The description, scaled drawings and design 514 

calculations for the proposed post-development stormwater management 515 

system, which shall include: a map and/or drawing or sketch of the stormwater 516 

management facilities, including the location of nonstructural site design features 517 

and the placement of existing and proposed structural stormwater controls, 518 

including design water surface elevations, storage volumes available from zero to 519 

maximum head, location of inlet and outlets, location of bypass and discharge 520 

systems, and all orifice/restrictor sizes; a narrative describing how the selected 521 

structural stormwater controls will be appropriate and effective; cross-section and 522 

profile drawings and design details for each of the structural stormwater controls 523 

in the system, including supporting calculations to show that the facility is 524 

designed according to the applicable design criteria; a hydrologic and hydraulic 525 

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 164



analysis of the stormwater management system for all applicable design storms 526 

(including stage-storage or outlet rating curves, and inflow and outflow 527 

hydrographs); documentation and supporting calculations to show that the 528 

stormwater management system adequately meets the post-development 529 

stormwater management performance criteria in Division 3; drawings, design 530 

calculations, elevations and hydraulic grade lines for all existing and proposed 531 

stormwater conveyance elements including stormwater drains, pipes, culverts, 532 

catch basins, channels, swales and areas of overland flows; and where 533 

applicable, a narrative describing how the stormwater management system 534 

corresponds with any watershed protection plans and/or local greenspace 535 

protection plan.  536 

 537 

(h) Post-development downstream analysis: A downstream peak flow analysis which 538 

includes the assumptions, results and supporting calculations to show safe 539 

passage of post-development design flows downstream. The analysis of 540 

downstream conditions in the report shall address each and every point or area 541 

along the project site's boundaries at which runoff will exit the property. The 542 

analysis shall focus on the portion of the drainage channel or watercourse 543 

immediately downstream from the project. This area shall extend downstream 544 

from the project to a point in the drainage basin where the project area is 10 545 

percent of the total basin area. In calculating runoff volumes and discharge rates, 546 

consideration may need to be given to any planned future upstream land use 547 

changes. The analysis shall be in accordance with the stormwater design 548 

manual.  549 

 550 

(i) Construction-phase erosion and sedimentation control plan: An erosion and 551 

sedimentation control plan in accordance with Article IX of Chapter 5 of the City 552 

Code or NPDES permit for construction activities. The plan shall also include 553 

information on the sequence/phasing of construction and temporary stabilization 554 

measures and temporary structures that will be converted into permanent 555 

stormwater controls.  556 

 557 

(j) Landscaping and Open Space Plan: A detailed landscaping and vegetation plan 558 

describing the woody and herbaceous vegetation that will be used within and 559 

adjacent to stormwater management facilities and practices. The landscaping 560 

plan must also include: the arrangement of planted areas, natural and 561 

greenspace areas and other landscaped features on the site plan; information 562 

necessary to construct the landscaping elements shown on the plan drawings; 563 

descriptions and standards for the methods, materials and vegetation that are to 564 

be used in the construction; density of plantings; descriptions of the stabilization 565 

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 165



and management techniques used to establish vegetation; and a description of 566 

who will be responsible for ongoing maintenance of vegetation for the stormwater 567 

management facility and what practices will be employed to ensure that 568 

adequate vegetative cover is preserved.  569 

 570 

(k) Operations and maintenance plan: Detailed description of ongoing operations 571 

and maintenance procedures for stormwater management facilities and practices 572 

to ensure their continued function as designed and constructed or preserved. 573 

These plans will identify the parts or components of a stormwater management 574 

facility or practice that need to be regularly or periodically inspected and 575 

maintained, and the equipment and skills or training necessary. The plan shall 576 

include an inspection and maintenance schedule, maintenance tasks, 577 

responsible parties for maintenance, funding, access and safety issues. 578 

Provisions for the periodic review and evaluation of the effectiveness of the 579 

maintenance program and the need for revisions or additional maintenance 580 

procedures shall be included in the plan.  581 

 582 

(l) Maintenance access easements: The applicant must ensure access from public 583 

right-of-way to stormwater management facilities and practices requiring regular 584 

maintenance at the site for the purpose of inspection and repair by securing all 585 

the maintenance access easements needed on a permanent basis. Such access 586 

shall be sufficient for all necessary equipment for maintenance activities. Upon 587 

final inspection and approval, a plat or document indicating that such easements 588 

exist shall be recorded and shall remain in effect even with the transfer of title of 589 

the property.  590 

 591 

(m)Inspection and maintenance agreements: Unless an on-site stormwater 592 

management facility or practice is dedicated to and accepted by the city as 593 

provided in section 10-172, the applicant must execute an easement and an 594 

inspection and maintenance agreement binding on all subsequent owners of land 595 

served by an on-site stormwater management facility or practice in accordance 596 

with section 10-172.  597 

 598 

(n) Evidence of acquisition of applicable local and non-local permits: The applicant 599 

shall certify and provide documentation to the City that all other applicable 600 

environmental permits have been acquired for the site prior to approval of the 601 

stormwater management plan.  602 

 603 

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 166



(o) The stormwater leaving a development or redevelopment shall be connected to 604 

the nearest existing stormwater structure(s) or stormwater management facility.  605 

 606 

(p) A land disturbance permit (LDP) shall be required for all land disturbances 607 

greater than two thousand (2,000) square feet. 608 

 609 

(q) Determination of Infeasibility (if applicable) 610 

 611 

(3) For redevelopment and to the extent existing stormwater management structures 612 

are being used to meet stormwater management standards the following must also be 613 

included in the stormwater management plan for existing stormwater management 614 

structures 615 

 616 

      (a)  As-built Drawings 617 

      (b) Hydrology Reports 618 

      (c) Current inspection of existing stormwater management structures with 619 

deficiencies noted 620 

      (d) BMP Landscaping Plans 621 

 622 

(Ord. No. 2006-29, § 1, 9-18-06; Ord. No. 2016-06, § 1, 2-15-16)  623 

Sec. 10-202. - Stormwater management inspection and maintenance agreements. 624 

The components of the stormwater management system that will not be dedicated to 625 

and accepted by the City, including all drainage facilities, best management practices, 626 

credited conservation spaces, and conveyance systems, shall have an inspection and 627 

maintenance agreement to ensure that they continue to function as designed. All new 628 

development and redevelopment sites are to prepare a comprehensive inspection and 629 

maintenance agreement for the on-site stormwater management system. This plan shall 630 

be written in accordance with the requirements in Section 10-226. 631 

 632 

(1) Prior to the issuance of any permit for a land development activity requiring a 633 

stormwater management facility or practice hereunder and for which the city requires 634 

ongoing maintenance, the applicant or owner of the site must, unless an on-site 635 

stormwater management facility or practice is dedicated to and accepted by the city, 636 

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 167



execute an inspection and maintenance agreement, and/or a conservation easement, if 637 

applicable, that shall be binding on all subsequent owners of the site.  638 

 639 

(2) The inspection and maintenance agreement, if applicable, must be approved by the 640 

city prior to plan approval and recorded in the deed records upon final plat approval.  641 

 642 

(3) The inspection and maintenance agreement shall identify by name or official title, the 643 

person(s) responsible for carrying out the inspection and maintenance. Responsibility 644 

for the operation and maintenance of the stormwater management facility or practice, 645 

unless assumed by a governmental agency, shall remain with the property owner and 646 

shall pass to any successor owner. If portions of the land are sold or otherwise 647 

transferred, legally binding arrangements shall be made to pass the inspection and 648 

maintenance responsibility to the appropriate successors in title. These arrangements 649 

shall designate for each portion of the site, the person to be permanently responsible for 650 

its inspection and maintenance. In the absence of a recorded assignment agreement, 651 

all owners of the site shall be jointly and severally liable for all obligations under the 652 

inspection and maintenance agreement regardless of what portion of the site they own. 653 

 654 

(4) As part of the inspection and maintenance agreement, a schedule shall be 655 

developed for when and how often routine inspection and maintenance will occur to 656 

ensure proper function of the stormwater management facility or practice. The 657 

agreement shall also include plans for annual inspections to ensure proper performance 658 

of the facility between scheduled maintenance and shall also include remedies for the 659 

default thereof.  660 

 661 

(5) In addition to enforcing the terms of the inspection and maintenance agreement, the 662 

city may also enforce all of the provisions for ongoing inspection and maintenance in 663 

Division 5 of this article.  664 

 665 

(6) The city, in lieu of an inspection and maintenance agreement, may accept dedication 666 

of any existing or future stormwater management facility for maintenance, provided 667 

such facility meets all the requirements of this article and includes adequate and 668 

perpetual access and sufficient area, by easement or otherwise, for inspection and 669 

regular maintenance.  670 

(Ord. No. 2006-29, § 1, 9-18-06)  671 

Sec. 10-203. - Performance and maintenance bonds. 672 

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 168



No landowner or developer shall begin any work under this article until the developer or 673 

landowner shall have filed a performance bond of three thousand dollars ($3,000.00) 674 

per acre with the city engineer, which bond shall:  675 

(a) Be conditioned upon the faithful performance by the landowner or developer of all 676 

work required to complete all improvements and installations in compliance with these 677 

regulations and within a specified time;  678 

 679 

(b) Be payable to, and for the indemnification of, the city;  680 

 681 

(c) Be with surety by a company entered and licensed to do business in the state;  682 

 683 

(d) Contain a provision for the maintenance by the landowner or developer of all 684 

installations and improvements required by these regulations for a period of one (1) 685 

year following the date of acceptance of the streets and other public lands by the 686 

governing body; and  687 

 688 

(e) Be approved by the city attorney.  689 

(Ord. No. 2006-29, § 1, 9-18-06)  690 

Sec. 10-204. - Application procedure. 691 

(a) Applications for land development permits shall be filed with the city.  692 

 693 

(b) Permit applications shall include the items set forth in section 10-199 (two (2) copies 694 

of the stormwater management plan, a certification that the development will be 695 

performed in accordance with the stormwater management plan, once approved, a 696 

[Preliminary Determination of Infeasibility, as applicable, prepared in accordance with 697 

the practicability policy], and the inspection maintenance agreement, if applicable, shall 698 

be included).  699 

 700 

(c) The city shall inform the applicant whether the application, stormwater management 701 

plan and inspection and maintenance agreement are approved or disapproved.  702 

 703 

(d) If the permit application, stormwater management plan or inspection and 704 

maintenance agreement are disapproved, the city shall notify the applicant of such fact 705 

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 169



in writing. The applicant may then revise any item not meeting the requirements hereof 706 

and resubmit the same, in which event subparagraph (b) above and this subparagraph 707 

shall apply to such resubmittal.  708 

 709 

(e) Upon a finding by the city that the permit application, stormwater management plan 710 

and inspection and maintenance agreement, if applicable, meet the requirements of this 711 

article, the city may issue a permit for the land development project, provided all other 712 

legal requirements for the issuance of such permit have been met. The stormwater 713 

management plan included in such applications becomes the approved stormwater 714 

management plan. The city shall not issue a permit until the Georgia Soil and Water 715 

Conservation Commission has reviewed and approved the land development project.  716 

 717 

(f) Notwithstanding the issuance of the permit, in conducting the land development 718 

project, the applicant or other responsible person shall be subject to the following 719 

requirements:  720 

 721 

(1) The applicant shall comply with all applicable requirements of the approved 722 

plan and this article and shall certify that all land clearing, construction, land 723 

development and drainage will be consistent and done according to the approved 724 

plan;  725 

(2) The land development project shall be conducted only within the area 726 

specified in the approved plan;  727 

(3) The city shall be allowed to conduct periodic inspections of the project;  728 

(4) No changes may be made to an approved plan without review and written 729 

approval by the city; and  730 

(5) Upon completion of the project, the applicant or other responsible person 731 

shall submit the engineer's report and certificate and as-built plans required by 732 

Division 4, Section 10-216 of this article.  733 

(Ord. No. 2006-29, § 1, 9-18-06)  734 

Sec. 10-205. - Application review fees. 735 

The fee for review of any stormwater management application shall be based on the fee 736 

structure established by the city and shall be made prior to the issuance of any building 737 

permit for the development.  738 

(Ord. No. 2006-29, § 1, 9-18-06)  739 

Sec. 10-206. - Modifications for off-site facilities. 740 

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 170



(1) The stormwater management plan for each land development project shall provide 741 

for stormwater management measures located on the site of the project, unless 742 

provisions are made to manage stormwater by an off-site or regional facility. The off-site 743 

or regional facility must be located on property legally dedicated for the purpose, must 744 

be designed and adequately sized to provide a level of stormwater quantity and quality 745 

control that is equal to or greater than that which would be afforded by on-site practices 746 

and there must be a legally-obligated entity responsible for long-term operation and 747 

maintenance of the off-site or regional stormwater facility. In addition, on-site measures 748 

shall be implemented, where necessary, to protect upstream and downstream 749 

properties and drainage channels from the site to the off-site facility.  750 

 751 

(2) A stormwater management plan must be submitted to the city which shows the 752 

adequacy of the off-site or regional facility.  753 

 754 

(3) To be eligible for a modification, the applicant must demonstrate, to the satisfaction 755 

of the City that the use of an off-site or regional facility will not result in the following 756 

impacts to upstream or downstream areas:  757 

(a) Increased threat of flood damage to public health, life, and property;  758 

(b) Deterioration of existing culverts, bridges, dams, and other structures;  759 

(c) Accelerated stream bank or streambed erosion or siltation;  760 

(d) Degradation of in-stream biological functions or habitat; or  761 

(e) Water quality impairment in violation of state water quality standards, and/or 762 

violation of any state or federal regulations.  763 

(Ord. No. 2006-29, § 1, 9-18-06)  764 

DIVISION 3. - POST-DEVELOPMENT STORMWATER MANAGEMENT 765 

PERFORMANCE CRITERIA 766 

Sec. 10-207. – Stormwater Management Standards 767 

Subject to the applicability criteria and exemptions in Section 10-194, the following 768 

stormwater management standards apply. Additional details for each standard can be 769 

found in the GSMM Section 2.2.2.2:   770 

(a) Design of Stormwater Management System: The design of the stormwater 771 

management system shall be in accordance with the applicable sections of the 772 

GSMM as directed by the administrator. Any design which proposes a dam shall 773 

comply with the Georgia Safe Dams Act and Rules for Dam Safety as applicable.  774 

(b) Natural Resources Inventory: Site reconnaissance and surveying techniques 775 

shall be used to complete a thorough assessment of existing natural resources, 776 

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 171



both terrestrial and aquatic, found on the site. Resources to be identified, 777 

mapped, and shown on the Stormwater Management Plan, shall include, at a 778 

minimum (as applicable):  779 

(i) Topography (minimum of 2-foot contours) and Steep Slopes (i.e., Areas with 780 

Slopes Greater Than 15%),  781 

(ii) Natural Drainage Divides and Patterns,  782 

(iii) Natural Drainage Features (e.g., swales, basins, depressional areas), 783 

(iv) Natural feature protection and conservation areas such as wetlands, lakes, 784 

ponds, floodplains, stream buffers, drinking water wellhead protection areas 785 

and river corridors,  786 

(v) Predominant soils (including erodible soils and karst areas), and  787 

(vi) Existing predominant vegetation including trees, high quality habitat and other 788 

existing vegetation.  789 

(c)Better Site Design Practices for Stormwater Management: Stormwater management 790 

plans shall preserve the natural drainage and natural treatment systems and reduce the 791 

generation of additional stormwater runoff and pollutants to the maximum extent 792 

practicable. Additional details can be found in the GSMM Section 2.3.   793 

Sec. 10-208. - Water runoff quality/reduction. 794 

All stormwater runoff generated from a site shall be adequately treated before 795 

discharge. It will be presumed that a stormwater management system complies with this 796 

requirement if:  797 

(a) It is sized to treat the prescribed water quality treatment volume from the site, as 798 

defined in the Georgia Stormwater Management Manual;  799 

 800 

(b) Appropriate structural stormwater controls or nonstructural practices are selected, 801 

designed, constructed or preserved, and maintained according to the specific criteria in 802 

the Georgia Stormwater Management Manual; and  803 

 804 

(c) Runoff from hotspot land uses and activities identified by the city are adequately 805 

treated and addressed through the use of appropriate structural stormwater controls, 806 

nonstructural practices and pollution prevention practices.  807 

 808 

Stormwater Runoff Quality/Reduction shall be provided by using the following:  809 

  810 

(i) For development with a stormwater management plan submitted before the 811 

adoption of this Ordinance, the applicant may choose either (A) Runoff 812 

Reduction or (B) Water Quality.   813 

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 172



  814 

(ii) For development with a stormwater management plan submitted on or after 815 

the adoption of this Ordinance, the applicant shall choose (A) Runoff 816 

Reduction and additional water quality shall not be required. To the extent (A) 817 

Runoff Reduction has been determined to be infeasible for all or a portion of 818 

the site using the Practicability Policy, then (B) Water Quality shall apply for 819 

the remaining runoff from a 1.2-inch rainfall event and must be treated to 820 

remove at least 80% of the calculated average annual post-development total 821 

suspended solids (TSS) load or equivalent as defined in the GSMM.  822 

 823 

(a) Runoff Reduction - The stormwater management system shall be designed to 824 

retain the first 1.0 inch of rainfall on the site using runoff reduction methods, to 825 

the maximum extent practicable.   826 

  827 

(b) Water Quality - The stormwater management system shall be designed to 828 

remove at least 80% of the calculated average annual post-development total 829 

suspended solids (TSS) load or equivalent as defined in the GSMM for runoff 830 

from a 1.2-inch rainfall event.  831 

 832 

(iii) If a site is determined to be a hotspot as detailed in Section 10-194, the City 833 

of College Park may require the use of specific or additional components for 834 

the stormwater management system to address pollutants of concern 835 

generated by that site. 836 

  837 

(Ord. No. 2006-29, § 1, 9-18-06)  838 

Sec. 10-209. - Stream channel protection. 839 

Protection of stream channels from bank and bed erosion and degradation shall be 840 

provided by using all of the following three (3) approaches:  841 

(a) Preservation, restoration and/or reforestation (with native vegetation) of the 842 

applicable stream buffer;  843 

(b) Twenty-four-hour extended detention storage of the one-year, twenty-four-hour 844 

return frequency storm event;  845 

(c) Erosion prevention measures such as energy dissipation and velocity control.  846 

(Ord. No. 2006-29, § 1, 9-18-06)  847 

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 173



Sec. 10-210 - Overbank flooding protection. 848 

Downstream overbank flood and property protection shall be provided by controlling 849 

(attenuating) the post-development peak discharge rate to the pre-development rate for 850 

the twenty-five-year, twenty-four-hour return frequency storm event. If control of the 851 

one-year, twenty-four-hour storm event under section 10-208 is exempted, then peak 852 

discharge rate attenuation of the two-year through twenty-five-year return frequency 853 

storm event must be provided.  854 

(Ord. No. 2006-29, § 1, 9-18-06)  855 

Sec. 10-211 - Extreme flooding protection. 856 

Extreme flood and public safety protection shall be provided by controlling and safely 857 

conveying the one hundred-year, twenty-four-hour return frequency storm event such 858 

that flooding is not exacerbated.  859 

Down Stream Analysis: Due to peak flow timing and runoff volume effects, some 860 

structural components of the stormwater management system fail to reduce discharge 861 

peaks to pre-development levels downstream from the site. A downstream peak flow 862 

analysis shall be provided to the point in the watershed downstream of the site or the 863 

stormwater management system where the area of the site comprises 10% of the total 864 

drainage area in accordance with Section 3.1.9 of the GSMM. This is to help ensure 865 

that there are minimal downstream impacts from development on the site. The 866 

downstream analysis may result in the need to resize structural components of the 867 

stormwater management system. 868 

(Ord. No. 2006-29, § 1, 9-18-06)  869 

Sec. 10-212- Structural stormwater controls. 870 

All structural stormwater management facilities shall be selected and designed using 871 

the appropriate criteria from the Georgia Stormwater Management Manual. All structural 872 

stormwater controls must be designed appropriately to meet their intended function. For 873 

other structural stormwater controls not included in the Georgia Stormwater 874 

Management Manual, or for which pollutant removal rates have not been provided, the 875 

effectiveness and pollutant removal of the structural control must be documented 876 

through prior studies, literature reviews, or other means and receive approval from the 877 

city before being included in the design of a stormwater management system. In 878 

addition, if hydrologic or topographic conditions, or land use activities warrant greater 879 

control than that provided by the minimum control requirements, the city may impose 880 

additional requirements deemed necessary to protect upstream and downstream 881 

properties and aquatic resources from damage due to increased volume, frequency, 882 

and rate of stormwater runoff or increased nonpoint source pollution loads created on 883 

the site in question.  884 

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 174



Applicants shall consult the Georgia Stormwater Management Manual for guidance on 885 

the factors that determine site design feasibility when selecting and locating a structural 886 

stormwater control.  887 

(Ord. No. 2006-29, § 1, 9-18-06)  888 

Sec. 10-213 - Stormwater credits for nonstructural measures. 889 

The use of one or more site design measures by the applicant may allow for a reduction 890 

in the water quality treatment volume required under section 10-207 of this article. The 891 

applicant may, if approved by the city, take credit for the use of stormwater better site 892 

design practices and reduce the water quality volume retirement. For each potential 893 

credit, there is a minimum set of criteria and requirements which identify the conditions 894 

or circumstances under which the credit may be applied. The site design practices that 895 

qualify for this credit and the criteria and procedures for applying for and calculating the 896 

credits are included in the Georgia Stormwater Management Manual.  897 

(Ord. No. 2006-29, § 1, 9-18-06)  898 

Sec. 10-214- Drainage system guidelines. 899 

Stormwater conveyance facilities, which may include but are not limited to culverts, 900 

stormwater drainage pipes, catch basins, drop inlets, junction boxes, headwalls, gutter, 901 

swales, channels, ditches, and energy dissipaters shall be provided when necessary for 902 

the protection of public right-of-way and private properties adjoining project sites and/or 903 

public right-of-ways. Stormwater conveyance facilities that are designed to carry runoff 904 

from more than one parcel, existing or proposed, shall meet the following requirements:  905 

(a) Methods to calculate stormwater flows shall be in accordance with the 906 

stormwater design manual;  907 

(b) All culverts, pipe systems and open channel flow systems shall be sized in 908 

accordance with the stormwater management plan using the methods included in 909 

the stormwater design manual; and, Design and construction of stormwater 910 

conveyance facilities shall be in accordance with the criteria and specifications 911 

found in the stormwater design manual.  912 

(Ord. No. 2006-29, § 1, 9-18-06)  913 

Sec. 10-215- Dam design guidelines. 914 

Any land disturbing activity that involves a site which proposes a dam shall comply with 915 

the Georgia Safe Dams Act and Rules for Dam Safety as applicable.  916 

(Ord. No. 2006-29, § 1, 9-18-06)  917 

DIVISION 4. - CONSTRUCTION INSPECTIONS OF POST-DEVELOPMENT 918 

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT SYSTEM 919 

 920 

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 175



Sec. 10-216- Inspections to ensure plan compliance during construction. 921 

(1) Periodic inspections of the stormwater management system construction shall be 922 

conducted by the public works director or designee or conducted and certified by a PE 923 

who has been approved by the city.  924 

 925 

(2) Construction inspections shall utilize the approved stormwater management plan for 926 

establishing compliance.  927 

 928 

(3) All inspections plan be documented with written reports that contain the following 929 

information:  930 

 931 

(a) The date and location of the inspection;  932 

(b) Whether construction is in compliance with the approved stormwater 933 

management plan;  934 

(c) Variations from the approved construction specifications; and  935 

(d) Any other variations or violations of the conditions of the approved stormwater 936 

management plan.  937 

(4) If any violations are found, the applicant shall be notified in writing of the 938 

nature of the violation and the required corrective actions.  939 

(Ord. No. 2006-29, § 1, 9-18-06)  940 

Sec. 10-217 - Final inspection, and as built plans, delivery of maintenance and 941 

maintenance agreement. 942 

Upon completion of the development, the applicant is responsible for: 943 

(1) Certifying that the stormwater management system is functioning properly and was 944 

constructed in conformance with the approved stormwater management plan and 945 

associated hydrologic analysis,  946 

 947 

(2) Submitting as-built drawings showing the final design specifications for all 948 

components of the stormwater management system as certified by a professional 949 

engineer, 950 

 951 

(3) Certifying that the landscaping is established and installed in conformance with the 952 

BMP landscaping plan, and 953 

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 176



 954 

(4) Delivering to the City a signed inspection and maintenance agreement that has been 955 

recorded by the owner in the property record for all parcel(s) that make up the site.  956 

 957 

The required certification under part (1) shall include a certification of volume, or other 958 

performance test applicable to the type of stormwater management system component, 959 

to ensure each component is functioning as designed and built according to the design 960 

specifications in the approved stormwater management plan. This certification and the 961 

required performance tests shall be performed by a qualified person and submitted to 962 

the City with the request for a final inspection. The City shall perform a final inspection 963 

with applicant to confirm applicant has fulfilled these responsibilities.  964 

 965 

(Ord. No. 2006-29, § 1, 9-18-06)  966 

DIVISION 5. - ONGOING INSPECTION AND MAINTENANCE OF STORMWATER 967 

FACILITIES AND PRACTICES 968 

Sec. 10-218- Long-term maintenance inspection of stormwater facilities and 969 

practices. 970 

(1) Stormwater management facilities and practices included in a stormwater 971 

management plan which are subject to an inspection and maintenance agreement must 972 

undergo ongoing inspections to document maintenance and repair needs and ensure 973 

compliance with the requirements of the agreement, the plan and this article.  974 

 975 

(2) A stormwater management facility or practice shall be inspected on a periodic basis 976 

by the responsible person in accordance with the approved inspection and maintenance 977 

agreement. In the event that the stormwater management facility has not been 978 

maintained and/or becomes a danger to public safety or public health, the city shall 979 

notify the person responsible for carrying out the maintenance plan by registered or 980 

certified mail to the person specified in the inspection and maintenance agreement. The 981 

notice shall specify the measures needed to comply with the agreement and the plan 982 

and shall specify the time within which such measures shall be completed. If the 983 

responsible person fails or refuses to meet the requirements of the inspection and 984 

maintenance agreement, the city may correct the violation as provided in section 10-190 985 

of this article.  986 

 987 

(3) Inspection programs by the city may be established on any reasonable basis, 988 

including but not limited to, routine inspections; random inspections; inspections based 989 

upon complaints or other notice of possible violations; and joint inspections with other 990 

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 177



agencies inspecting under environmental or safety laws. Inspections may include, but 991 

are not limited to, reviewing maintenance and repair records; sampling discharges, 992 

surface water, groundwater, and material or water in stormwater management facilities; 993 

and evaluating the condition of stormwater management facilities and practices.  994 

(Ord. No. 2006-29, § 1, 9-18-06)  995 

Sec. 10-219- Right-of-entry for inspection. 996 

The terms of the inspection and maintenance agreement shall provide for the City to 997 

enter the property at reasonable times and in a reasonable manner for the purpose of 998 

inspection. This includes the right to enter a property when it has a reasonable basis to 999 

believe that a violation of this article is occurring or has occurred and to enter when 1000 

necessary for abatement of a public nuisance or correction of a violation of this article.  1001 

(Ord. No. 2006-29, § 1, 9-18-06)  1002 

Sec. 10-220- Records of maintenance activities. 1003 

Parties responsible for the operation and maintenance of a stormwater management 1004 

facility shall maintain records of all maintenance and repairs and have such records 1005 

available for review and inspection by the city.  1006 

(Ord. No. 2006-29, § 1, 9-18-06)  1007 

Sec. 10-221- Owner’s failure to maintain the Stormwater Management System. 1008 

The terms of the inspection and maintenance agreement shall provide for what 1009 

constitutes a failure to maintain a stormwater management system and the enforcement 1010 

options available to the City. If a site was developed before the requirement to have an 1011 

inspection and maintenance agreement or an inspection and maintenance agreement 1012 

was for any reason not entered into, recorded, or has otherwise been invalidated or 1013 

deemed insufficient, then: 1014 

 1015 

(1) An owner’s failure to maintain the stormwater management system so that it 1016 

performs as it was originally designed shall constitute and be addressed as a 1017 

violation of, or failure to comply with, owner’s property maintenance obligations 1018 

pursuant to Article II – Property Maintenance, Section 12-30 to Section 12-37 1019 

and  1020 

 1021 

(2) To address such a failure to maintain the stormwater management system, the 1022 

City shall have all the powers and remedies that are available to it for other 1023 

violations of an owner’s property maintenance obligations, including without 1024 

limitation prosecution, penalties, abatement, and emergency measures.  1025 

 1026 

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 178



(3) If a responsible person fails or refuses to meet the requirements of the inspection 1027 

and maintenance agreement, the building official, after fifteen (15) days written 1028 

notice (except, that in the event the violation constitutes an immediate danger to 1029 

public health or public safety, 24-hour notice shall be sufficient), may correct a 1030 

violation of the design standards or maintenance requirements by performing the 1031 

necessary work to place the facility or practice in proper working condition. The 1032 

building official may assess the owner(s) of the facility for the cost of repair work 1033 

which shall be a lien on the property, and may be placed on the ad valorem tax 1034 

bill for such property and collected in the ordinary manner for such taxes.  1035 

(Ord. No. 2006-29, § 1, 9-18-06)  1036 

DIVISION 6. - VIOLATIONS, ENFORCEMENTS AND PENALTIES 1037 

Sec. 10-222 - Generally. 1038 

Any violation of the approved stormwater management plan during construction, failure 1039 

to submit as-built drawings, failure to submit a final BMP landscaping plan, or failure of 1040 

the final inspection shall constitute and be addressed as violations of, or failures to 1041 

comply with, the underlying land disturbance permit pursuant to this article or the 1042 

underlying building permit pursuant to this article. To address a violation of this Article, 1043 

the City shall have all the powers and remedies that are available to it for other 1044 

violations of building and land disturbance permits, including without limitation the right 1045 

to issue notices and orders to ensure compliance, stop work orders, and penalties as 1046 

set forth in the applicable ordinances for such permits.  1047 

Compliance with the Approved Stormwater Management Plan. All development shall 1048 

be:  1049 

(a) consistent with the approved stormwater management plan and all 1050 

applicable land disturbance and building permits, and  1051 

(b)  conducted only within the area specified in the approved stormwater 1052 

management plan.  1053 

No changes may be made to an approved stormwater management plan without review 1054 

and advanced written approval by the administrator.  1055 

(Ord. No. 2006-29, § 1, 9-18-06)  1056 

Sec. 10-222 - Notice of violation. 1057 

(1) If the building official determines that an applicant or other responsible person has 1058 

failed to comply with the terms and conditions of a permit, an approved stormwater 1059 

management plan or the provisions of this article, it shall issue a written notice of 1060 

violation to such applicant or other responsible person. Where a person is engaged in 1061 

an activity covered by this article without having first secured a permit therefore, the 1062 

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 179



notice of violation shall be served on the owner or the responsible person in charge of 1063 

the activity being conducted on the site.  1064 

(2) The notice of violation shall contain:  1065 

(a) The name and address of the owner or the applicant or the responsible 1066 

person;  1067 

(b) The address or other description of the site upon which the violation is 1068 

occurring;  1069 

(c) A statement specifying the nature of the violation;  1070 

(d) A description of the remedial measures necessary to bring the action or 1071 

inaction into compliance with the permit, the stormwater management plan or this 1072 

article and the date for the completion of such remedial action;  1073 

(e) A statement of the penalty or penalties that may be assessed against the 1074 

person to whom the notice of violation is directed; and  1075 

(f) A statement that the determination of violation may be appealed to the city by 1076 

filing a written notice of appeal within fifteen (15) days after the notice of violation 1077 

(except, that in the event the violation constitutes an immediate danger to public 1078 

health or public safety, twenty-four-hours notice shall be sufficient).  1079 

(Ord. No. 2006-29, § 1, 9-18-06)  1080 

Sec. 10-224- Penalties. 1081 

In the event the remedial measures described in the notice of violation have not been 1082 

completed by the date set forth for such completion in the notice of violation, any one or 1083 

more of the following actions or penalties may be taken or assessed against the person 1084 

to whom the notice of violation was directed. Before taking any of the following actions 1085 

or imposing any of the following penalties, the city shall first notify the applicant or other 1086 

responsible person in writing of its intended action, and shall provide a reasonable 1087 

opportunity, of not less than five (5) days (except, that in the event the violation 1088 

constitutes an immediate danger to public health or public safety, twenty-four-hour 1089 

notice shall be sufficient) to cure such violation. In the event the applicant or other 1090 

responsible person fails to cure such violation after such notice and cure period, the 1091 

building official may take any one or more of the following actions or impose any one or 1092 

more of the following penalties:  1093 

(a) Stop work order: The building official may issue a stop work order which shall 1094 

be served on the applicant or other responsible person. The stop work order shall 1095 

remain in effect until the applicant or other responsible person has taken the 1096 

remedial measures set forth in the notice of violation or has otherwise cured the 1097 

violation or violations described therein, provided the stop work order may be 1098 

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 180



withdrawn or modified to enable the applicant or other responsible person to take 1099 

the necessary remedial measures to cure such violation or violations.  1100 

 1101 

(b) Withhold certificate of occupancy: The building official may refuse to issue a 1102 

certificate of occupancy for the building or other improvements constructed or 1103 

being constructed on the site until the applicant or other responsible person has 1104 

taken the remedial measures set forth in the notice of violation or has otherwise 1105 

cured the violations described therein.  1106 

 1107 

(c) Suspension, revocation or modification of permit: The Building Official may 1108 

suspend, revoke or modify the permit authorizing the land development project. A 1109 

suspended, revoked or modified permit may be reinstated after the applicant or 1110 

other responsible person has taken the remedial measures set forth in the notice 1111 

of violation or has otherwise cured the violations described therein, provided 1112 

such permit may be reinstated (upon such conditions as the city may deem 1113 

necessary) to enable the applicant or other responsible person to take the 1114 

necessary remedial measures to cure such violations.  1115 

 1116 

(d) Civil penalties. In the event the applicant or other responsible person fails to 1117 

take the remedial measures set forth in the notice of violation or otherwise fails to 1118 

cure the violations described therein within ten days, or such greater period as 1119 

the city shall deem appropriate (except, that in the event the violation constitutes 1120 

an immediate danger to public health or public safety, twenty-four (24)-hour 1121 

notice shall be sufficient) after the city has taken one or more of the actions 1122 

described above, the city judge may impose a penalty not to exceed one 1123 

thousand dollars ($1,000.00) (depending on the severity of the violation) for each 1124 

day the violation continues after receipt of the notice of violation.  1125 

 1126 

(e) Criminal penalties: For intentional and flagrant violations of this article, the 1127 

building official may issue a citation to the applicant or other responsible person, 1128 

requiring such person to appear in the city court to answer charges for such 1129 

violation. Upon conviction, such person shall be punished by a fine not to exceed 1130 

one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) or imprisonment for ninety (90) days or both. 1131 

Each act of violation and each day upon which any violation shall occur shall 1132 

constitute a separate offense.  1133 

(Ord. No. 2006-29, § 1, 9-18-06)  1134 

Sec. 10-225– Maintenance by Owner of Stormwater Management Systems 1135 

Predating Current GSMM 1136 

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 181



For any stormwater management systems approved and built based on requirements 1137 

predating the current GSMM and that is not otherwise subject to an inspection and 1138 

maintenance agreement, such stormwater management systems shall be maintained by 1139 

the owner so that the stormwater management systems perform as they were originally 1140 

designed. 1141 

Sec. 10-226 - Inspection and Maintenance Agreements.  1142 

 1143 

(1) The owner shall execute an inspection and maintenance agreement with the City 1144 

obligating the owner to inspect, clean, maintain, and repair the stormwater management 1145 

system; including vegetation in the final BMP landscaping plan. The form of the 1146 

inspection and maintenance agreement shall be the form provided by the City. After the 1147 

inspection and maintenance agreement has been signed by the owner and the City, the 1148 

owner shall promptly record such agreement at the owner’s cost in the property record 1149 

for all parcel(s) that make up the site.  1150 

 1151 

(2) The inspection and maintenance agreement shall identify by name or official title 1152 

the person(s) serving as the point of contact for carrying out the owner’s obligations 1153 

under the inspection and maintenance agreement. The owner shall update the point of 1154 

contact from time to time as needed and upon request by the City. Upon any sale or 1155 

transfer of the site, the new owner shall notify the City in writing within 30 days of the 1156 

name or official title of new person(s) serving as the point of contact for the new owner. 1157 

Any failure of an owner to keep the point of contact up to date shall, following 30 days’ 1158 

notice, constitute a failure to maintain the stormwater management system. 1159 

 1160 

(3) The inspection and maintenance agreement shall run with the land and bind all 1161 

future successors-in-title of the site. If there is a future sale or transfer of only a portion 1162 

of the site, then: 1163 

 1164 

(a) The parties to such sale or transfer may enter into and record an 1165 

assignment agreement designating the owner responsible for each portion of the 1166 

site and associated obligations under the inspection and maintenance 1167 

agreement. The parties shall record and provide written notice and a copy of 1168 

such assignment agreement to the City.  1169 

(b) In the absence of a recorded assignment agreement, all owners of the site 1170 

shall be jointly and severally liable for all obligations under the inspection and 1171 

maintenance agreement regardless of what portion of the site they own.  1172 

 1173 

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 182



Section 2. The preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is hereby 1174 

incorporated by reference as if fully set out herein. 1175 

 Section 3.  (a) It is hereby declared to be the intent of the Mayor and Council that 1176 

all sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are or were, 1177 

upon their enactment, believed by the Mayor and Council to be fully valid, enforceable 1178 

and constitutional. 1179 

 (b) It is hereby declared to be the intent of the Mayor and Council that, to the 1180 

greatest extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or 1181 

phrase of this Ordinance is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, 1182 

clause or phrase of this Ordinance.  It is hereby further declared to be the intent of the 1183 

Mayor and Council that, to the greatest extent allowed by law, no section, paragraph, 1184 

sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is mutually dependent upon any other 1185 

section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance. 1186 

 (c) In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this 1187 

Ordinance shall, for any reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or 1188 

otherwise unenforceable by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent 1189 

jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Mayor and Council that such invalidity, 1190 

unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent allowed by law, not 1191 

render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining phrases, 1192 

clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of the Ordinance and that, to the greatest 1193 

extent allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and 1194 

sections of the Ordinance shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force 1195 

and effect. 1196 

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 183



 Section 4.  All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 1197 

expressly repealed.  1198 

 Section 5.  The effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption 1199 

unless otherwise specified herein.  1200 

  1201 
SO ORDAINED this ______ day of _______________, 2020.  1202 

 1203 
 1204 
       CITY OF COLLEGE PARK, GEORGIA 1205 

 1206 

 1207 
 1208 

 ________________________________                                                                  1209 
       Bianca Motley Broom, Mayor 1210 
 1211 

 1212 
ATTEST:                                                               1213 

 1214 
 1215 

 1216 

       1217 
Shavala Moore, City Clerk 1218 
 1219 
 1220 

 1221 
 1222 

 1223 
 1224 

APPROVED BY: 1225 

 1226 

 1227 
 1228 
       1229 
City Attorney 1230 

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 184



   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8455  

Updated: 11/9/2020 2:42 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: November 9, 2020 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

FROM: Terrence R. Moore, City Manager 

 

RE:  Proposed City Holiday Schedule 2021 

 

 

PURPOSE:  To present to Mayor and Council the Proposed City of College Park Observed 

Holiday Calendar for 2021. 

 

REASON:  A holiday is usually referred to as an official or unofficial observance of 

religious/national/cultural/other significance, often accompanied by celebrations or festivities 

(public/religous holiday). A holiday will often be undertaken during specific holiday 

observances.  Holidays are often used as a time to spend with friends and family. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  To approve the attached City of College Park Observed Holiday 

Calendar for 2021. 

 

BACKGROUND:  A holiday is usually referred to as an official or unofficial observance of 

religious/national/cultural/other significance, often accompanied by celebrations or festivities 

(public/religious holiday).  A holiday will often be undertaken during specific holiday 

observances.  Holidays are often used as a time to spend with friends and family. 

 

COST TO CITY:  Holiday Pay will be charged to the respective departments. 

 

BUDGETED ITEM:  Not Applicable.  

 

REVENUE TO CITY:  Not Applicable. 

 

CITY COUNCIL HEARING DATE:  November 16, 2020. 

 

CONSIDERATION BY OTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITIES:   

 

AFFECTED AGENCIES:  All City Departments. 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO EXISTING ORDINANCE OR RESOLUTION:  Not Applicable. 

 

10.B

Packet Pg. 185



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8455)  Meeting of November 16, 2020 

Updated: 11/9/2020 2:42 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 2 

REQUIRED CHANGES TO WORK PROGRAMS:  Not Applicable. 

 

STAFF:  All City Departments 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 2021 Proposed Holiday Schedule (DOCX) 

 

Review: 

 Terrence R. Moore Completed 11/09/2020 2:54 PM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 11/09/2020 2:56 PM 

 Mercedes Miller Completed 11/09/2020 3:33 PM 

 Terrence R. Moore Completed 11/11/2020 1:08 PM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 11/16/2020 7:30 PM 

10.B

Packet Pg. 186





   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8440  

Updated: 11/12/2020 12:33 PM by Terrence R. Moore  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: November 12, 2020 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

FROM: Terrence R. Moore, City Manager 

 

RE:  Set Council Meeting Dates for 2021 

 

 

The City Council meets the first and third Monday of each month.  Attached for your 

consideration and approval is a proposed City of College Park 2021 Council Meeting schedule.  

The schedule reflects Regular meeting dates during calendar year 2021 on the first and third 

Monday of each month and alternative dates when there is a conflict with national holidays.  

Additionally, only one regular meeting will occur during the months of July and December 2021. 

 

College Park, Georgia - Code of Ordinance/Chapter 2 - Administration 

Article II. - Mayor and Council 

 

Sec. 2-20. - Time and place of regular meetings.  

Regular meetings of the mayor and council shall be held on the first and third 

Monday's during each month at the city hall at 7:30 p.m.  

(Code 1963, § 2-1)  

 

Thank you for your consideration of this matter. 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 2021 City Council Meeting Schedule (DOC) 

 

Review: 

 Terrence R. Moore Completed 11/09/2020 2:54 PM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 11/09/2020 2:56 PM 

 Terrence R. Moore Completed 11/12/2020 12:33 PM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 11/16/2020 7:30 PM 

10.C

Packet Pg. 188





   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8457  

Updated: 11/9/2020 2:46 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: November 9, 2020 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

THROUGH: Terrence R. Moore, City Manager 

 

FROM: Michelle Alexander, City Planner 

 

RE:  Consideration of Appointments for The Comprehensive Plan Steering Committee 

 

 

PURPOSE:   To consider making appointments for the Comprehensive Plan Steering 

Committee.  

 

REASON:  The Comprehensive Plan update that was previously approved requires the 

appointment of a Steering Committee. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: City Planner recommends that Council consider the following 

potential members for the Committee and consider appointing members at the next Council 

meeting, December 7th.  

 

 Planning Commission Chair 

 BIDA representative  

 Main Street Chair or representative  

 Council appointed members (5) (1 per district and from Mayor) 

 ARC staff assigned to the project 

 City Planners (staff) 

 Airport Affairs Manager (staff) 

 Economic Development representative (staff) 

 

BACKGROUND:  The Planning Commission and Board of Zoning Appeals will receive 

consistent updates throughout the process from the City Planner and can review materials and 

provide input. The Steering Committee provides an opportunity to have additional members 

from the community participate in the process.  

 

The previous Comprehensive Plan Steering Committee: 

 

 Mari Early - Principal, College Park Elementary School 

12.A

Packet Pg. 190



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8457)  Meeting of November 16, 2020 

Updated: 11/9/2020 2:46 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 2 

 Dr. Lateshia Woodley - Principal, McClarin Success Academy  

 Nija Meyer - Vice President for Strategic Marketing & Communications, Woodward 

Academy  

 Tom Carpenter - College Park Main Street Association  

 Barbara McKee - LIFT Community Development Corporation  

 Don Winbush - Old National Merchants' Association  

 Rev. Vicki Smith - College Park First United Methodist Church 

 Pastor Marjorie Dent - Mercy Missionary Baptist Church  

 Richard Pfleger - St. John's Episcopal Church  

 Anthony Mitchell - Historic College Park Neighborhood Association  

 Rod Mullice - Air Realty, LLC/Colliers International/Development Community 

 Ambrose Clay - Ward 1 City Councilman  

 Eileen Murphy - Ward 1 Planning Commissioner  

 Andrea McDaniel - Ward 2 Board of Zoning Appeals Member 

 Charles McCall - Ward 3 Board of Zoning Appeals Member  

 Whitney Flemister - Ward 4 Planning Commissioner 

 Rhonda Brown - At-Large Planning Commissioner  

 Jeff Green - College Park Business & Industrial Development Authority (BIDA) 

 

COST TO CITY:  N/A 

 

BUDGETED ITEM:  N/A 

 

REVENUE TO CITY:  N/A 

 

CITY COUNCIL HEARING DATE:  November 16, 2020 

 

CONSIDERATION BY OTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITIES:  N/A 

 

AFFECTED AGENCIES:  N/A 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO EXISTING ORDINANCE OR RESOLUTION:  N/A 

 

REQUIRED CHANGES TO WORK PROGRAMS:  N/A 

 

STAFF:  Planning  

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 2021 Comprehensive Plan MOA - City of College Park 10.27.20 (PDF) 

 2021 Comprehensive Plan MOA Attachment A - Scope of Work (PDF) 

12.A

Packet Pg. 191



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8457)  Meeting of November 16, 2020 

Updated: 11/9/2020 2:46 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 3 

 

Review: 

 Michelle Alexander Completed 11/09/2020 10:20 AM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 11/09/2020 2:50 PM 

 City Attorney's Office Pending  

 Terrence R. Moore Completed 11/12/2020 3:15 PM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 11/16/2020 7:30 PM 

12.A

Packet Pg. 192



Page 1 of 4  

DEVELOPMENT OF LOCAL COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 

AGREEMENT 

 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into as of this  day of  , 20 

by and between the Atlanta Regional Commission (ARC) of Atlanta, Georgia, and the City of 

College Park, a political subdivision of the State of Georgia. 

 

WITNESSETH: 

 

WHEREAS, the Regional Commissions were created by the State of Georgia in order to assist 

local governments on a regional basis and to develop, promote, and assist in establishing 

coordinate and comprehensive planning in the state; and 

 

WHEREAS, as the Regional Commission for the 10-county Atlanta Region, ARC has been 

mandated to undertake certain regional responsibilities under the Georgia Planning Act of 1989 

(as amended), and does agree to perform prescribed services to local governments; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of College Park is required to update its Local Comprehensive Plan 

on October 31, 2021, according to the schedule set by the Georgia Department of 

Community Affairs (DCA); and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of College Park has requested assistance from ARC to update its Local 

Comprehensive Plan under the requirements set by the Minimum Standards and Procedures for 

Local Comprehensive Planning found in Chapter 110-12-1 of the DCA Rules, under the Georgia 

Planning Act (as amended); and 

 

WHEREAS, ARC and the City of College Park believe it is mutually beneficial of both parties 

that the City of College Park, as part of the ARC, has a Local Comprehensive Plan; and 

 

WHEREAS, ARC agrees to provide assistance for development of the City’s update of its Local 

Comprehensive Plan: 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the mutual covenants herein 

contained, and for other good and valuable consideration, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

 

1. Duties of the ARC. In addition to those services outlined in Attachment A: Scope of Work, 

attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein, ARC agrees to perform the following 

services: 

 

a. Provide a project manager for the project and ensure that 

b. Attend Project Management Team meetings with local government staff. 

c. Update the existing Community Vision and/or Goals from the existing 

Comprehensive Plan. 

d. Complete an analysis of the Needs and Opportunities facing the community. 

e. Update the Land Use Element. 

f. Provide input on the new Five-Year Community Work Program developed by local 

government staff. 

12.A.a

Packet Pg. 193



Page 2 of 4  

g. Provide input on the Capital Improvement Element (CIE) Annual Update developed 

by local government staff (only if the community already has an approved CIE) 

h. Review any adopted HUD Consolidated Plan, Local Comprehensive Transportation 

Plan, ARC’s Regional Transportation Plan/Transportation Improvement Program 

(RTP/TIP), and other plans as needed. 

i. Present at, attend, or support the two (2) required public hearings (one at kick-off and 

one prior to transmittal for regional and state review). 

j. Facilitate a maximum of three (3) Steering Committee meetings. 

k. Facilitate a maximum of one (1) public meeting. 

l. Provide an online public engagement portal and/or survey, hosted by ARC, to solicit 

plan input, if requested by the local government. 

m. Provide language for official public hearing notices, if requested by the local 

government. 

n. Provide advertisement and other public involvement materials, if requested. 

o. Prepare and present a final plan presentation. 

p. Complete any plan revisions requested by DCA following the regional and state 

review. 

q. Prepare the final plan document and other requested supporting materials to 

document community feedback. 

 
 

2. Duties of the City of College Park. In addition to those duties outlined in Attachment A: 

Scope of Work, the City of College Park agrees to perform the following duties: 

 

a. Provide a dedicated and responsive point of contact throughout the process, to 

coordinate with ARC staff and ensure that the project is moving forward in a timely 

manner. 

b. Participate as a team member on the Project Management Team. 

c. Complete a Report of Accomplishments showing the current status of each item in 

the Community Work Program from the existing Comprehensive Plan. 

d. Develop a new Five-Year Community Work Program, with ARC input. 

e. Update the Capital Improvement Element (CIE) Annual Update (only if the 

community already has an approved CIE), with ARC input. 

f. Provide ARC a list of Steering Committee members, which must include a member of 

the governing authority (elected official) and representative of the local economic 

development community. 

g. Provide a schedule for Steering Committee meetings, with ARC input. 

h. Promote public awareness and invitations to Steering Committee and public 

meetings. 

i. Provide locations for Steering Committee and public meetings that have heat/air 

conditioning, water, and electricity. 

j. Provide any food or beverages for Steering Committee and public meetings. 

k. Post and conduct public hearings as required by the City’s existing procedures. 

l. Provide timely notice to ARC of local government meetings that ARC staff should 

attend. 

12.A.a

Packet Pg. 194



Page 3 of 4  

m. Provide ARC with submittal deadlines for relevant City boards and committees at the 

beginning of the process. 

n. Ensure that the following timelines are met, in order for ARC to guarantee that the 

City will meet its DCA-designated Plan Update deadline and maintain Qualified 

Local Government (QLG) status with DCA: 

1. Schedule a date for the First Required Public Hearing, as defined at Ch. 110- 

12-1-.04(1)(a) of the Minimum Standards and Procedures for Local 

Comprehensive Planning, within thirty (30) days of the signing of this 

Agreement (note that the meeting itself does not have to occur within those 30 

days). 

2. Identify and confirm Steering Committee members within thirty (30) days of 

the signing of this Agreement. 

3. Schedule a date for the first Steering Committee meeting within thirty (30) 

days of the signing of this Agreement (note that the meeting itself does not 

have to occur within those 30 days). 

4. Schedule the Second Public Hearing, as defined at Ch. 110-12-1-.04(1)(c) of 

the Minimum Standards and Procedures for Local Comprehensive Planning, 

on a date that provides sufficient time for the City to transmit the final draft 

Plan Update to ARC to begin the regional and state review, no later than 

September 1, 2021. 

 

3. Time of Performance, Amendments, Modifications 
 

a. This Agreement shall become effective upon execution by both parties and 

remain in effect until the completion of the project or termination by of the 

parties as provided below. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, in 

no event shall the term of this Agreement exceed two (2) years from the 

effective date. 

 

b. Either party may terminate this Agreement upon sixty (60) days’ written notice to 

the other parties, provided that the party requesting termination has provided 

notice and sufficient opportunity for remedy. 

 

c. Either party may request changes to this Agreement at any time by written notice to 

the other party’s signatory of this Agreement. Such changes as are mutually agreed 

upon by and between the parties shall be incorporated in written amendments to this 

Agreement and executed in the same manner as this Agreement. This Agreement 

may only be modified by an instrument in writing executed by the City of College 

Park and ARC. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the City of College Park and ARC 

acknowledge that this Agreement may be revised or refined from time to time during 

its term. The parties agree to cooperate with each other by executing such documents 

as may be necessary to evidence such mutually agreeable modifications and 

refinements. 

 

4. Rights in Documents, Materials, and Data Produced 
 

For the purposes of this Agreement, ‘data’ includes, but is not limited to, writings, sound 

12.A.a

Packet Pg. 195



Page 4 of 4  

recordings, photographs, films, videotapes, or other graphic representations and works of 

a similar nature. The City of College Park and ARC shall have the right to use same 

without restriction or limitation and without compensation to the other parties of the 

Agreement. 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereto executed this Agreement as of the date first 

above written. 

 
 

Atlanta Regional Commission (ARC) 
 

 

Attested, Assistant Secretary Douglas R. Hooker, Executive Director 

 

 

Witness: The City of College Park 
 

 

Municipal Clerk Hon. Bianca Motley Broom, Mayor 

 

Approved as to Form:  
 

 

City Attorney 

Approved: 
 

 

12.A.a

Packet Pg. 196



1 
 

Attachment A: 

ARC Comprehensive Plan Services Scope of Work 

Pursuant to the 2012 update to the Georgia Department of Community Affairs (DCA) Minimum 
Standards and Procedures for Local Comprehensive Planning (Chapter 110-12-1), a Regional 
Commission is required to prepare a Basic Comprehensive Plan for a local government, upon 
request, during the community’s regular planning due date cycle. At no additional cost to the 
local government, ARC will produce/provide the following for local governments: 

• A Project Manager for the project 
• Revisions to the existing Community Vision or Goals from the existing Comprehensive 

Plan 
• An analysis of the Needs and Opportunities facing the community, using ARC resources, 

local data, and input from community stakeholders 
• An updated Land Use Element with Character Areas or standard future land use 

classifications 
• A review of any adopted HUD Consolidated Plan, Local Comprehensive Transportation 

Plan, and ARC’s Regional Transportation Plan/Transportation Improvement Program, 
and other plans as needed 

• Presentations/support/attendance at the two (2) required public hearings (one at kick-
off and one prior to transmittal for regional and state review) 

• A maximum of three (3) steering committee meetings facilitated by ARC staff, at no cost, 
at a location provided by the local government 

• A maximum of one (1) public meeting facilitated by ARC staff, at no cost, at a location 
provided by the local government 

• An online public engagement portal and/or survey hosted by ARC, if requested 
• Language for official public hearing notices, if requested 
• Advertisement and other public involvement materials to meet the above requirements 
• A final plan presentation 
• Any plan revisions required by DCA following the regional and state review 
• The final plan and other documents from the process 
• Assurance that the local government meets its DCA-designated Qualified Local 

Government (QLG) deadline if (a) the request for assistance is made to ARC in writing at 
least 12 months before the QLG deadline and (b) the first Steering Committee is held 
within 10 months of the QLG deadline.  

To ensure that the plan meets the needs of the local government and DCA’s requirements, the 
local government requesting this service will be responsible to produce/provide the following: 

• A dedicated and responsive point of contact throughout the process, to coordinate with 
ARC staff and ensure that the project is moving forward in a timely manner 

• A Report of Accomplishments showing the current status of each item in the Community 
Work Program from the existing Comprehensive Plan 

12.A.b

Packet Pg. 197



2 
 

• A new Five-Year Community Work Program, with ARC input 
• A Capital Improvement Element (CIE) Annual Update (only if the community already has 

an approved CIE), with ARC input 
• A list of stakeholders for the required Steering Committee 
• A schedule for Steering Committee meetings, with ARC input 
• Public awareness and invitations to Steering Committee and public meetings 
• Locations for public meetings that have heat/air conditioning, water, and electricity 
• Any food or beverages for Steering Committee and public meetings 
• Posting of notices of public hearings as required by the community’s existing procedures 
• Timely notice to ARC of local government meetings that ARC staff should attend 
• Notice to ARC, at the beginning of the process, of submittal deadlines for relevant local 

government boards and committees 
• Assurance that the following timelines are met, in order for ARC to guarantee that the 

Local Government will meet its DCA-designated Plan Update deadline and maintain 
Qualified Local Government (QLG) status with DCA: 

o Schedule a date for the First Required Public Hearing, as defined at Ch. 110-12-1-
.04(1)(a) of the Minimum Standards and Procedures for Local Comprehensive 
Planning, within 30 days of the signing of the Agreement (note that the meeting 
itself does not have to occur within those 30 days). 

o Identify and confirm Steering Committee members within 30 days of the signing 
of the Agreement. 

o Schedule a date for the first Steering Committee meeting within 30 days of the 
signing of the Agreement (note that the meeting itself does not have to occur 
within those 30 days). 

o Schedule the Second Public Hearing, as defined at Ch. 110-12-1-.04(1)(c) of the 
Minimum Standards and Procedures for Local Comprehensive Planning, on a 
date that provides sufficient time for the Local Government to transmit the final 
draft Plan Update to ARC to begin the regional and state review, no later than 60 
days before the QLG deadline. 

If the local government seeks to use consultants during the update, ARC will coordinate only 
with the primary local government contact and will only provide the items listed above to the 
local government. 

12.A.b

Packet Pg. 198



   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8465  

Updated: 11/12/2020 11:30 AM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: November 12, 2020 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

THROUGH: Terrence R. Moore, City Manager 

 

FROM: Althea Philord-Bradley, Director of Finance & Accounting 

 

RE:  Delinquent Property Tax Payers Update 

 

 

REASON:  To provide Mayor and Council with the names, addresses, and outstanding balances 

of the top ten delinquent property tax payers as well as a brief update on collection efforts. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  To proceed with established policies and procedures to ensure 

collection of these accounts.  To escalate the collection process as appropriate to minimize the 

loss of revenue.  

 

BACKGROUND:  The City of College Park contracts with GTS (Government Tax Services) to 

facilitate the collection of delinquent accounts to the extent necessary.  Past collection efforts 

have included GTS providing assistance with filing liens and assisting with tax sales.     

 

COST TO CITY:  Varies with each situation.  

 

BUDGETED ITEM:  None.  

 

REVENUE TO CITY:  Varies with each situation.  

 

CITY COUNCIL HEARING:  November 16, 2020 

 

OR RESOLUTION:  N/A 

 

REQUIRED CHANGES TO WORK PROGRAMS:  Aggressive collection efforts to full 

extent of the law. 

 

STAFF:  Philip Latona, Property Tax Accountant 

 

 

12.B

Packet Pg. 199



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8465)  Meeting of November 16, 2020 

Updated: 11/12/2020 11:30 AM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 2 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 Top Ten Delinq Property Tax Accounts 11092020 (PDF) 

 Top Ten Delinq Property Tax Accounts 11092020 2018 (PDF) 

 

Review: 

 Althea Philord-Bradley Completed 11/11/2020 6:16 PM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 11/12/2020 11:29 AM 

 Terrence R. Moore Completed 11/12/2020 11:34 AM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 11/16/2020 7:30 PM 

12.B

Packet Pg. 200







   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8461  

Updated: 11/11/2020 12:55 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: November 11, 2020 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

THROUGH: Terrence R. Moore, City Manager 

 

FROM: Althea Philord-Bradley, Director of Finance & Accounting 

 

RE:  Top 10 Delinquent Customers 

 

 

PURPOSE:  To update Mayor/Council regarding Top 10 delinquent customers, commercial and 

residential.  

 

REASON:  To keep updated on Top 10 commercial and residential accounts to ensure the 

accounts balances are current.  

 

RECOMMENDATION:  To deliver information to Mayor/Council by Customer Service team. 

 

BACKGROUND:  Each council meeting we deliver data that indicates who the Top 10 

customers are based on balances owed, length of time unpaid. 

 

COST TO CITY:  N/A. 

 

BUDGETED ITEM:  N/A. 

 

REVENUE TO CITY:  N/A. 

 

CITY COUNCIL HEARING DATE: November 16, 2020. 

 

CONSIDERATION BY OTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITIES:  N/A. 

 

AFFECTED AGENCIES:  N/A. 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO EXISTING ORDINANCE OR RESOLUTION:  N/A. 

 

REQUIRED CHANGES TO WORK PROGRAMS: N/A. 

 

STAFF: Customer Service Manager  

12.C

Packet Pg. 203



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8461)  Meeting of November 16, 2020 

Updated: 11/11/2020 12:55 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 2 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 CF Aging 11-09-2020 Redacted (DOCX) 

 CC Aging 11-09-2020 Redacted (DOCX) 

 RF Aging 11-09-2020 Redacted (DOCX) 

 RC Aging 11-09-2020 Redacted (DOCX) 

 Top Ten Report 111020 - R (XLSX) 

 

Review: 

 Althea Philord-Bradley Completed 11/10/2020 11:00 PM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 11/11/2020 12:56 PM 

 Terrence R. Moore Completed 11/11/2020 1:10 PM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 11/16/2020 7:30 PM 

12.C

Packet Pg. 204



City of College Park A / R A G I N G 11/09/2020 11:01:04 Page: 1 

--- Last Payment --- 
Cyc Rte Account Name Home Phone 0 to 30 31 to 60 61 to 90 Over 91 Total Date Amount 
==================================================================================================================================== 

Cycle: 1 
 
  3534.19 2217.00 648.39 0.00 6399.58 10/20/2020 3151.97 
  903.16 590.16 189.92 0.00 1683.24 10/22/2020 100.00 

------------------------------------------------------- 
2 Subtotals for Cycle 001 4437.35 2807.16 838.31 0.00 8082.82 

Cycle: 8 

 
 707.54 439.74 350.49 0.00 1497.77 08/05/2020 937.91 O 
 325.65 265.70 61.63 1917.51 2570.49 12/13/2019 109.00 T 
 133.35 79.87 84.89 1053.94 1352.05 O 
 472.87 455.03 252.79 0.00 1180.69 11/09/2020 T 

------------------------------------------------------- 

4 Subtotals for Cycle 008 1639.41 1240.34 749.80 2971.45 6601.00 

Cycle: 15 

 223.56 223.56 311.59 656.76 1415.47 06/03/2020 204.10 
  562.02 505.46 602.45 0.00 1669.93 08/31/2020 657.52 T 
 1583.55 1741.91 0.00 0.00 3325.46 09/24/2020 1686.91 O 
 4755.84 5578.76 0.00 0.00 10334.60 10/14/2020 10759.72 O 
 6028.89 6570.56 0.00 0.00 12599.45 10/09/2020 500.00 
  21.55 21.90 155.83 1045.32 1244.60 01/24/2020 251.64 T 
 577.68 791.82 230.50 0.00 1600.00 11/06/2020 777.68 T 
  548.69 650.67 716.66 65.94 1981.96 10/26/2020 500.00 T 
 957.22 1050.01 0.00 0.00 2007.23 09/21/2020 2225.93 T 
 628.49 707.77 0.00 0.00 1336.26 09/21/2020 837.64 T 
  594.11 761.33 0.00 0.00 1355.44 09/28/2020 1639.52 T 
  1379.83 1052.12 0.00 0.00 2431.95 09/14/2020 940.97 T 
 353.67 368.44 393.62 698.92 1814.65 11/02/2020 100.00 T 
  770.76 1064.02 130.44 0.00 1965.22 09/10/2020 1304.40 T 

------------------------------------------------------- 
14 Subtotals for Cycle 015 18985.86 21088.33 2541.09 2466.94 45082.22 

Cycle: 21 

 34.00 34.00 34.00 1140.10 1242.10 10/30/2020 50.00 O 

------------------------------------------------------- 
1 Subtotals for Cycle 021 34.00 34.00 34.00 1140.10 1242.10 

Cycle: 25 

  961.62 480.81 480.81 0.00 1923.24 07/28/2020 480.81 T 

------------------------------------------------------- 
1 Subtotals for Cycle 025 961.62 480.81 480.81 0.00 1923.24 

 
========================================================== 

22 Grand Totals 26058.24 4644.01 62931.38 
25650.64 6578.49 

 

12.C.a

Packet Pg. 205



City of College Park A / R A G I N G 11/09/2020 11:01:08 Page: 2 

--- Last Payment --- 
Cyc Rte Account Name Home Phone 0 to 30 31 to 60 61 to 90 Over 91 Total Date Amount 
====================================================================================================================================  

 
 
 
 

SELECTION CRITERIA 
 
 
 
                                               Minimum Balance:1000.00 
                                               A/R Block 1:30 
                                               A/R Block 2:60 
                                               A/R Block 3:90 

 

 

Filter: 
(category = ’CF’ AND end_date IS NULL) 

 
 

12.C.a

Packet Pg. 206



12.C.a

Packet Pg. 207



 

12.C.a

Packet Pg. 208



City of College Park A / R A G I N G 11/09/2020 10:58:48 Page: 1 

--- Last Payment --- 
Cyc Rte Account Name Home Phone 0 to 30 31 to 60 61 to 90 Over 91 Total Date Amount 
==================================================================================================================================== 

Cycle: 15 

 4204.01 4721.09 429.51 0.00 9354.61 10/14/2020 4274.69 O 
 587.13 703.48 0.00 0.00 1290.61 09/22/2020 788.45 
  514.75 618.85 653.10 0.00 1786.70 09/14/2020 156.13 T 
 2604.74 3549.22 0.00 0.00 6153.96 09/22/2020 6293.65 O 
 20062.25 500.00 0.00 0.00 20562.25 10/13/2020 24637.79 
                                                           38.16 39.66 148.79 779.56 1006.17 12/16/2019 291.49 T 
 22830.13 500.00 0.00 0.00 23330.13 10/13/2020 19934.97 O 

------------------------------------------------------- 
7 Subtotals for Cycle 015 50841.17 10632.30 1231.40 779.56 69031.69 

 
========================================================== 

7 Grand Totals 50841.17 1231.40 69031.69 
10632.30 779.56 

 

 

SELECTION CRITERIA 
        
                                                 Minimum Balance:1000.00 
                                                 A/R Block 1:30 
                                                 A/R Block 2:60 
                                                 A/R Block 3:90 

Filter: 
(category = ’CC’ AND end_date IS NULL) 

12.C.b

Packet Pg. 209



City of College Park A / R A G I N G 11/09/2020 10:53:25 Page: 1 

--- Last Payment --- 
Cyc Rte Account Name Home Phone 0 to 30 31 to 60 61 to 90 Over 91 Total Date Amount 
==================================================================================================================================== 

Cycle: 1 
 
  225.81 195.78 21.63 1698.24 2141.46 02/04/2019 47.81 
                                          267.92 176.96 158.38 508.41 1111.67 02/29/2020 315.00 T 
  421.01 309.89 192.83 307.56 1231.29 07/10/2020 280.00 T 
  840.02 171.70 0.00 0.00 1011.72 09/08/2020 400.00 T 
  583.46 431.44 232.48 0.00 1247.38 10/26/2020 200.00 O 
 204.80 323.75 364.47 459.15 1352.17 
 586.59 473.23 0.00 0.00 1059.82 09/17/2020 345.00 
 915.15 668.56 390.66 0.00 1974.37 08/10/2020 941.89 
  344.12 239.52 149.86 510.19 1243.69 08/10/2020 400.00 T 
 580.19 327.15 266.52 76.68 1250.54 10/23/2020 322.48 T 
  685.62 253.81 90.98 0.00 1030.41 10/01/2020 94.15 T 
 401.17 274.55 205.44 172.45 1053.61 06/02/2020 T 
  534.39 337.15 237.77 123.99 1233.30 07/29/2020 100.00 O 
 555.87 342.35 301.22 168.99 1368.43 10/17/2020 300.38 
  344.87 199.60 185.57 272.81 1002.85 09/15/2020 200.00 T 
  3757.42 1537.43 359.86 0.00 5654.71 11/03/2020 500.00 T 
  738.66 449.33 209.86 0.00 1397.85 10/20/2020 25.07 T 
  1497.30 927.11 726.67 248.70 3399.78 08/19/2020 1800.00 
 1536.18 934.01 586.14 0.00 3056.33 09/09/2020 T 
 1705.94 266.63 0.00 0.00 1972.57 09/21/2020 2003.00 O 
 508.68 416.16 307.06 322.88 1554.78 07/17/2020 265.00 O 
  500.41 333.59 264.37 85.21 1183.58 09/04/2020 500.00 
  444.16 324.35 210.27 444.66 1423.44 05/05/2020 
 406.44 373.06 264.51 1656.40 2700.41 08/10/2020 100.00 T 
  843.46 535.77 355.08 435.67 2169.98 08/28/2020 395.50 T 

------------------------------------------------------- 
25 Subtotals for Cycle 001 19429.64 10822.88 6081.63 7491.99 43826.14 

Cycle: 8 
 
 800.59 1181.02 204.84 0.00 2186.45 08/10/2020 530.64 O 
 756.20 831.42 78.68 0.00 1666.30 09/16/2020 100.00 
  697.87 542.15 109.86 0.00 1349.88 10/26/2020 450.00 
 666.95 271.79 235.02 130.20 1303.96 10/02/2020 300.00 
  846.02 545.31 365.00 0.00 1756.33 10/26/2020 270.00 T 
  1079.97 566.39 249.32 560.74 2456.42 09/08/2020 400.00 O 
  305.68 334.86 241.86 179.97 1062.37 09/28/2020 80.00 T 
 163.29 297.39 238.23 978.67 1677.58 07/19/2020 65.00 T 
  280.01 263.43 136.38 398.56 1078.38 03/04/2020 T 
 481.75 395.01 260.08 543.94 1680.78 08/10/2020 700.00 T 
  203.79 329.45 700.13 0.00 1233.37 09/29/2020 464.00 T 
 595.64 254.22 284.00 163.38 1297.24 08/12/2020 390.00 T 
 633.44 293.75 178.83 0.00 1106.02 08/12/2020 912.28 T 
 711.74 355.40 0.00 0.00 1067.14 10/26/2020 200.00 T 
 376.31 359.30 275.16 310.65 1321.42 09/29/2020 100.00 
  659.09 481.64 164.84 0.00 1305.57 10/05/2020 323.24 O 
                                         274.24 111.19 69.64 875.04 1330.11 10/09/2020 200.00 T 
 247.61 275.30 149.67 456.79 1129.37 04/16/2020 109.70 T 
  362.36 346.15 280.82 277.48 1266.81 08/11/2020 300.00 T 
  606.11 402.22 0.00 0.00 1008.33 08/31/2020 1746.29 T 
  214.75 325.33 218.11 245.98 1004.17 T 

12.C.c

Packet Pg. 210



City of College Park A / R A G I N G 11/09/2020 10:53:56 Page: 2 

--- Last Payment --- 
Cyc Rte Account Name Home Phone 0 to 30 31 to 60 61 to 90 Over 91 Total Date Amount 
====================================================================================================================================  
                                        601.86 583.62 185.92 0.00 1371.40 10/23/2020 100.00 T 
  510.89 400.73 258.65 471.04 1641.31 06/15/2020 200.00 T 
 433.17 289.81 241.54 1095.29 2059.81 10/01/2020 175.00 
  530.23 479.32 312.67 287.89 1610.11 06/22/2020 56.09 T 
  275.40 305.27 112.13 486.53 1179.33 02/21/2020 131.19 T 
 654.59 359.03 259.75 523.21 1796.58 08/14/2020 300.00 T 
 276.04 221.70 146.20 382.29 1026.23 07/31/2020 102.00 T 
  236.82 302.38 159.34 412.07 1110.61 06/29/2020 100.00 T 
  169.98 136.66 124.97 926.45 1358.06 09/10/2020 100.00 T 
 371.03 351.61 225.08 142.12 1089.84 11/02/2020 36.00 T 
  245.98 110.13 108.66 659.65 1124.42 10/05/2020 75.00 T 
 485.52 322.08 218.74 234.39 1260.73 07/05/2020 261.00 T 
 541.36 324.49 161.28 0.00 1027.13 09/17/2020 324.49 T 
  198.58 209.19 376.03 286.47 1070.27 07/30/2020 450.00 
  539.12 346.76 280.99 178.82 1345.69 10/19/2020 200.00 O 
  421.80 410.59 289.91 395.32 1517.62 06/05/2020 188.29 O 
  600.71 372.96 32.27 0.00 1005.94 10/16/2020 250.00 O 
  82.05 70.98 114.80 1250.78 1518.61 02/06/2020 608.92 

------------------------------------------------------- 
40 Subtotals for Cycle 008 18138.54 14360.03 8049.40 12853.72 53401.69 

Cycle: 15 
 
 4287.10 4786.99 0.00 0.00 9074.09 10/14/2020 5089.96 O 
 54.35 237.58 229.00 643.67 1164.60 08/13/2020 200.00 T 
 169.22 218.52 314.04 313.59 1015.37 10/26/2020 500.00 T 
 45.05 208.36 336.48 518.00 1107.89 T 
  531.39 481.72 0.00 0.00 1013.11 10/20/2020 562.00 T 
 52.05 170.54 217.21 766.79 1206.59 08/31/2020 37.00 T 
  89.30 191.17 258.69 649.26 1188.42 08/13/2020 500.00 T 
  95.69 257.66 342.63 501.92 1197.90 06/08/2020 422.49 T 
  76.52 284.86 407.04 466.92 1235.34 06/23/2020 294.41 T 
  644.88 633.71 811.09 0.00 2089.68 09/22/2020 600.00 T 
 10134.25 949.70 0.00 0.00 11083.95 10/16/2020 10354.74 O 
  10.78 10.78 76.36 911.03 1008.95 01/27/2020 100.00 T 
  10.78 10.78 334.22 898.78 1254.56 02/14/2020 368.11 T 
 131.56 363.62 492.97 316.59 1304.74 08/10/2020 20.00 T 
  196.25 360.20 456.43 0.00 1012.88 08/10/2020 1140.28 T 
 10.78 263.95 590.34 1930.51 2795.58 02/04/2020 238.00 T 
 10.78 192.78 468.99 1340.23 2012.78 01/07/2020 115.00 T 
  10.78 11.14 155.14 906.43 1083.49 T 
 3784.41 0.00 0.00 0.00 3784.41 10/19/2020 4005.47 O 

------------------------------------------------------- 
20 Subtotals for Cycle 015 20345.92 9634.06 5490.63 10163.72 45634.33 

========================================================== 
85 Grand Totals 230949.69 20304.26 322635.25 

40871.87 30509.43 

12.C.c

Packet Pg. 211



City of College Park A / R A G I N G 11/09/2020 10:54:17 Page: 3 

--- Last Payment --- 
Cyc Rte Account Name Home Phone 0 to 30 31 to 60 61 to 90 Over 91 Total Date Amount 
==================================================================================================================================== 

 

 

 

SELECTION CRITERIA 
 
 
                                               Minimum Balance:1000.00 
                                               A/R Block 1:30 
                                               A/R Block 2:60 
                                               A/R Block 3:90 
 
 
 
 

Filter: 
(category = ’RF’ AND end_date IS NULL) 

12.C.c

Packet Pg. 212



City of College Park A / R 

 A G I N G 11/09/2020 10:54:22 Page: 4 

--- Last Payment --- 
Cyc Rte Account Name Home Phone 0 to 30 31 to 60 61 to 90 Over 91 Total Date Amount 
==================================================================================================================================== 

12.C.c

Packet Pg. 213



City of College Park A / R A G I N G 11/09/2020 10:55:56 Page: 1 

--- Last Payment --- 
Cyc Rte Account Name Home Phone 0 to 30 31 to 60 61 to 90 Over 91 Total Date Amount 
==================================================================================================================================== 

Cycle: 8 

  471.04 358.93 233.37 363.36 1426.70 01/31/2020 56.94 T 

------------------------------------------------------- 
1 Subtotals for Cycle 008 471.04 358.93 233.37 363.36 1426.70 

Cycle: 15 

 344.28 555.07 517.14 1000.00 2416.49 08/27/2020 303.53 T 
 10.80 10.80 308.25 855.50 1185.35 04/17/2020 225.09 T 
  43.10 207.05 263.19 632.51 1145.85 04/24/2020 100.00 T 
 525.58 564.47 57.55 0.00 1147.60 10/14/2020 575.47 O 
  56.65 196.87 273.72 495.86 1023.10 05/12/2020 84.42 T 
  504.22 599.26 102.03 0.00 1205.51 10/19/2020 400.00 O 
 406.62 510.52 565.85 1956.10 3439.09 08/28/2020 496.00 T 

------------------------------------------------------- 
7 Subtotals for Cycle 015 1891.25 2644.04 2087.73 4939.97 11562.99 

 
========================================================== 

8 Grand Totals 2362.29 2321.10 12989.69 
3002.97 5303.33 

 

 

SELECTION CRITERIA 
 
 
                                                Minimum Balance:1000.00 
                                                A/R Block 1:30 
                                                A/R Block 2:60 
                                                A/R Block 3:90 

Filter: 
(category = ’RC’ AND end_date IS NULL) 

12.C.d

Packet Pg. 214



City of College Park

TOP TEN  UTILITY CUSTOMER OUTSTANDING  BALANCES

11/10/2020

Prepared By Kymberli Johnson 

Business

Prior 

Adjustments

Payment 

Plan Liens BUSINESS  NAME ADDRESS Power

Water & 

Sewer

Storm Water & 

Sanitation Total Unpaid

CUT OFF 

LETTER 

AGE OF 

DEBT Notes or Status

n/a No No $19,160.03 $91.32 $1,810.90 $21,062.25 Yes 30days Account Active 

n/a No No $23,044.57 $785.56 $0.00 $20,253.96 Yes 30days Account Active 

n/a No No $8,654.31 $1,626.88 $2,318.14 $12,599.33 Yes 60days

Account Active-Customer filed 

Bankruptcy 11-03-2020

n/a No No $0.00 $6,653.96 $0.00 $6,653.96 Yes 45 days Account Active

n/a No No $4,624.23 $290.87 $84.90 $5,000.00 0 45 days Account Active 

 

Apartments

Prior 

Adjustment

Payment 

Plan Liens APARTMENT NAME ADDRESS Power

Water & 

Sewer

Storm Water & 

Sanitation Total Unpaid

CUT OFF 

LETTER 

AGE OF 

DEBT Notes or Status

n/a No No $0.00 $890.06 $9,944.54 $10,834.60 Yes 30 days Water Account Active 

n/a No No $152.00 $984.36 $8,718.25 $9,854.61 Yes 30 days Water Account Active 

n/a No No $0.00 $113.15 $9,460.94 $9,574.09 Yes 30 days Water Account Active 

Residential
Prior 

Adjustment

Payment 

Plan Liens CUSTOMER NAME Account # Power

Water & 

Sewer

Storm Water & 

Sanitation Total Unpaid

CUT OFF 

LETTER 

AGE OF 

DEBT Notes or Status

No No No $1,818.55 $940.93 $272.99 $3,032.47 Yes 90 days 

Account Active Customer has been 

in the hospital with Covid/ Dialysis- 

Additional Payment $1,200 Due 

Friday, November 13th

No No No $1,684.34 $1,443.51 $271.93 $3,399.78 Yes 90 days Account Active 

TOTALS $59,138.03 $13,820.60 $32,882.59 $105,841.22
NUL Signifies that Lien has not been  filed due to legal statue (not property owner)

* Represents Lien filed against account

N/A Signifies account Lien has not been  filed

yes Signifies account received prior billing adjustment

N/A Signifies account that has not received prior billing adjustment

12.C.e

Packet Pg. 215




